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Corporate Mission 7z &y

. _

Backed by an established corporate track record,
technological excellence and strong mergers
and acquisitions capabilities, SIC Environment
envisages itself as a leading investor and operator
in the environmental industry in the People’s
Republic of China. In the pursuit of company
growth, we remain committed to protecting the
planet, conserving the environment and preserving
natural resources.
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Corporate Profile 2 &fsfia

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC Environment” or
the “Group”, stock code: BHK.SG) is a top-tier integrated
player in China’s environmental industry. The Group is
engaged in water treatment, solid waste treatment and
other environment-related businesses. The Group is
previously known as Asia Water Technology Ltd (“Asia
Water”) which was listed on the SGX-ST Catalist in 2005.
In 2010 Shanghai Industrial Holdings Ltd. (“SIHL”, stock
code: 363.HK) acquired a controlling stake and completed
debt restructure in Asia Water. The Group was renamed
SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd and transferred to the SGX-
ST Mainboard in 2012. Since the restructuring, the Group
has shown tremendous growth and continues to increase
its market share in China’s water and environmental
protection sector.

SIIC Environment is an active investor and operator of
environment-related assets and has been operating in
China’s water sector for over a decade. At present, the
Group’s portfolio boasts over 80 water treatment and
supply projects and 3 waste incineration projects across
15 municipalities and provinces, namely Shandong,
Guangdong, Hubei, Hunan, Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang,
Fujian, Guangxi, Ningxia, Henan, Liaoning, Shanxi,
Sichuan and Heilongjiang.

By leveraging on its business strategy and structure
scalability and its technique extensiveness, SIIC
Environment seeks to expand its competencies to include
related sectors in the water and environmental protection
industries such as industrial wastewater treatment,
seawater desalination, sludge treatment and handling,
soil treatment and new energy resources, thereby
strengthening its top-tier position in China’s environmental
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Chairman's Statement crEErsE:

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of
Directors, | am pleased to
presenttoyou our sterling
results for the financial
year ended 31 December | e
2015 (“FY2015”). '

Mr. ZhouJun
Executive-Chairman




Chairman's Statement mrEErE:

A Year of Scaling Up

In FY2015, SIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC
Environment” or the “Group”) has witnessed tremendous
growth and expansion activities, and marked several
corporate and project milestones which has driven our
water treatment capacity from 5.4 million tons/day to over
7.0 million tons/day. Despite facing stiffer competition, we
have grown both organically and expansively, winning
projects and acquiring assets.

Along with capacity growth, the Group achieved its sixth
year of double-digit financial growth in FY2015 with
total revenue recording a 19.9% year-on-year (“yoy”)
increase to RMB1.8 billion and net profit attributable to
shareholders surging 24.0% to RMB360.4 million. The
increase comes on the back of positive contributions
from newly acquired assets, as well as healthy organic
growth of our existing projects.The Group’s performance
represented the validation of its well balanced growth
strategy and consolidation movements.

Key Milestones

Over the past fiscal year, the Group has continued
to adopt its two-pronged strategy of active M&A and
organic growth to enlarge its overall water treatment
capacity and to expand into other environment-related
businesses such as sludge treatment.

In May 2015, the Group successfully completed a
mega acquisition of Fudan Water which undertakes
approximately 10 projects with a designed water
treatment capacity of over 1 million tons/day in Shanghai
City, Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Guangdong Provinces. Fudan
Water is a strategic addition to the Group’s business
presence since its assets are located in some of the most
developed regions in China. Fudan Water currently serves
as the Group’s fifth regional platform which covers the
East China business.

In April 2015, the Group acquired an aggregate 14.78%
equity interest in Nanfang Water, increasing its stake from
76.419% to 91.203%. The increased ownership interest
in Nanfang Water will further complement the Group’s
existing business and enhance shareholders’ value.
In the same month, the Group forayed into the sludge
treatment sector through a partnership with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”) to invest in MTI Environment
Group Ltd., an established enterprise in China’s sludge
treatment sector with a strong track record of sludge
treatment and deodorization projects.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

In terms of organic growth, the Group won several new
projects against fierce competition including:

e The Meihu Water Treatment Center Phase 3 Build
Operate Transfer (“BOT”) Wastewater Treatment
Project with a design capacity of 100,000 tons/day
over a concessionary period of 27 years in Huizhou
City, Guangdong Province

e The Wuhu BOT Wastewater Treatment Project with
a design capacity of 25,000 tons/day at grade 1A
over a concessionary period of 30 years in Wuhu,
Wuhan City, Hubei Province

e The Quanshuihe BOT Wastewater Treatment Project
with a design capacity of 105,000 tons per day over
a concessionary period of 22 years in QuanShuiHe,
Dalian City, Liaoning Province

e The asset transfer of Yiyang City Water Company
and concessionary water supply projects with
design capacity of 320,000 tons/day in Yiyang City,
Hunan Province

Update on the Utilisation of Net Proceeds
from Share Placement

The Group raised approximately S$154.8 million from
the placement of 1.0 bilion new ordinary shares in July
2014, for which the net proceeds were used to enlarge
general working capital and to finance the Group’s
business expansion. The utilization of the net proceeds is
summarized below (please also refer to the latest SGXnet
announcement dated 28 January 2016) and the Group
will continue to update our shareholders on a timely basis.

Forging Ahead

The Chinese government’s commitment to environmental
conservation and to reducing pollution and emissions
was reemphasized in Premier Li Kegiang’s third annual
work report delivered at the 2016 plenary session of the
National People’s Congress on 5 March 2016.

This comes after the Action Plan on Prevention of Water
Pollution announced in April 2015 and the 13th Five Year
Plan issued by the State Council in May 2015, as the
Chinese government steps up its efforts to enhance water
safety and accelerate reforms in the utilization of water
resources — initiatives set to benefit China’s water and
environment sector. China’s continual massive investment
in water projects, coupled with the push for public-private
partnerships, will benefit the operating landscape for
water service companies.

Annual Report 2015 7



Chairman's Statement ==fEaieE:

Balance
(S$’million)

Net proceeds from the Placement 154.78

Purpose
Payment for:

Payment for the additional investment of RMB74.5 million in Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Water

Services Co., Ltd.

Payment for the purchase consideration of RMB195 million for the 12.1875% acquisition of

Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Payment for the additional investment of RMB150 million into SIIC Environment Holdings

(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.

Payment for the 70% equity of RMB124 million for the incorporation of Yinchuan SIIC

(15.52)

(41.06)

(32.68)

(26.55)

Environment Binhe Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. and SIIC Environment (Yinchuan)

Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd.

Payment for the subscription of HK$155 million in the capital of Canvest Environmental

Protection Group Company Limited

Payment for the purchase consideration of RMB10 million in relation to acquisition of Dazhou

Jiagjing Environment Renewable Resource Co., Ltd

Balance of net proceeds as at 28 March 2016 m

This shift is bringing not only new opportunities, but also
challenges, including stringent regulations and structural
reforms. Effective July 2015, value-added tax (“VAT”) is
levied on wastewater, sewage and sludge treatment
companies with a VAT rebate set at 70%. In the past,
these companies were fully exempted to pay VAT on
treatment fees. In light of the new VAT policy, the Group
believes it will have certain impact on its short term
earnings but can gradually pass through the tax increase
via tariff hikes. The Group continues to pursue suitable
business expansion opportunities while being mindful of
the prevailing changes in the business environment.

It is an exciting and dynamic time for the water and
environment industry, and we are well-equipped
to capture the extensive opportunities available for
growth in the sector and develop the business a lot
faster. Leveraging on strong shareholder support,
we will continue to deliver quality water assets to the
environment, growing from strength to strength.

8 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015

Appreciation

In closing, on behalf of the Group, | would like to extend
our heartfelt appreciation to our valued shareholders for
your continued trust and support as SIIC Environment
continues to achieve various milestones on the
environmental front in China.

We also want to thank our customers, suppliers, business
partners and associates, who are integral to our future
ambitions in the days ahead.

Last but not least, | would also like to thank the
management and staff for theirimmeasurable contribution
towards SIIC Environment. It is a privilege to work with
such a dynamic and resourceful team, and | am confident
that we will step up to the opportunities ahead, and find
continued success in our strengths.

Mr. Zhou Jun
Executive Chairman
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Financial Review [&-E

Financial Highlights

Since FY2011, the Group has seen a CAGR of 34.1%, 34.5% and 33.5% in our revenue, profits for the year attributable
to owners of the Company and EBITDA to RMB1.804 billion, RMB360.4 million and RMB800.1 million for FY2015
respectively. In addition, both total assets and net assets have increased as well significantly over the years to RMB12.2
billion and RMB6.6 billion respectively. Rapid growth in the profitability and strengthening of balance sheet position were
due mainly to the expansion achieved through M&A as well as organic growth, and issuance of shares on acquisition
of entities.

(A) Strong Growth
Revenue (RMB Million) Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company (RMB Million)

558
131

110

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Total Assets and Net Assets (RMB Million) EBITDA' (RMB Million)
12,245 800
5
8,167
6,655 6,579
sy 4,191
3,421 31748 355

1,297 I 1,799 252

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
B Total Assets Net Assets (" Ebitda = profit before tax + financial expenses - financial income +

depreciation & amortization

(B) BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO Projects Provide Stable Cash Flow, increasing Visibility
of the Group's Future Earnings

Change in revenue composition Aggregate of revenue and financial income from service
concession arrangements (RMB Million)

36.
307
190

869

336 I

814

217|

19% 121
10% o
19% 3% 2% 39 I
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
W Water treatment, water supply and waste incineration Financial income from concessionary arrangements
M Construction Other B Revenue from water treatment and supply and waste incineration
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Financial Review & E

Key Financial Data For the Financial Year Ended 31 December

Resuits (RME/000) e | e[S

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit from operations

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Earnings per share (RMB cents)

- Basic®

- Diluted

1,803,796 1,504,434 19.9
712,130 585,622 21.6
542,458 429,291 26.4
424,412 361,995 17.2
360,390 290,708 24.0

16.86 15.84 6.4
16.86 15.81 6.6

@ Computed based on weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the respective financial year ended

Financial Position (RMB’000) mm Chg/‘r,lge

Total assets

Net assets (Total equity)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Net assets per share® (RMB cents)

Market capitalisation® (S$’000)

Number of shares (excluding treasury shares)
Average return on equity (“ROE”)©

12,224,818 8,166,621 49.7
6,579,449 4,190,611 57.0
5,511,562 3,604,279  52.9

244.2 187.9 300
1,726,290 1,323,322 305
2,256,588,726 1,917,858,426  17.7
7.9% 9.8%  (19.4)

@ Equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the outstanding number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
© Closing share price of the last trading day of the year times outstanding number of shares (excluding treasury shares)

© Profit for the year/ Average total equity

Overall

Total revenue for FY2015 increased 19.9% year-on-year
(“yoy”) to RMB1,803.8 million on the back of yoy increase
of water treatment and water supply business segment,
resulting from higher treatment and sales volume and
newly acquired subsidiaries.

Other income increased 46.8% yoy to RMB67.9 million
for FY2015 largely due to higher amount of government
subsidies received by some of the Group’s subsidiaries.

Additionally, the Group’s share of results of associates
and joint ventures increased 29.6% yoy to RMB78.2
million primarily due to contribution from an associate,
Longjiang, which was acquired in November 2014.

Overall, the Group recorded an increase in profit
attributable to owners of the Company from RMB290.7
million for FY2014 to RMB360.4 milion for FY2015,
representing a yoy increase of 24.0%.

Equity

The Group’s total equity as at 31 December 2015
amounted to RMB6.6 billion, strengthened significantly
from RMB4.2 bilion as at 31 December 2014.
The increase was due mainly to () share issuance
of RMB1,583 milion on acquisition of entities; (i)
total comprehensive income of RMB393.1 million
recorded for FY2015; and (i) non-controlling interest of
RMB 540.1 million from newly acquired entities.

Cash Flow

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
followings were being recorded:

(1) healthy net cash generated from the Group’s
operating activities of RMB495.7 million, after
adjusting for additions  of/prepayments  for
receivables under service concession arrangements
and refundable deposits;

(2) net cash used in the Group’s investing activities
amounted to RMB923.8 million due mainly to (i) net
cash outflow on acquisition of entities during the year;
and (i) prepayment for investment in a subsidiary of
RMB 288.2 million. This is partially offset by dividend
received from Shanghai Pucheng and Wenling; and

net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB656.1 million due mainly to proceeds from
bank and other borrowings, partially offset by (i) net
repayment of bank and other borrowings (including
finance leaseback arrangement); (i) interest paid;
and (i) acquisition of non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents stood at RMB795.2 million (2014:
RMB1.1 billion).

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015 13
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Financial Review & E

ob1zo3i0ooogoooog

smmOER TD | s | e | e

ood

oo
gooooo
gooo
gooooon

0ooO(@ooo)
0oO®
-go0

@oooo000oooOoooooo

1,808,796 1,504,434 19.9
712,130 585,622 21.6
542,458 429,291 26.4
424,412 361,995 17.2
360,390 290,708 24.0

16.86 15.84 6.4
16.86 15.81 6.6

N TR T

ooo

oooooooo
ooooooo
oooooepoooooo
0ooo®ooe 000)
oooooooooooO
oooooooo®e

@00o0000000ooooooooooooo@Eooon)
OO0000000000000000O0D00000ODOO@@OO0O0)
eogoooooooooo

=37

00201500 000000019.9%0 00 0 18.040
gboobobobooooooboboboobon
gboboooooboooobooboooooboo

20150 0 0000000 D46.8%0 00 06,7900
gobooooobooobooboboooboon

googgenbnoooooobbbbobobooo
ooobD2s6U0oonovrenboogoon
01401100 0000000D0000DO 0

gooooopbz00000ooogggnaoi4d
goooo270000002015000003.604
0000000 OO24.0%0

ek

goz010120310 0000000000660 00
20140 1203100000420 0000000000
godod@ 2000000000000000D0OO0
1583000 @)0B00000000000003.931
gooo@npooooobobbooooooooo
5401000

12,224,818 8,166,621 49.7
6,579,449 4,190,611 57.0
5,511,562 3604279 529

2442 1879  30.0
1,726,290 1,323,322 305
2,256,588,726  1,917,858,426  17.7
7.9% 9.8%  (19.4)

Bl

goz20150 12031000 00000000000
gooo

() bOooOoobOODUOboUOoobDOooUobooo
goopo4970000ggooooboooo
oogooooog/qoooobooooobooo

0000000000000 0009.2380
0000000@O0OO0O0000@GIooD
0000000288200 000000000
00000000000000000000
000000000000000

@

gobobooobooogbeselnooonoon
Oo00ooobooooboooboooooo
Oooooooooooooobooooayo
oooOoga@)ooooooooooo

©)

gozo0rg3igogooooooooooon
oorsifzubooniooog

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015 15



Project Overview miE =&

Wastewater Treatment / Reclaimed Water Treatment Projects

Daily
. SIIC Env’s
Pro_vn_n ce_/ Project Name Type Cont!'acted Effective Project Progress
Municipality Designed T
Capacity (tons)

Phase 1 project is in operation.

1 Fujian C\TX' tCoutnty_llron?ment Ve V_\I/_ast?wat?r 50,000 91.203% Construction of Phase 2 project
astewater Treatmen reatmen has yet to commence.
2 Guangdong \?Vc;r;?sx:?eﬂ?e ;?Tlg:g v.\l{?:;fg::fr 100,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
Huizhou City Meihu Wastewat Phgset1 pr(_)ject anctj_ Phase 2
lastewater o project are in operation.
8 Guangdong Wadt%r greatment Center 1st, 2nd L —— 300,000 91.203% Construction of Phase 3 project
and 3rd stage has yet to commence.
4 Guangdong W;ﬁg&g%g?gg%gﬂmen i V_\I{;aes;?r\;vea;(tar 280,000 91.203% The project is in operation.
. Reclaimed
5  Guangdong ggﬁ”ﬁ;‘ne” v(\j/geﬁ?e%%ﬂgn Water 50,000 91208%  The project s in operation.
yeing Treatment
6 Guangdong \?\?ai?é?vi?e?‘tl{eztarr;:ﬁgang V.\F?:;?r\g/:;?r 40,000 91.203% The project is in operation.
7 Guangdong \?\?ai?é?vi?e(r)‘tl%/e(a?rigﬁn as:;sg:;?r 260,000 54.722% The project is in operation.
Shenzhen Guanlan River Pollution Wastewater
8 Guangdong  Emergency Operation and S — 400,000 54.722% The project is in operation.
Management
9 Guangdong 6\7:5?2 wagt;/ﬁfeg?:ent V'\Fiset\?r\:wv:r:?r 40,000 91.203% The project is in operation.
10 Guangdong \?V%g?gxz?ers'?rutlazt?:] eazta ° V_\/r?:at]?:qv:;?r 60,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
11 Guangdong a/c;g?gxz?ef?}?eﬁ%ﬁ?am'an V.Y.?;;?X:;?r 50,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
12 Guangdong %Zg?rg:i? 1SS?r;znhc;3;r:/(\j/e:Ss;(:\$/eater V.l\{f;;?r\g:;?r 150,000 35.478% The project is in operation.
Dongguan Xinmin Wastewater o Construction of the project
1 ClEgR g Wastewater Treatment Treatment 1085000 SUAgE has yet to commence.
14 Guangxi Beiliu City Wastewater Treatment V'\F?essfxqv:;?r 40,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
15 Henan W;TZV%KP'I?' ggtg;?g V.l\{f;;?r\g;tﬁr 20,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
16 Hubei \Tvias?g\fgtsra‘ﬁ ;eilr::n t V.\ll.zs';m’:;?r 125,000 100% The project is in operation.
Phase 1 project is in operation.
) Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater @ Phase 1 upgrading project and
1 e Wastewater Treatment Treatment 10,000 = Phase 2 expansion project are
under construction.
18 Hubei w:g;mfg}%g?g;ﬁ” ﬁf;fﬂ::' 30,000 100% The project is in operation.
19 e | Wl e RS 45,000 100% Phose 2 orat b under
Wastewater Treatment Treatment ' ° eSSy c{:i) onJ.
20 Hubei wgg; T/véltlcrhT?ggtment V.\lif::r:]vg;?r 60,000 100% The project is in operation.
. Wuhan Wuhu Wastewater o Construction of the project
el gl Wastewater Treatment Treatment Z208e leees has yet to commence.
20 Hubei Suizhou City Cheng Nan Wastewater 50.000 92.15% Construction of the project
Wastewater Treatment Treatment : o has yet to commence.
23 Hunan \?ng?;\?vzltje??e;m%toounw V¥f:;$r¥]v:;$r 10,000 18.241% The project is in operation.

16 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Project Overview miE =

Daily
. SIIC Env’s
Pro_vn_n ce_/ Project Name Type Cont_racted Effective Project Progress
Municipality Designed T
Capacity (tons)
24

Chenzhou City Wastewater o L .
Hunan Wastewater Treatment Treatment 120,000 91.203% The project is in operation.
25 Hunan g SOy B0 R L HigsitenEier 20,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
Wastewater Treatment Treatment
Yiyang City Gaoxin District Wastewater o o ’
26 Hunan A s r— 30,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
27 Hunan Yiyang City Wastewater Treatment V.\ll.f;;?r\]’q\':;?r 40,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
s R Phase 1 project is in operation.
28 Jiangsu J|pgj!ang Gy ATy USSR 80,000 91.203% Construction of Phase 2 project
District Wastewater Treatment Treatment
has yet to commence.
Phase 1 project is in operation.
29 Jiangsu ?&;ﬁzcv%g ?.T_g;tgzi?g NEm V¥f§;?n\q/:;?r 60,000 91.203% Construction of Phase 2 project
is under construction.
L ) ) Phase 1 project is in operation.
30 Jiangsu &‘}‘;‘S'?swoa'gr'#:;?nq;? ﬁfj;?r‘]’::;‘f' 50,000 91203%  Construction of Phase 2 project
has yet to commence.
Nantong City Guanyinshan VTR —
31 Jiangsu Wastewater Treatment 1st and — 73,000 92.15% The project is in operation.
2nd Stage
30,000 tons of the project are
Ay Dalian Puwan New District Wastewater o under construction. Construction
= HEI T Wastewater Treatment Treatment S0009 RIS for the remaining 20,000 tons of
the project has yet to commence.
33 Liaoning \?Viggv\cggrﬂeatment V.\ll_f:;ter\:]\':;?r 40,000 75.5% The project is under construction.
o Dalian Quanshui River Wastewater - Construction of the project
. HEEilig] Wastewater Treatment Treatment 1821000 et has yet to commence.
Yinchuan Fifth Waste Water TOT
NN project 50,000 tons/day design
ingxia Hui , ) capacity is in operation.
3 Autonomos TonenTh estewater 100,000 100% Construction of Yinchuan Fifth
Region A e e I(EEUE Waste Water BOT project 50,000
tons/day design capacity has yet
to commence.
g L] Yinchuan Riverfront District Wastewater
36 Autonomos Ve EmEE TesiEn L ——— 50,000 100% The project is under construction.
Region
Ningxia Hui ) ) Reclaimed
37 Autonomos rrlgg?muzgtﬁﬁh fioe e Rits Water 50,000 100% The project is in operation.
Region Treatment
38 Shandong  Dezhou City Wastewater Treatment w.f:;ter:;’:;?r 100,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
Weifang City Chengxi Wastewater o o .
39 Shandong Wastewater Treatment Treatment 40,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
Weifang City High Technology Reclaimed
40 Shandong Industrial Development District Water 50,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
Wastewater Treatment Treatment
41 Shandong wzgn%;ml‘jﬁflamed w.f:;ter\;v:;?r 38,500 75.5% The project is in operation.
Existing plant of 100,000 tons/
day design capacity is in operation;
Wastewater new plant of 200,000 tons/
42 Shandong  Weifang City Wastewater Treatment Treatment 300,000 75.5% day design capacity is currently
eAANER under construction. Following the
completion of the new plant, the
existing plant will cease to operate.
43 Shandong ZE Uiy Ol Ealing Bl LR S 20,000 75.5% The project is in operation.

Wastewater Treatment Treatment
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Daily .
Province/ . Contracted <l Er_w s .
o Project Name Type : Effective Project Progress
Municipality Designed
. Interests
Capacity (tons)
Zaozhuang City Yicheng District Wastewater Lo .
44 Shandong WesEEer Testimen T — 40,000 75.5% The project is in operation.
) Qingpu Second Wastewater 0 Lo .
45 Shanghai s i Tesimeam T 120,000 100% The project is in operation.
f Fengxian West Wastewater Wastewater o Fers A F "
46 Shanghai Treatrent 1st and 2nd Stage Treatment 150,000 73.72% The project is in operation.
47 Zhejiang Taizhou Kaidi Wastewater Treatment V_\Il_?es;nv;/(ea\rtﬁr 12,500 100% The project is in operation.
" Yuyao City (Xiaocaoe) Wastewater o o .
48 Zhejiang Wastewater Treatment Treatment 150,000 69.113% The project is in operation.
a | g | EDCH Plessved i SIS T 3,000 69.113%  The project is in operation.
Preprocess Treatment Treatment
. Ningbo City Huangjiabu Wastewater o I )
50 Zhejiang WS TesimEm — 30,000 64.505% The project is in operation.
" Cixi City Hangzhouwan New District Wastewater o o .
51 Zhejiang Water Purification Treatment 90,000 64.505% The project is in operation.
52 Zhejiang Cixi City North Wastewater Treatment V.\ll_fes;er::‘;?r 100,000 59.898% The project is in operation.
Subtotal 4,997,000
Water Supply Projects
’ : - Water L ’
1 Hubei Tianmen Kaidi Water Supply Supply 200,000 100% The project is in operation.
2 Hubei Tianmen Kaidi Xinnong Water Supply SVYJ ?)t;; Not applicable 70% The project is in operation.
3 Hubei Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Water Supply éﬁ z:)tpel; 280,000 100% The project is in operation.
) . Water o .
4 Hunan Yiyang City Water Supply Supply 320,000 90% The project is in operation.
5 Shandong w;fspgu(;lngantmg DI gx ?Dtsl; 60,000 26.183% The project is in operation.
6 Shandong  Weifang City Tap Water Supply SWu ?;’I; 320,000 51.34% The project is in operation.
. . ) Water o .
7 Shanxi Lv Liang Xinya Water Supply Supply 55,000 100% The project is in operation.
Subtotal 1,235,000
Longjiang Group’s projects (based on equity method) 798,200 25.3125%
Total 7,030,200
Waste Incineration Projects
1 Shanghai RUEIETY Wastg IETEEL S AL \(Vastg 1,050 50% The project is in operation.
Power Generation Incineration
Existing plant of 700 tons/day
. Dazhou Waste Incineration Waste o design capacity is in operation.
g Seiuem Power Generation Incineration 152 1887 Construction of Phase 2 has
yet to commence.
3 Zhejiang e ESE Ipcmeratlon \(Vastg 1,100 50% The project is in operation.
Power Generation Incineration
Total 3,200
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ok sah e /eprk EIEEE

BN T
0000000008000 Gopn smon o120 gggggggm

2 oo goobOOoOO0oOoOoooBOTODO OOOO 100,000 75.5% gooooooa

3 od SSDDDDDDDDDDDD OoOoo 300,000 91.203% ESESSSSDDDDD

4 od goooooooooooo OgoOoOo 280,000 91.203% O0OO0OOOOOO

5 od goooooooooao oooo 50,000 91.203% OOOOOOO0O

6 oo gOoooOoOoooooooo oooo 40,000 91.203% OOO0OOOOO0O

7 oo goooOoooooooo goO0O0 260000 54.722% O0O00OO0O0OOOO

8 oo EEEEEEDDDDDDDD O0O00 400000 54.722% O0OO0O0O0OOOOO

9 oo gooDOOoOooOobDOoToTOO OODOO 40,000 91.203% 0O0O0O0OO0ODOOO

10 oo goobOOoOooOooBoTOO gooo 60,000 75.5% gooooooa

11 oo goooOooooooooo gooo 50,000 75.5% gooooooa

12 oo goooBoTooooOOO gooo 150,000 35.478% UOOOOOOOO

13 oo OoooBOoTO O ogooo 100,000 30.410% OOOO0O

14 od JdoooooooooBOoTOO OOOO 40,000 75.5% gooooooo

15 oo JOoO0o0OoOooOoooBoTOO OOOO 20,000 75.5% gooooooo

16 oo goooOooooboo gooDo 125,000 100% goooOooog

17 oo goooOoooooo goo0o0 600,000 80% EESEESEESEESEDDDDD

18 oo goooOoooooo gooo 30,000 100% goooOoooog

19 oo gooooooooa gooo 45,000 100% ggggggggggmm

20 oo gooooooood gooo 60,000 100% gooooooa

21 oo goooOooooooBOoTOO OCOOO 25,000 100% goooo

22 od gooooooooood ogooo 50,000 92.15% 0OOO0O0O0O
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HEFEE | ChecBrsk
BT

oooooooooosorod oooo 10,000 18241% O0OO0OO0OOOOO

24 oo ooooooooo oooo 120,000 91.203% 00000000
25 oo EEDDDDDDDDDBOT oooo 20,000 75.5% oooooooo
gooooOO0O0OO0O0OooooOo o
26 oo 0BOTO O oooo 30,000 75.5% gooooooo
27 0o opooooooooosoTonO oooo 40,000 75.5% oooooooo

28 oo Joobooooniooon oooo 80,000 91.203% OOOOOOO0OOOOCOOOOOOO

goOoooOoooosoToO
oooooO0ooOo0ooOoooooooo

29 oo gooooOo0oooooo oooo 60,000  91.203% oo
30 oo EEEDDDDDDDDDD oooo 50,000 91203% OO00O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0OOOOOO
31 oo EEEDDDDDDDDDD oooo 73,000 92.15% OO0OO000000
32 oo gooooooooooo oooo 50,000 9265% 3O000000000020000A0
33 oo gooooOooosoToO oooo 40,000 755% 00000000
34 0o oo0ooOoOoOooosoTdO OO0OOO @ 105000 755% O0O0O00O

0oooo ooooooToTooGoo/ooooa
35 ooo gooooooooooo oooo 100,000 100% ooo

ooooooooeoTOO@GoOO/MOO000O

36 e ooOoo 50,000 100% oooooooo

ooo BOTO O

37 e oooo 50,000 100% oooooooo

ooo oooo

38 oo goooooooToTon goooo 100,000 75.5% gooooooo
39 oo gooooooooosoTdo OOOO 40,000 75.5% goooocooo
40 0o EEDDDDDDDDDBOT oooo 50,000 75.5% gooooooo
41 oo gooooooooooooo oOooo 38,500 75.5% ooooooog

oo0ooOooOoOooOoooooodod
0/00000000000000000

0,
42 oo oooooooooo oooo 300,000 75.5% 002000/0000000000000
ooooooooo
43 oo EEEEDDDDDDDDD oooo 20,000 755% 00000000
44 oo EOE_II_SSDDDDDDDTOT-F o000 40,000 755% 00000000
45 oo ooooooooooo oooo 120,000 100% oooooooo
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BEFeE | ChScBREE
BT

oooooooooo

0
Yorialiallalala ooogd 150,000 7372% 00000000
47 oo oooooooo ooood 12,500 100% OO0O0O0O0O000
oooooDOooOoooo .
48 oo oo G oOooO 150,000 69.113% OO0O0O0O0O0OO
49 oo O00ODO0O00DO0OOoOBOTOO DOOOO 3000 69.1183% OOOOOOOO
50 oo SRR e e 0000 30000 64505% 00000000
BOTO O
51 oo 00OD0OD0O0O0DODOOOO OODODO 90000 64505% 00000000
52 oo oooooooooo Oooood 100,000 59.898% OOOOOOOO
j=3ag 4,997,000

EFFRE | OoSEBRsE
BT

000000000 200,000 100% OOO0O0OO0OO
2 0o 0000000000 0o ooo 70% 00000000
3 oo 0000000000 oo 280,000 100% OOO0O0OO0OO
4 oo Ooooooo 0o 320000 90% OOOOO
5 oo 0000000000 0o 60,000 26.183% OOODOOOOO
6 oo 0000000000 0o 320000 5134% OO00O0O000O0O
7 0o O0oo0ooo 0o 55,000 100% OOO0O0O0O0O00
Mt 1,235,000
00000000000000000 798200 25.3125%
IR E it 7,030,200
i)y aazAilE]
I 3
0Ooooooon 1,050 50% 00000000
2 oo 00000000 0o 1,050 100% EEEEEEEOODMDDDDD
3 0o 00000000 0o 1,100 50% 00000000
Rt 3,200
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Seated from left to right : Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard, Mr. Zhou Jun, Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Standing from left to right: Mr. Tan Chong Huat, Mr. Tan Gim Soo, Mr. Xu Zhan, Mr. Xu Xiaobing, Mr. Feng Jun
The directors not included in the picture are Mr. Yang Changmin and Mr. Yang Yihua.

Mr. Zhou Jun
Executive Chairman

Mr. Zhou was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 7 April 2010 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2015.
Mr. Zhou is the Executive Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Zhou has more than 20 years of experience in financial investment, mergers and acquisitions, real estate and
general management. Mr. Zhou is the Executive Director & Vice President of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings)
Co. Ltd. (“SIIC Group”) and the Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Limited (HK: 0363). He is also the Chairman of SIIC Infrastructure Holdings and Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway
(Shanghai Section) Co. Ltd., Shanghai Lugiao Development Co. Ltd., and Shanghai ShenYu Development Co. Ltd.,
Executive Director of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (HK: 0563), Director of Shanghai Urban
Development (Holdings) Co. Ltd.. Currently, Mr. Zhou is the Chairman of SIIC Management Co. Ltd, Shanghai Galaxy
Investment Co. Ltd. and Shanghai Charity Foundation Shanghai Investment Management Co., Ltd. Joined SIIC
Group in April 1996, the management positions he had held within the SIIC group of companies were Deputy General
Manager of SIIC Real Estate Holdings (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Deputy General Manager of Shanghai United Industrial
Co., Ltd., Director and General Manager of Shanghai Galaxy and General Manager of the strategic investment
department of SIIC Group.

Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor Degree from Nanjing University. He also holds a Masters Degree in Economics (International
Finance) from the Fudan University.
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Mr. Feng Jun
Executive Director

Mr. Feng was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 15 December 2009 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2011.

Mr. Feng is the Assistant Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited
(HK:0363). He started his investment career more than 28 years ago when he was with Shanghai International
Trust Company in 1987. Since then, he has taken on senior positions with major investment companies such
as Shanghai SITICO Investment Co., Ltd. and SIIC Investment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Mr. Feng’s experience and
extensive knowledge in the capital markets will be of high value to the Group in its future developments. Mr. Feng has
previously served as a board member of SIIC Investment Co., Ltd., Tien Chu (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., SIIC Investment
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Shanghai SITICO International Consulting Co., Ltd., and Shanghai SITICO Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Mr. Feng holds a Masters Degree in Economics from the Wuhan University School of Management,
Enterprise Management.

Mr. Yang Changmin
Executive Director

Mr. Yang was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 17 February 2012 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2012.

Mr. Yang was the General Manager of Shenzhen Longgang Baolong Industrial Co. and the Chairman and General
Manager of Shenzhen Longgang Guotong Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Yang was the founder of SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd (previously known as United Environment Co., Ltd.) in 2003 and had been the Chairman
and General Manager for many years. He has over 20 years of experience in the operation and management of water
and environmental protection investment as well as project and administrative management.

Mr. Yang graduated from Tongji University with a Bachelor Degree in Environmental Engineering and Tsinghua
University School of Economic and Management with a Masters Degree in Executive MBA.

Mr. Yang Yihua
Executive Director

Mr. Yang was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 11 August 2014 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2015.

Mr. Yang has more than 40 years of experience in the enterprise operation and management. Mr. Yang is also
Non-Executive Director of Billion Industrial Holdings Limited Co., Ltd and CECEP Costin New Materials Group. Mr.
Yang started his career with Tianjin Metallurgical Plant in 1970 and was eventually promoted to Assistant to Factory
Manager. In 1987, he was transferred to Tianjin Special Steel with his last held position as the Factory Manager. He
was the Chairman and General Manager of Tianjin Guohuan Shale Products Co., Ltd from 2002 to 2004. He was the
Chief Economic Engineer of China National Environmental Protection Corp from 2003 to 2004. From 2004 to 2010,
he was with China Energy Conservation & Investment Corporation as the General Manager, Head of Enterprise
Management Department and Chief Economic Engineer. During the same period, Mr. Yang was also the Chairman
of CECIC New Material Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Yang retired from CECEP at January 2015.

Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor Degree in Economic Management from the Tianjin University.

Mr. Xu Xiaobing
Executive Director

Mr. Xu was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 5 November 2014 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2015.

Mr. Xu started his career as Manager of Business Development Department in Shenzhen Hong Hua Co., Beijing
Subsidiary in 1992 before he joined Beijing New Horizon Computer Image Ltd as a Manager. He joined Beijing
Jingfang Investment Management & Consultant Co. Ltd. as an Investment and Financial Analyst from 1996 to 2000.

From 2000 to 2008, he held various senior positions in SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited. He is currently the
General Manager of SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited.

Mr. Xu graduated from Peking University with a Degree in Economics and a Masters Degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Xu Zhan
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Xu was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 5 November 2014 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2015.
Mr. Xu started his career as an Assistant Engineer in the 701 Graduate School of China State Shipyard Corporation
from 1992 to 1993. He joined Shanghai Zhang Jiang Hi-tech Park Development Company from 1993 to 1994 before
he joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP from 1994 to 1997.

Mr. Xu Zhan has worked in Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (SIIC) for 18 years. He has held different
position of Finance, Investment and Integrated Management etc. He has rich experience in water and clean energy
industries and has involved in a number of major projects and listed companies acquisition. In 1997, Mr Xu was the
Manager for the Investment Department of SIIC Real Estate Holdings (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. In 2000, he was the Manager
for Risk Asset Department and Finance Department and he was the Assistant to the General Manager from 2003 to
2006 for Shanghai Cyber Galaxy Investment Co., Ltd. From 2006 to 2009, he was the Assistant General Manager for
the Finance Planning Department of SIIC. He is currently the Director and General Manager of Shanghai Cyber Galaxy
Investment Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Degree in Engineering and the Norwegian School of
Management with a Masters Degree in Business Administration. He is also a Fellow of the Association of the Chartered
Certified Accountants (UK).

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Lead Independent Director

Mr. Yeo was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 23 September 2009 and was last re-elected on 27 April
2011. Mr. Yeo is the Lead Independent Director, a member of the Nominating Committee, Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Yeo is the Assistant Secretary-General of National Trades Union Congress (NTUC). He was a Member of Parliament
from 1997 to 2015. Mr. Yeo is also a member of the Board of Directors of the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of
Singapore and Workplace Safety and Health Council of Singapore.

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard
Independent Director

Mr. Tay was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 7 April 2010 and was last re-elected on 27 April 2015. Mr. Tay
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and is a member of the Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tay is currently the Non-Executive Chairman of Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP, which is a Singapore Chartered
Accountants firm and Chairman of the Risk Committee of RHT Capital Pte Ltd (RHT). RHT is an approved SGX (Catalist)
Continuing Sponsor’s Company. Mr. Tay is an Independent Director of several public companies listed on the SGX
Mainboard and Catalist.

He is the President of the Automobile Association of Singapore and Chairman of the Singapore Road Safety Council.
Mr. Tay is the Region 2 (Asia Pacific) Vice-President of the Federation Internationale de I’Automobile (FIA) and member
of the World Council for Automobile & Tourism; concurrently he is also a member of the FIA Audit Committee.
Mr. Tay is also the Vice-President of the Singapore Productivity Association and a Member of Ministry of Home Affairs
- Community Involvement Steering Committee. He was appointed Senior Advisor to the Government of Huzhou City,
Zhejiang Province of the People’s Republic of China.

He is a recipient of the Service to Education Award and Community Service Medal and was conferred the Bintang Bakti
Masyarakat (Public Service Star) and Pingat Bakti Masyarakat (Public Service Medal) by the President of Republic of
Singapore. In addition, he was a Member of the Resource Panel of the Government Parliamentary Committees for Home
Affairs and Communications. He had also sat on several committees under the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority which includes the Complaints and Disciplinary Panel — Public Accountants Oversight Committee, Standing
Law Review Focus Group and Directors’ Duties Study Team. He was also a Member of the Singapore Corporate
Awards Judging Panel for the Best Annual Report Award.

Mr. Tay is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.), the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants and the Singapore Institute of Directors. He is also a Chartered Accountant of Malaysia. Mr. Tay has a wide
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range of experience, from having worked in public accounting firms in the United Kingdom and Singapore, the Inland
Revenue Authority of Singapore and companies in commerce, industry and management consulting for a period over
30 years.

Mr. Tan Chong Huat
Independent Director

Chong Huat was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 7 April 2010 and was last re-elected on 23 April 2013.

Chong Huat is the Senior Partner and one of the founding members of RHTLaw Taylor Wessing LLP. Besides being
Managing Partner of the Firm, he also heads the Firm's Banking and Finance Practice. He also serves as a member of the
International Management Board of Taylor Wessing.

His experience and track record, set out below, as a leading finance and corporate lawyer, successful entrepreneur
and investor, reputable corporate leader and public service champion, and dedicated law professor coupled with his
strong practical and academic grounding throughout his career have made Chong Huat the trusted go-to expert for
complex financing (corporate finance and project finance) transactions, deals structuring, funding and matching, corporate
governance and board matters, and reputational management matters for corporate leaders and major corporates in the
region and internationally.

Chong Huat has an extensive experience in corporate, banking and project finance law in Singapore and the region, and
acted in numerous significant corporate transactions in the areas of IPOs, RTOs, MBOs, restructuring, M&As, and financing
of major real estate and infrastructure. He has been named a leading practitioner in many reputable professional publications,
with a recent recognition as a Client Choice 2016 winner under the category “General Corporate”, by IFLR1000 as a "Leading
Lawyer" and by Legal 500 Asia Pacific as a “lLeading Individual” for Corporate and Mergers & Acquisitions.

Chong Huat is a Fellow with the Singapore Institute of Directors and sits on the boards as an independent director of
Ascendas Hospitality Fund Management Pte Ltd, Ascendas Hospitality Trust Management Pte Ltd and as a non-executive
chairman of Ramba Energy Limited, and P99 Holdings Ltd. He also co-founded RHT group of companies which is the leading
professional services group in Asia. Over the years he has successfully invested in start-ups, SMEs and listed companies.

Chong Huat is active in public service and charity work. He is currently a council member of the Football Association of
Singapore, Singapore Red Cross and he is also council member and Chairman of Road Safety Park 21 Committee of the
Singapore Road Safety Council. He is also a member of the International Affairs Committee of Singapore Chinese Chamber
of Commerce & Industry. He sits as a Lay Person on the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants' Investigation and
Disciplinary Panel. Chong Huat is the chairman of the RHT Rajan Menon Foundation. He has also established a National
University of Singapore Grant in favour of the Law Faculty under the name of his deceased father. The Financial Planning
Association of Singapore has conferred on Chong Huat an honorary membership. He was until recently a council member
of the Corporate Governance Council set up by the Monetary Authority of Singapore and a board member of World Wide
Fund for Nature (WWF) Singapore.

Despite his active practice, management duties and public service, Chong Huat continues to serve as an adjunct faculty
and lecture on a regular basis. He was Associate Professor at the Law Faculty, National University of Singapore (AY
2007- 2013), Business School, National University of Singapore (AY 2008/2009) and Nanyang Business School, Nanyang
Technological University (AY 2008-2012). Besides authoring two leading literature on PRC Investment laws, he has co-
authored titles on Corporate Governance of Listed Companies in Singapore and on Law and Practice of Corporate
Finance in Singapore. He is also a co-editor for a title on Corporate Governance: The Good, The Bad and The Ugly. Chong
Huat also contributes articles and opinion pieces to leading journals and newspapers regularly.

Mr. Tan Gim Soo
Independent Director

Mr. Tan was first appointed to the Board of Directors on 14 March 2011 and was last re-appointed on 27 April 2015.
Mr. Tan is the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and is a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Tan has more than 40 years of experience in accounting, auditing and taxation work, and is the Senior Partner
of G.S. Tan & Co., a public accounting firm which he set up in year 1976. Prior to setting up his practice, he was an
Executive Director of a group of trading companies between years 1974 and 1976. He is also an Independent Director
of two other listed companies namely, China Yongsheng Limited and P99 Holdings Limited.

Mr. Tan is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Fellow of the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants and a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.
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Mr. Huang Hanguang
General Manager

Mr. Huang joined the Company as its General Manager in July 2010. He was responsible for the Group’s businesses and
operations in Wuhan, PRC. He sits on the Boards of the various subsidiaries of the Company. He is also the Managing
Director of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co. Ltd.

Mr. Huang has more than 20 years of experience in the water treatment industry. From 1984 to 1989, Mr. Huang was
employed by the Ministry of Water Resources and Electric Power of the PRC as a specialist engineer in chemistry
and environmental protection. From 1990 to 1992, he joined the China Electricity Council as a specialist engineer in
chemistry and environmental protection. He joined Wuhan Kaidi Electric Power Co., Ltd. as Vice- Chairman in 1992
and he stepped down from this position in October 2004. For the period between 1993 and 2002, Mr. Huang was
also appointed as Director or General Manager of several other companies in the power generation industry. For the
period from 2003 to 2009, he was the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Huang has a Bachelor Degree in powerplant chemistry engineering from Wuhan University.

Mr. Wang Peigang
Deputy General Manager

Mr. Wang joined the Company as its Deputy General Manager in July 2010. He assists the Company’s General Manager
in managing the Group’s businesses and operations in Wuhan, PRC. He sits on the Boards of the various subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Wang started his career at the Department of Energy of the Ministry of Water Resources and Electric Power of
the PRC. During the period from 1993 to 2007, he took on managerial roles at several energy resource management
companies such as Beijing Geely Energy Co., Ltd., Ertan Hydropower Development Co., Ltd., Huaibei Guoan Power
Co., Ltd., Tianjin SDIC Jinneng Electric Power Co., Ltd and SDIC Xuancheng Electric Power Co., Ltd. He was the
Executive Director, President and Director for the reorganisation of the Company from 2007 to 2009.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor Degree in Technology from Wuhan University and a Masters Degree in Management
Science from Renmin University of China. He also holds a Senior Engineer Certification.

Mr. Wu Bin
Assistant to Chief Executive Officer & General Manager
(Solid Waste Division)

Mr. Wu joined the Company as Assistant to Chief Executive Officer & General Manager (Solid Waste Division) in
January 2013.

Mr. Wu started his career in 1994 at China Shenzhen Construction Group and was appointed as a Civil Engineer
and Project Manager. He joined China Shenzhen Special Zone Security Company as the Operation Manager in the
Integrated Department in 1997. He was the Deputy General Manager for Te Zheng Estate Management Company
Limited which was under Shenzhen Special Zone Security Company. Mr. Wu entered into environmental protection
industry in 2001 and was involved in setting up Shenzhen Hanyang Investment Holdings Ltd. and was appointed
Assistant to President and Deputy President. He also cofounded Wenling Hanyang Resources Power Co., Ltd in
2006 and was appointed as the Director and General Manager.

Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor Degree in Engineering from Nanjing Dongnan University and a Masters Degree in MBA from
Guang Hua Economic and Management College of Peking University.
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Board of Directors

Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Feng Jun

Mr. Yang Changmin

Mr. Yang Yihua

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Xu Zhan

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard
Mr. Tan Chong Huat

Mr. Tan Gim Soo

—_ o~ =~ =~ —~ —~ —~ —~ —~ —

Nominating Committee

Mr. Tan Gim Soo
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard

(Chairman)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tan Chong Huat

Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard

(Chairman)

Audit Committee

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tan Chong Huat

Mr. Tan Gim Soo

(Chairman)

Company Secretary

Ms. Shirley Tan Sey Liy (ACIS)
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Corporate Governance Report

Good corporate governance ensures that the interests of shareholders are protected and enhances corporate
performance and accountability.

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are committed
to set corporate governance practices in place which are in line with the recommendations of the Code of
Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”) to provide the structure through which the objectives of protection of
shareholders’ interest and enhancement of long term shareholders’ value are met.

This report sets out the Group’s main corporate governance practices that were in place throughout and/or
during the financial year or which will be implemented and where appropriate, we have provided explanations for
deviation from the Code.

(A)

BOARD MATTERS
Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

Principle 1: Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the
company. The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the company. The
Board works with Management to achieve this objective and Management remains accountable
to the Board.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) oversees the business and corporate affairs of the Group. The
principal duties of the Board includes the following:

° Protecting and enhancing long-term value and return to its shareholders;

o Providing leadership and guidance on corporate strategy, business directions, risk management
policy and implementation of corporate objectives;

° Establishing, reviewing and approving the annual budget, corporate policies, strategies and
objectives for the Group;

o Ensuring the effectiveness and integrity of Management;

° Monitoring the Management’s achievement of these goals;

o Conducting periodic reviews of the Group’s financial performance, internal controls and reporting
compliance;

o Approving nominations to the Board and appointment of key executives;

° Ensuring the Group’s compliance with all relevant and applicable laws and regulations; and

° Assuming responsibility for the corporate governance of the Group.

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment in dealing with the business affairs of the
Group and are obliged to act in good faith and to take objective decisions in the interest of the Group.

To assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board is supported by four committees,
namely the Audit Committee (“AC”), the Nominating Committee (“NC”), the Remuneration Committee
("“RC”) and the Executive Committee (“EC”) (collectively “Board Committees”). The Board Committees
operate within clearly defined terms of reference or scope and they play an important role in ensuring
good corporate governance in the Company and within the Group. The terms of reference of the Board
Committees are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure their continued relevance.
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In line with the recent changes of the Companies Act, all references to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association will be superseded with Consitution and Regulation.

Formal Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve the quarterly and full year results
announcements and to oversee the business affairs of the Group. The schedule of all the Board
Committees meetings for the calendar year is usually given to all the Directors well in advance. The Board
is free to seek clarification and information from Management on all matters within their purview. Ad-
hoc meetings are convened at such other times as may be necessary to address any specific significant
matters that may arise. Important matters concerning the Group are also put to the Board for its decision
by way of written resolutions. Meetings via telephone or video conference are permitted by the Company’s
Constitution.

The following table sets out the attendance of each Director at the Board and Board Committees meetings
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (“FY2015”):

Board Board Committee Meetings

Meetings AC NC RC
Zhou Jun 6 5* 1* 1
Feng Jun 6 7 - -
Yang Changmin 2 3* - -
Yang Yihua 1 1* - -
Xu Xiaobing 5 6" - -
Xu Zhan 6 8" - -
Yeo Guat Kwang 2 6 1 1
Tay Ah Kong Bernard 6 8 1 1
Tan Chong Huat 5 7 - 1
Tan Gim Soo 5 7 1 1*
No. of Meetings Held 6 8 1 1

*By invitation

The Group had adopted a set of internal guidelines setting forth financial authorisation and approval limits
for investments, acquisitions and disposals. Transactions falling outside the ordinary course of business
and where the value of a transaction exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board.

The Directors are also updated regularly with changes to the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Rules, risk management, corporate governance, insider trading and the key
changes in the relevant regulatory requirements and financial reporting standards and the relevant laws
and regulations to facilitate effective discharge of their fiduciary duties as Board or Board Committees
members.

New releases issued by the SGX-ST and Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) which
are relevant to the Directors are circulated to the Board. The Company Secretary informed the Directors
of upcoming conferences and seminars relevant to their roles as Directors of the Company. Annually, the
external auditors update the AC and the Board on the new and revised financial reporting standards that
are applicable to the Company or the Group.

Appropriate briefing and orientation will be arranged for newly appointed Directors to familiarise them with
the Group’s business operations, strategic directions, Directors’ duties and responsibilities and corporate
governance practices. They will also be given opportunities to visit the Group’s operational facilities and
meet the Management so as to gain a better understanding of the Group’s business.

The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the
discharge of Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Changes to regulations and accounting standards
are monitored closely by the Management. To keep pace with such regulatory changes, the Company
provides opportunities for ongoing education and training on Board processes and best practices as well
as updates on changes in legislation and financial reporting standards, regulations and guidelines from the
SGX-ST Listing Rules that affect the Company and/or the Directors in discharging their duties.
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Newly appointed Directors receive appropriate training, if required. The Group provides background
information about its history, mission and values to its Directors. In addition, the Management regularly
updates and familiarises the Directors on the business activities of the Company during Board meetings.

A formal letter of appointment would be furnished to every newly-appointed Director upon their
appointment explaining, among other matters, their roles, obligations, duties and responsibilities as
member of the Board.

Board Composition and Guidance

Principle 2: There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to
exercise objective judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management
and 10% shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals should be allowed to
dominate the Board’s decision making.

Presently, the Board comprises six Executive Directors and four Independent Directors:-

Name of Directors | Board AC NC RC EC
Zhou Jun Executive Chairman - - Member Chairman
Feng Jun Executive Director - - - Member
Yang Changmin Executive Director - - - Member
Yang Yihua Executive Director - - - -

Xu Xiaobing Executive Director - - - Member
Xu Zhan Executive Director - - - Member
Yeo Guat Kwang Lead Independent Member Member Member -

Director

Tay Ah Kong Bernard | Independent Director | Chairman Member Member -
Tan Chong Huat Independent Director Member - Chairman -
Tan Gim Soo Independent Director Member Chairman - -

Executive Committee

The EC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhou Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Feng Jun

Mr. Yang Changmin

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Xu Zhan

The EC is primarily responsible for assisting the Board to manage and oversee the Group’s operational
and business expansion matters. To discharge its role and responsibility, the EC is supported by the head
office, functional departments of the various business units and Senior Management of the Group.

The EC had adopted a set of delegation of authority (“DOA”) setting forth financial authorisation and
approval limits for investments, acquisitions and disposals. Transactions falling outside the scope of DOA
and where the value of a transaction exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board. All material
and significant matters are reported to the Board by the EC.

Independent Directors

The NC considers an “independent” Director as one who has no relationship with the Company, its related
corporations or its officers that could interfere or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of
the Director’s independent business judgment with a view to the best interests of the Company.

The NC has reviewed the independence of each Independent Director and is of the view that these
Directors are independent.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015 39



Corporate Governance Report

40

As disclosed in Note 45 of the accompanying financial statements, the total amount of fees paid to
professional firms for legal and corporate secretarial services where Mr. Tan Chong Huat holds and/or has
held senior managerial position exceeded S$200,000.

Notwithstanding the above, our Board with the concurrence of the NC, is of the view that Mr. Tan Chong
Huat is independent as he has shown that he has strong independent judgement in his deliberations in our
interests notwithstanding the provision of services by the professional firms. Furthermore, the Board is of
the view that he has exhibited professionalism and exercised a high standard of duty and care as required
by his profession and that Mr. Tan Chong Huat’s participation on the Board will benefit the Group given his
expertise and standing in his profession.

Mr. Tan Chong Huat was not and will not be directly involved in the provision of such legal services and/
or corporate secretarial services and/or other professional services by such firms. He abstains from any
voting on any resolution where it relates to the appointment of such firms. Furthermore, for as long as
Mr. Tan Chong Huat is our Director, the Company will use market rates as benchmarks in respect of the
provision of legal and corporate secretarial services to the Group.

The Independent Directors participate actively during Board meetings. The Company has benefited from
Management’s access to its Directors for guidance and exchange of views both within and outside of
the meetings of the Board and Board Committees. The Independent Directors communicate amongst
themselves and with the Company’s auditors and Senior Management. When necessary, the Company
coordinates informal meetings for Independent Directors to meet without the presence of the Executive
Directors and/or Management.

There is no Independent Director who has served on the Board beyond nine years from the date of his first
appointment.

The NC has reviewed the size and composition of the Board. While the Executive Chairman, Mr. Zhou Jun
is part of the Management team and is not considered as an Independent Director, the NC is satisfied that
after taking into account the scope and nature of operations of the Group in the year under review, the
current Board size is appropriate and effective. It is not necessary to have Independent Directors make up
at least half of the Board at present. Nonetheless, the Company is constantly on the lookout for suitable
candidates to join the Board as Independent Directors as part of its review process.

The Board comprises Directors who as a whole, have core competencies and diversity of experience
to enable them to lead and control the Group effectively. Such competencies and experiences include
industry knowledge, strategic planning, business and general management, legal and finance.

Independent Directors exercise no Management functions in the Group. Although all the Directors
have equal responsibility for the performance of the Group, the role of the Independent Directors is
particularly important in ensuring that the strategies proposed by Management are fully discussed and
rigorously examined and take into account the long-term interests of not only the shareholders, but also
of the employees, customers, suppliers and the communities in which the Group conducts its business
and reviewing the performance of Management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the
reporting of performance. The NC considers its Independent Directors to be of sufficient calibre and size
and their views to be of sufficient weight such that no individual or small group of individuals dominates the
Board’s decision-making process.

The Company co-ordinates informal meeting sessions for Independent Directors to meet on a need-basis
without the presence of the Management to discuss matters such as the Group’s financial performance,
corporate governance initiatives, Board processes, succession planning as well as leadership development
and the remuneration of the Executive Directors.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the
Board and the executives responsible for managing the company’s business. No one individual
should represent a considerable concentration of power.

Mr. Zhou Jun is the Executive Chairman of the Company. He ensures effective and comprehensive Board
discussion on matters brought to the Board including strategic issues as well as business planning and
provides executive leadership and supervision to the Executive Directors and the Senior Management
team of the Company and the Group.

The responsibilities of the Executive Chairman include:

(1) Scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly while not interfering
with the flow of the Group’s operations;

) Ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information, and ensuring effective
communication with shareholders;

3) Ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Code; and
4) Acting in the best interest of the Group and of the shareholders.
The Company Secretary may be called to assist the Executive Chairman in any of the above.

Although the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) position is still vacant, the Board and EC are responsible for
overseeing the overall management and strategic development of the Group.

The Board had appointed Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang as the Lead Independent Director to co-ordinate and to
lead the Independent Directors to provide a non-executive perspective and contribute to a balance of
viewpoints on the Board. He is the main liaison on Board issues between the Independent Directors and
Executive Chairman. He is available to shareholders where they have concerns which contact through
the normal channels of the Executive Chairman or Chief Financial Officer has failed to resolve or is
inappropriate.

The Independent Directors, led by the Lead Independent Director, meet amongst themselves without
the presence of the other Directors, where necessary, and the Lead Independent Director will provide

feedback to the Executive Chairman after such meetings.

Board Membership

Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-
appointment of directors to the Board.

The NC comprises the following members:
Nominating Committee

Mr. Tan Gim Soo (Chairman)

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard

The NC'’s role is to establish a formal and transparent process for:

(1 Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on all candidates nominated for appointment
to the Board of the Company and of its subsidiaries;
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@) Reviewing and recommending to the Board on an annual basis, the Board structure, size and
composition, taking into account, the balance between Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors to ensure that the Board as a whole possesses the right blend
of relevant experiences and core competencies to effectively manage the Company;

3) Procuring that at least one-third of the Board shall comprise of Independent Directors;

4) Identifying and making recommendations to the Board as to which Directors are to retire by rotation
and to be put forward for re-election at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company,
having regard to the Directors’ contribution and performance, including the Independent Directors;

5) Determining whether a Director is independent; and

(6) Proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval and implementation,
to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each Director to the
effectiveness of the Board.

The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending new Directors to the Board, after considering the
necessary and desirable competencies. In selecting potential new Directors, the NC will seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities.

The NC may engage consultants to undertake research on, or assess, candidates applying for new
positions on the Board, or to engage such other independent experts, as it considers necessary to
carry out its duties and responsibilities. Recommendations for new Directors are put to the Board for its
consideration.

New Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution following which they are subject to re-election at
the next AGM.

The Company’s Constitution requires one-third of the Board (except for the Managing Director) to retire
by rotation at every AGM. Directors who retire are eligible to offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant to
Regulation 97 of the Company’s Constitution, Directors of the Company who were newly appointed by the
Board since the last AGM will have to retire at the forthcoming AGM.

Each member of the NC shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in respect to his re-nomination as a
Director.

For the financial year under review, the NC is of the view that the Independent Directors of the Company
are independent (as defined in the Code) and are able to exercise judgment on the corporate affairs of the
Group independent of the Management.

The NC has recommended to the Board that Mr. Feng Jun, Mr. Yang Changmin, Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang and
Mr. Tan Chong Huat, be nominated for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. The Board had accepted the
NC'’s recommendations.

Mr. Tan Gim Soo who is over the age of 70 was re-appointed as Director to hold office from the date
of the last AGM held on 27 April 2015 until the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Section 153(6) of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50. The Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 was repealed when
the Companies (Amendment) Act 2014 came into effect on 3 January 2016. As his appointment will lapse
at the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Tan Gim Soo will have to be re-appointed to continue in office. Upon his re-
appointment at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM, going forward, Mr. Tan Gim Soo’s re-appointment
will no longer be subject to shareholders’ approval under Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter
50 as repealed. Mr. Tan Gim Soo will then be subject to retirement by rotation under the Company’s
Constitution. Mr. Tan Gim Soo will submit himself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
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Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang, being a member of the NC who is retiring at the AGM abstained from voting on the
resolution in respect of his re-nomination as a Director. Mr. Tan Gim Soo, being the Chairman of the NC,
had abstained from voting on the resolution in respect of his re-appointment as a Director.

Despite some of the Directors having other Board representations, the NC is satisfied that these Directors
are able to and have adequately carried out their duties as Directors of the Company. Currently, the Board
has not determined the maximum number of listed Board representations which any Director may hold.
The NC and the Board will review the requirement to determine the maximum number of listed Board
representations as and when it deemed fits.

There is no alternate director being appointed to the Board.

The key information regarding the Directors such as academic and professional qualifications, Board
Committees served, directorships or chairmanships both present and past held over the preceding three
years in other listed companies and other major appointments, whether the appointment is executive or
non-executive are set out in pages 56 to 59 of the Annual Report.

Board Performance

Principle 5: There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and its board committees and the contribution by each Director to the effectiveness of
the Board.

The NC has established a formal process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole. During
the financial year under review, the Directors were requested to complete evaluation forms to assess
the overall effectiveness of the Board. The results of the evaluation exercise were considered by the NC
which then makes recommendations to the Board aimed at helping the Board to discharge its duties more
effectively. The appraisal process focused on evaluation of factors such as the size and composition of the
Board, the Board’s access to information, the Board’s processes and accountability, communication with
Senior Management and the Directors’ standard of conduct.

The Board and the NC have endeavored to ensure that the Directors appointed to the Board possess the
relevant experience, knowledge and expertise critical to the Group’s business.

Although the Directors are not evaluated individually, the factors taken into consideration with regards to
the re-nomination of Directors are based on their attendance and contributions made at the Board and
Board Committees meetings.

Access to Information

Principle 6: In order to fulfill their responsibilities, directors should be provided with complete,
adequate and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis so as to
enable them to make informed decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

To enable the Board to fulfill its responsibility, the Management strives to provide Board members with
adequate and timely information for Board and Board Committees meetings on an on-going basis.
The Board and Board Committees papers are prepared for each meeting and are disseminated to the
members before the meetings. The Board and Board Committees papers include financial, business and
corporate matters of the Group so as to enable the Directors to be properly briefed on matters to be
considered at the Board and Board Committees meetings. Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Group’s Management and Company Secretary to address any enquiries.

The Company Secretary or her representative administers, attends and prepares minutes of Board and
Board Committees meetings, and assists the Chairman of the Board and/or the Board Committees in
ensuring that proper procedures at such meetings are followed and reviewed so that the Board and the
Board Committees function effectively. Directors may seek professional advice in furtherance of their duties
and the costs will be borne by the Company. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to the approval of the Board.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 7: There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors. No
director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RC comprises the following members:
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tan Chong Huat (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard

Mr. Zhou Jun, being the Executive Chairman of the Company, shall remain as a member of the RC. The
RC would comprise three Independent Directors besides Mr. Zhou Jun. Although the Code provides that
the Board should set up the RC comprising entirely of Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom,
including the Chairman should be independent, the Board upon the recommendation of the NC, is
satisfied with the independence of the RC notwithstanding the retention of Mr. Zhou Jun as a member
of the RC. The Board is of the view that Mr. Zhou Jun would be able to contribute substantively to the
function of the RC in particular, in determining the remuneration packages of the Senior Management of
the Group, in view of his extensive knowledge and experience in the operation of the Group. Hence, the
retention of Mr. Zhou Jun as a member of the RC would be beneficial to the Company as a whole.

The RC recommends to the Board a framework for the remuneration for the Board and key executives and
to determine specific remuneration packages for each Executive Director, which is based on transparency
and accountability.

The key duties of the RC, inter alia, are:

(1) To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, a framework of
remuneration and the specific remuneration packages and terms of employment (where applicable)
for each Director (including CEQO) and key executives;

2 To review and approve annually the total remuneration of the Directors and key executives; and

) To review and submit its recommmendations for endorsement by the Board, any long term incentive
schemes which may be set up from time to time and to do all acts necessary in connection
therewith.

No Director will be involved in determining his own remuneration.

The RC has full authority to engage any external professional advice on matters relating to remuneration as
and when the need arises. The expense of such services shall be borne by the Company.

In reviewing the service agreements of the Executive Directors and key executives of the Company, the RC
will review the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of these service agreements, to
ensure that such service agreements contain fair and reasonable termination clauses which are not overly
generous. The RC aims to be fair and avoid rewarding poor performance.
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Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 8: The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long- term
interest and risk policies of the company, and should be appropriate to attract, retain and
motivate (a) the directors to provide good stewardship of the company and (b) key management
personnel to successfully manage the company. However, companies should avoid paying more
than is necessary for this purpose.

The RC will take into account the industry norms, the Group’s performance as well as the contribution and
performance of each Director when determining remuneration packages.

The remuneration for the Executive Directors and certain key executives comprise a fixed and variable
component. The variable component is performance related and is linked to the Group’s performance as
well as the performance of each individual Executive Director and key executive.

The Company has adopted the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (“ESOS 2012”) and SIIC
Environment Share Award Scheme (“ESAS”). The Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and key management personnel are eligible to participate in the ESOS 2012 and ESAS
in accordance with the Rules for ESOS 2012 and ESAS.

Directors’ fees will be paid or payable to the Independent Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
certain Executive Directors in accordance with their contributions, taking into account factors such as
effort and time spent, responsibilities of the Directors and the need to pay competitive fees to attract,
retain and motivate the Directors. The Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors shall not be
over-compensated to the extent that their independence may be compromised. The Directors’ fees
are endorsed by the RC and recommended by the Board for shareholders’ approval at the AGM of the
Company.

The Company does not use contractual provisions to allow the Company to reclaim incentive components
of remuneration from Executive Directors and key management personnel in exceptional circumstances of
misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Executive
Directors owe a fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be able to avail itself to remedies
against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary duties.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 9: Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level
and mix of remuneration, and the procedure for setting remuneration in the company’s Annual
Report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable investors
to understand the link between remuneration paid to directors and key management personnel,
and performance.

(@) The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company disclosed in bands for services
rendered during FY2015 are as follows:

Remuneration Band Number of Directors of the Company
S$500,000 and above -
Below S$500,000 10
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Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
Directors % % % % %
Below S$500,000
Zhou Jun® 100 - - - 100
Feng Jun @ 50 - 50 - 100
Yang Changmin - 47 53 - 100
Yang Yihua @ 100 - - - 100
Xu Xiaobing 100 - - - 100
Xu Zhan 100 - - - 100
Yeo Guat Kwang 100 - - - 100
Tay Ah Kong Bernard 100 - - - 100
Tan Chong Huat 100 - - - 100
Tan Gim Soo 100 - - - 100

(1) Fees approved by shareholders at the previous AGM but were not paid as at the date of this report.

(b) The details of the remuneration of relevant key management personnel of the Company disclosed in
bands for services rendered during FY2015 are as follows:

Number of Relevant Key Management
Remuneration Band Personnel of the Company

S$500,000 and above -

Below S$500,000 4

Relevant Key Management Fees Salary Bonus Benefits" Total
Personnel of the Company % % % % %
Below S$500,000

Tan Kim Han Raymond® - 31 56 13 100
Huang Hanguang - 47 53 - 100
Wang Peigang - 41 59 - 100
Wu Bin - 80 20 - 100
(1) Includes transport benefits provided to employees.

(2)  Resigned on 15 May 2015.

For FY2015 the aggregate total remuneration paid/payable to the relevant key management
personnel (who are not Directors or the CEO) amounted to S$613,000.

(c) In view of confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interests
of the Group not to disclose the exact remuneration of Directors and key management personnel in the
Annual Report and that the disclosure based on the above remuneration bands is appropriate.
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(d) For FY2015, there were no terminations, retirement or post-employment benefits granted to
Directors and relevant key management personnel other than the standard contractual notice period
and termination payment in lieu of service.

(e) There were no employees who were immediate family members of a Director or CEO whose
remuneration exceeds S$50,000 in the Group’s employment during the financial year under review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ACCOUNTABILITY

Principle 10: The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and prospects.

Accountability to our shareholders is demonstrated through the presentation of our annual financial
statements, quarterly results announcements and all announcements on the Group’s business and
operations.

The Management provides the Board with appropriately detailed Management accounts of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects on a quarterly basis and when deemed appropriate by particular
circumstances.

In line with the SGX-ST Listing Rules, the Board provides a negative assurance statement to the
shareholders in respect of the interim financial statements. For the financial year under review, the EC and
the Chief Financial Officer have provided assurance to the Board on the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements.

The Management maintains regular contact and communication with the Board by various means
including the preparation and circulation to all Board members of quarterly and full year financial
statements of the Group. This allows the Board to monitor the Group’s performance and position as well
as the Management’s achievements of the goals and objectives determined and set by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 11: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure
that the management maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls to
safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the company’s assets, and should determine the
nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives.

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and the overall internal control framework, but
acknowledges that no cost-effective internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities. The
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
internal controls in place will address the financial, operational, compliance and information technology
risks and the objectives of these controls are to provide reasonable assurance that there are no material
financial misstatements or material loss, there are maintenance of proper accounting records, financial
information are reliable, and assets are safeguarded.

The EC and Management assume the responsibility of the risk management function. Management is
responsible for designing, implementing and monitoring the risk management and internal control systems
within the Group. Management regularly reviews the Group’s business and operational activities to
identify areas of significant risks as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. Any
significant matters are highlighted to the Board and the AC for their deliberation.
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During the year under review, in addition to the work carried out by external auditors and internal
auditors, the Group has processes in place supporting the framework that enables Management to
address the financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls of the key business
units. The processes involve the identification of major risks through risk discussion sessions and
control self-assessments by the Group’s major business units, where the business units’ key financial,
operational, compliance and information technology control risks, as well as mitigation measures,
were summarised for review by the Management, the internal auditors and the Board. The conduct of
risk discussion sessions also serves to heighten the risk awareness for staff at the middle management
level. The documentation provided an overview of the Group’s key risks, how they are managed, and
the key personnel responsible for each identified risk type and the various assurance mechanisms
in place. In relation to the key risks being identified, the Company has taken steps to address and
implement the relevant controls and mitigating measures where applicable and necessary to ensure
that the Group’s key risks are being managed adequately and effectively. The Group will work with its
internal auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Management Consultants Pte Ltd in the continual refinement
of the documentation of the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM”) framework, including the risk
governance and reporting structure. Key initiatives will be progressively implemented.

To ensure that internal controls are adequate and effective, the AC is assisted by various independent
professional service providers. The assistance of the internal auditors enabled the AC to carry out
assessments of the effectiveness of key internal controls during the year. Any material non-compliance
or weaknesses in internal controls or recommendations from the internal auditors and external auditors
to further improve the internal controls were reported to the AC. The AC will also follow up on the actions
taken by the Management on the recommendations made by the internal auditors and external auditors.
Based on the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors received by the AC and the Board,
nothing material has come to the attention of the AC and the Board to cause the AC and the Board to
believe that the internal controls are not satisfactory for the type and size of business conducted.

The Directors have received the representation letters from the EC, Chief Financial Officer and
Management of the key business units in relation to the financial information for the year. Associates and
joint ventures which the Company does not control are not dealt with for the purposes of this statement.
The EC and the Chief Financial Officer have assured the Board that:

a. The financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements for the FY2015
give a true and fair view in all material respects, of the Company’s operations and finances; and

b. The Group’s internal control and risk management systems are operating effectively in all material
respects given its current business environment.

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the internal
auditors and external auditors, reviews performed and representations made by Management, and the
documentation on the Group’s key risks referred to above, the Board with the concurrence of the AC, is
of the opinion that the Group’s internal controls and risk management systems are adequate in addressing
the financial, operational, compliance and information technology control risks of the Group as at 31
December 2015.
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Audit Committee

Principle 12: The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which clearly set out its authority and duties.

The AC comprises the following members:
Audit Committee

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard (Chairman)
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Tan Chong Huat

Mr. Tan Gim Soo

The Company has adopted and has complied with the principles of corporate governance under the Code
in relation to the roles and responsibilities of the AC.

In line with the SGX-ST Listing Rules, the Board provides a negative assurance statement to the
shareholders in respect of the interim financial statements. For the financial year under review, the EC and
the Chief Financial Officer have provided assurance to the Board on the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements.

The Management provides the Board with a continual flow of relevant information on a timely basis in order
that it may effectively discharge its duties. The Management understands its role to provide all members
of the Board with a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

The Board is of the view that the members of the AC are appropriately qualified, having the necessary
accounting or related financial management expertise to discharge their responsibilities.

The AC, which has written terms of reference, performs the following delegated functions:

(1) To review with the external auditors:-

(@) the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit commences;
(b) their audit report; and
(c) their management letters and the Management’s response.

2 To discuss with the external auditors any problems or concerns arising from their agreed-upon
procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which the external auditors may wish to
discuss;

3) To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

4) To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including financial, operational,
compliance, information technology controls and risk management) systems established by
Management to identify, assess, manage, and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

5) To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give recommendations to the Board and

the Company in a general meeting regarding the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the
external auditors;
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6) To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the EC (or equivalent) and the
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in relation to the interim/full year unaudited financial statement;

(7) To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and
external auditors and the Management;

8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the Company and of the
Group, including announcements relating thereto, to shareholders and the SGX-ST, and thereafter
to submit them to the Board for approval;

9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-
ST) and report its findings to the Board;

(10)  To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board or as the
Committees may consider appropriate; and

(11)  To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by the Listing Manual of
the SGX-ST, as amended from time to time.

Apart from the duties listed above, the AC is given the task of commissioning investigations into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal controls or infringement of any law,
rule or regulation which has or is likely to have a material impact on the Company’s operating results or
financial position, and to review its findings.

In July 2010, SGX-ST and ACRA launched the “Guidance to Audit Committees on Evaluation of Quality of
Work performed by External Auditors” which aims to facilitate the AC in evaluating the external auditors.
Accordingly, the AC had evaluated the performance of the external auditors based on the key indicators of
audit quality set out in the said Guidance.

The AC has full access to and has the co-operation of the Management, and has been given the
resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It has full discretion to invite any Director or
Executive Officer to attend its meetings.

The AC recommends to the Board on the proposals to the shareholders on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and approves the remuneration of the external auditors.
The AC has recommended to the Board that Deloitte & Touche LLP be nominated for the re-appointment
as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

The AC will meet with the external auditors and internal auditors without the presence of the Management,
as and when necessary, to review the adequacy of audit arrangement, with emphasis on the scope and
quality of their audit, the independence, objectivity and observations of the external auditors and internal
auditors.

Annually, the AC meets with the external auditors without the presence of the Management and conducts
a review of all non-audit services provided by the auditors and is satisfied that the nature and extent of
such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. Fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors (and member firms) of the Company for non-audit services
and audit services for FY2015 amounted to S$147,400 and S$925,600 respectively. The Company has
complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual in relation to the engagement of its
auditors.
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The Group has implemented a fraud and whistle blowing policy whereby accessible channels are provided
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other
matters which they become aware and to ensure that:

(i) independent investigations are carried out in an appropriate and timely manner;

(i) appropriate action is taken to correct the weakness in internal controls and policies which allowed
the perpetration of fraud and/or misconduct and to prevent a recurrence; and

(iii) administrative, disciplinary, civil and/or criminal actions that are initiated following the completion of
investigations are appropriate, balance and fair, while providing reassurance that employees will be
protected from reprisals or victimisation for whistle blowing in good faith and without malice.

As of to-date, there were no reports received through the whistle blowing mechanism.

The AC is kept updated annually or from time to time on any changes to the accounting and financial
reporting standards by the external auditors. No former partner or director of the Company’s existing
auditing firm has acted as a member of the AC.

Internal Audit

Principle 13: The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is
adequately resourced and independent of the activities it audits.

The Group outsources its internal audit functions to Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers Management
Consultants Pte Ltd (“Internal Auditor”). In accordance with the annual internal audit plan approved by
the AC, the Internal Auditor conducts internal audit reviews of the Group to assist the Board and the AC to
assess the effectiveness of key internal controls, covering financial, operational and compliance risks on an
on-going basis. Procedures are in place for the Internal Auditor to report independently their findings and
recommendations to the AC for review. Management will update the AC on the implementation status of
the remedial action plans.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a system of internal control to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s businesses and assets, while the Management is responsible
for establishing and implementing the internal controls procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.

The role of the Internal Auditor is to assist the AC in assessing if the controls are adequate, effective
and functioning as intended, to undertake investigations as directed by the AC and to conduct regular
risk-based audits covering higher risk areas. The AC is satisfied that the internal auditor has adequate
resources to perform its function effectively.

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function is staffed by suitably qualified and experienced
professionals with the relevant experience.

The Internal Auditor is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Singapore (“lIA”), an internal
professional association for internal auditors which has its headquarters in the United States. The internal
audit work carried out is guided by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing (“llA Standards”) laid down in the International Professional Practices Framework issued by the
lIA.

The AC would annually review the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Principle 14: Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise,
protect and facilitate the exercise of shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update
such governance arrangements.

The Company does not practise selective disclosure. In line with the continuous obligations of the
Company under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Board’s policy is that
all shareholders should equally and on a timely basis be informed of all major developments that impact
the Group via SGXNet.

Shareholders are informed of general meetings through the announcement released to the SGXNet
and notices contained in the Annual Report or circulars sent to all shareholders. These notices are also
advertised in a national newspaper. All shareholders are entitled to attend the general meetings and are
provided the opportunity to participate in the general meetings. If any shareholder is unable to attend, he/
she is allowed to appoint up to two proxies to vote on his/ her behalf at the general meeting through proxy
forms sent in advance. The Company’s Constitution does not include the nominee or custodial services to
appoint more than two proxies.

On 3 January 2016, the legislation was amended, among other things to allow certain members, defined
as “Relevant Intermediary” to attend and participate in general meetings without being constrained by the
two-proxy requirement. Relevant Intermediary includes corporations holding licenses in providing nominee
and custodial services and CPF Board which purchases shares on behalf of the CPF investors.

Principle 15: Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor
relations policy to promote regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.

The Company believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure and is committed to disclose
to its shareholders, the information in a timely and fair manner via SGXNet. Where there is inadvertent
disclosure made to a selected group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly to all others as
soon as practicable. Communication is mainly made through:-

° Annual Report that are prepared and sent to all shareholders. The Board ensures that the Annual
Report includes all relevant material information about the Company and the Group, including future
developments and other disclosures required by the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards;

° Quarterly announcements containing a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group
for that period; and

° Notices of explanatory memoranda for AGMs and Extraordinary General Meetings (‘EGMSs”). The
notice of AGM and EGM are also advertised in a national newspaper.

The Company’s website at www.siicenv.com at which our shareholders can access financial information,
corporate announcements, press releases, Annual Reports and profile of the Group.

By supplying shareholders with reliable and timely information, the Company is able to strengthen
the relationship with its shareholders based on trust and accessibility. The Company has a team of
investor relations (“IR”) personnel who focus on facilitating the communications with all stakeholders —
shareholders, analysts and media — on a regular basis, to attend to their queries or concerns as well as to
keep the investors public apprised of the Group’s corporate developments and financial performance.

The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information is first publicly released
through SGXNet, before the Company meets with any investors or analysts. All shareholders of the
Company will receive the Annual Report with an accompanying notice of AGM by post. The notice of AGM
is also published in the newspaper within the mandatory period, the AGM of which is to be held within four
months after the close of the financial year.
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The Group does not have a formal dividend policy at present. The form, frequency and amount of
dividends declared each year will take into consideration the Group’s profit growth, cash position, positive
cash flow generated from operations, projected capital requirements for business growth and other factors
as the Board may deem appropriate.

Dividends were not declared or paid for FY2015 as the Company requires its existing cash to fund its
capital expenditure and investment in projects.

CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDER MEETING

Principle 16: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general
meetings of shareholders, and allow shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views
on various matters affecting the company.

The shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general meetings to ensure a high level of
accountability and to stay informed of the Group’s strategies and growth plans. Notice of the general
meeting is dispatched to shareholders, together with explanatory notes or a circular on items of special
businesses (if necessary), at least 14 clear calendar days before the meeting. The Board welcomes
questions from shareholders who wish to raise issues, either informally or formally before or during the
general meetings. The Company will make available minutes of general meetings to shareholders upon
their requests.

Each item of special business included in the notice of the general meetings will be accompanied
by explanation of the effects of a proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are proposed for each
substantially separate issue at general meetings.

The Chairman of the AC, NC, RC and EC are normally present and available to address questions relating
to the work of their respective Board Committees at general meetings. Furthermore, the external auditors
are present to assist the Board in addressing any relevant queries raised by the shareholders.

The Company acknowledges that voting by poll in all its general meetings is integral in the enhancement
of corporate governance. The Company adheres to the requirements of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST
and the Code, all resolutions at the Company’s general meetings held on or after 1 August 2015, if any,
are put to vote by poll. The detailed results of each resolution are announced via SGXNet after the general
meetings.

DEALINGS IN COMPANY’S SECURITIES

In compliance with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Company had adopted a Code
of Best Practices to provide guidance to its officers on securities transactions by the Company and its
officers.

The Company and its officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares during the period
commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s financial results for each of the first
three quarters of its financial year, and one month before the announcement of the Company’s full year
financial results, and ending on the date of the announcement of the relevant results.

Directors and executives are also expected to observe insider trading laws at all times even when dealing

with securities within the permitted trading period or when they are in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information and they are not to deal in the Company’s securities on short-term considerations.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015 53



Corporate Governance Report

(F) INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established a procedure for recording and reporting interested person transactions
(“IPTs”). All IPTs are subjected to review by the AC to ensure that they were conducted on normal
commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders.

There were no IPTs between the Group and any of its interested persons (namely, Directors, Executive
Officers or controlling shareholders of the Group or the associates of such Directors, Executive Officers or
controlling shareholders) subsisting for FY2015, save for the following:

Name of Name of entity Nature of Aggregate value of Aggregate
interested at risk® Transaction all IPTs during value of all
person the financial year IPTs conducted
under review under
(excluding shareholders’
transactions less mandate
than S$100,000 pursuant to Rule
and transactions 920 (excluding
conducted under transactions
shareholders’ less than
mandate pursuant S$$100,000)
to Rule 920)
RMB’000 RMB’000
SIHL Finance Rise Thrive Extension of 17,5900 —©
Limited (“SIHLFL")@| Limited(“RTL”) repayment period
of existing loan to
RTL
Shanghai Lugiao Dazhou Jiajing Loan to Dazhou 9,529 -©
Development Co., | Environment Jiajing
Ltd. (“Shanghai Renewable
Lugiao”)® Resource Co., Ltd.
(“Dazhou Jiajing”)
Shanghai Hu- SIIC Environment Loan to SIIC 3,545 —6
Ning Expressway Holdings Shenzhen
(Shanghai (Shenzhen)
Section) Co., Ltd. | Co., Ltd. (“SIIC
(“Shanghai Hu- Shenzhen”)
Ning”)¥
SIHL Finance Rise Thrive Extension of 12,9450 -6
Limited (“SIHLFL”)@ | Limited (“RTL”) repayment
period of existing
loan to RTL
S.I. Infrastructure | Thrive Key Extension of 9,459 —©
Holdings Limited Limited (“TKL”) repayment
(“smy@ period of existing
loan to TKL
Shanghai Lugiao | SIIC Environment | Loan to SIIC 2,4486 -
Development Co., |Holdings Shenzhen
Ltd.®(“Shanghai (Shenzhen) Co.,
Luqgiao”)® Ltd. (“SliC
Shenzhen”)
Total IPTs 55,516 —©

(1) The entities listed are subsidiaries of the Group.
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(G)

(H)

()

W)

) SIHLFL and Sl are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company’s intermediate holding company, Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited. (“SIHL”).

) Shanghai Lugiao is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL. The loans were entered into through an intermediary bank,
Bank of Ningbo.

4) Shanghai Hu-Ning is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL. The loan was entered into through an intermediary bank,
China Merchants Bank.

5) Refer to the interest payable in relation to the loans.

6) There is no IPT mandate obtained from shareholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company regularly reviews and improves its business and operational activities to identify areas of
significant business risks as well as to take appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The
Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures and highlights significant matters to the AC
and the Board. The significant risk management policies are disclosed in the audited financial statements
of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 45 of the accompanying financial statements, Section (F) above, and the
total amount of fees paid to the affiliates of Mr. Tan Chong Huat namely, RHTLaw Taylor Wessing LLP
(“RHTLaw”) for legal work done and RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd. (‘RHT Corporate Advisory”)
and RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Limited for corporate secretarial work done respectively for FY2015,
there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries during FY2015, or
still subsisting as at 31 December 2015, which involved the interests of any Director or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

NON-CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard, AC Chairman of the Company, has declared to the Directors that he chairs the
risk committee of RHT Capital Pte. Ltd. (‘RHT Capital”) from 26 August 2011. Mr. Tay is appointed as
the independent Chairman and member of the risk committee of RHT Capital which, inter-alia, oversees
and advises on all risk, independence and conflict of interest aspects of RHT Capital’s activities. Mr. Tay
is not a shareholder or Director of RHT Capital. The NC, with the concurrence of the Board, is of the view
that there is no conflict of interest arising from his aforesaid roles. He abstains from any voting on any
resolution where it relates to the appointment of RHTLaw or RHT Corporate Advisory which are related to
RHT Capital.

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

The Company has progressively announced via SGXNet on the utilisation of the net proceeds raised from
the FY2014 Share Placement amounted to S$154.78 million in July 2014. As at date of report, the balance
of net proceeds from FY2014 Share Placement amounted to approximately $$10.31 million. The Company
will continue to provide periodic updates through SGXNet as and when the proceeds are being materially
disbursed.
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Directors’ Statement

The Directors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial statements of SIIC
Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

In the opinion of the Directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out on page 66 to 166 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at
31 December 2015, and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes
in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due.

1 DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Zhou Jun - Executive Chairman

Feng Jun - Executive Director

Yang Changmin - Executive Director

Yang Yihua - Executive Director

Xu Xiaobing - Executive Director

Xu Zhan - Executive Director

Yeo Guat Kwang - Independent Director (Lead)
Tay Ah Kong Bernard - Independent Director

Tan Chong Huat - Independent Director

Tan Gim Soo - Independent Director

In accordance with Articles 91 and 97 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all the Directors who retire
and, being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election.

All the Directors who are over 70 years of age shall retire pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies
Act, Chapter 50 (“Act”), and be re-appointed until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS BY
MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any
arrangement whose object is to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate, except for the options
mentioned in Section 3 of the Directors’ statement.
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3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ORDINARY SHARES, SHARE OPTIONS AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share
capital and debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’
Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Act except as follows:

Direct interest
At beginning of
Name of Directors and companies in which interests are held year At end of year
SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.

Ordinary shares
Yang Changmin 75,418,474 11,083,694

Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited

Ordinary shares
Zhou Jun 195,000 195,000

Options to subscribe for ordinary shares

Zhou Jun 1,350,000 600,000
Feng Jun 648,000 648,000
Xu Xiaobing 756,000 756,000
Xu Zhan 594,000 264,000

Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
Options to subscribe for ordinary shares
Zhou Jun 7,000,000 7,000,000

There were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests between the end of the financial year and
21 January 2016.

4 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS OF THE COMPANY

The Company has in place, the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (“ESOS 2012”) and SIIC
Environment Share Award Scheme (“ESAS”), as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 27 April 2012. The ESOS 2012 and ESAS shall continue in force
at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, subject to a maximum period of ten years commencing
27 April 2012,

At the date of this statement, the Remuneration Committee which administers the ESOS 2012 and ESAS
comprises the following Directors:

i) Tan Chong Huat — Chairman
i Zhou Jun

i Yeo Guat Kwang

iv) Tay Ah Kong Bernard

=

=

The ESOS 2012 is a share incentive scheme. The ESOS 2012 is proposed on the basis that it is
important to retain and to give recognition to the Group full time employees, Group Executive Directors
and employees of the ultimate holding company and the holding company of the Company and their
subsidiaries (“Parent Group”), and to give recognition to Group Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group
Non-Executive Directors who have contributed to the success and development of the Company and/
or the Group. The ESOS 2012 will give such persons an opportunity to have a real and personal direct
interest in the Company and to align the interests of such persons with those of the shareholders of the
Company.
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62

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS OF THE COMPANY (CONT’D)

The ESAS is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part of the Group’s incentive
compensation program. The purpose of the ESAS is to provide an opportunity for Group full-time
employees, Parent Group employees and Directors of the Group and Parent Group, who have met
performance targets to be remunerated not just through cash bonuses but also an equity stake in the
Company. The ESAS is also extended to the Group Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group Non-
Executive Directors.

For purpose of ESOS 2012 and ESAS, Non-Executive Director refers to a Director other than an Executive
Director, including an Independent Director.

No ESOS 2012 options or ESAS awards were granted since the commencement of the two schemes.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting all independent non-executive Directors, is
chaired by Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard, and includes Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang, Mr. Tan Chong Huat, and
Mr. Tan Gim Soo. The Audit Committee has held eight meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2015 and has performed the following delegated functions:

(1) To review with the external auditors:-
(@) the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit commences;
(b) their audit report;
(©) their management letters and the Management’s response;

2 To discuss with the external auditors any problems or concerns arising from their agreed-upon
procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which the external auditors may wish to
discuss;

3) To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

4) To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including financial, operational,
compliance, information technology controls and risk management) systems established by
Management to identify, assess, manage, and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

5) To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give recommendations to the Board and the
Company in general meeting regarding the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the external
auditors;

6) To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the Executive Committee (or
equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in relation to the interim/full year unaudited
financial statements;

(7) To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors,
external auditors and Management;

(8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the Company and of the
Group, including announcements relating thereto, to shareholders and the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), and thereafter to submit them to the Board for approval;

9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the
SGX-ST) and report its findings to the Board;
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5 AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(10)  To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board or as the
Committees may consider appropriate; and

(11)  To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by the Listing Manual of
the SGX-ST, as amended from time to time.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of Management, and has been given the
resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It also has full discretion to invite any Director
and executive officer to attend its meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Directors the nomination of Deloitte & Touche LLP for
re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

6 AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors:

ZHOU JUN
Executive Chairman

XU ZHAN
Director

Singapore
28 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the
Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, as set out on pages 66 to 166.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and
for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly
authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

64 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the
subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

28 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group
Note 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Revenue 4 1,803,796 1,504,434
Cost of sales (1,091,666) (918,812)
Gross profit 712,130 585,622
Other operating income 5 31,827 36,278
Selling and distribution costs (15,908) (15,116)
Administrative expenses (185,591) (177,493)
Profit from operations 6 542,458 429,291
Finance income 8 10,441 48,847
Finance expenses 8 (169,853) (151,295)
Other income 9 67,895 46,244
Other expenses 9 (5,190) -
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in a subsidiary 40 - 4,469
Share of results of joint ventures 27 56,207 52,732
Share of results of associates 28 22,038 7,655
Profit before tax 523,996 437,943
Income tax expense 10 (99,584) (75,948)
Profit for the year 424,412 361,995
Profit for the year, attributable to:
Owners of the Company 360,390 290,708
Non-controlling interests 26 64,022 71,287
Profit for the year 424,412 361,995
Earnings per share
Basic (RMB cents per share) 11 16.86 15.84
Diluted (RMB cents per share) 11 16.86 15.81

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and other Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group
Note 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Profit for the year 424,412 361,995
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign operations (86,113) (70,057)
Fair value change on available-for-sale financial instrument 54,763 2,099
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (31,350) (67,958)
Total comprehensive income for the year 393,062 294,037
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 329,040 222,750
Non-controlling interests 26 64,022 71,287
Total comprehensive income for the year 393,062 294,037

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

31 December 2015

Group Company
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
Note 2015 2014 2014 2015 2014 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 795,228 1,119,272 1,878,834 69,565 156,022 1,287,191
Pledged bank deposits 12 76,768 63,404 23,982 - - -
Trade and other receivables 13 864,194 571,618 437,812 7,228 650 2,232
Bills receivables 14 939 2,679 540 - - -
Prepayments 15 14,773 15,344 35,496 1,535 3,048 209
Inventories 16 20,768 20,887 17,745 - - -
Receivables under service
concession arrangements —
current portion 17 123,816 92,899 72,497 - - -
Amounts due from customers
for contract work 18 68,780 70,017 73,616 - - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 - - - 2,088,783 2,093,354 937,600
Amounts due from joint venture 19 1,437 1,437 - 1,437 1,437 -
Amounts due from associates 19 20,836 - 89 - - -
Held-for-trading investment 20 19,222 - - - - -
Total current assets 2,006,761 1,957,557 2,540,611 2,168,548 2,254,511 2,227,232
Non-current assets
Available-for-sale financial
instruments 21 191,836 126,748 2,394 12,567 - -
Prepayments 15 336,363 118,545 126,781 - - -
Receivables under service
concession arrangements
— non-current portion 17 4,663,830 3,232,818 2,642,589 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 22 104,921 107,852 95,683 352 220 401
Investment property 23 - - 4,409 - - -
Intangible assets 24 3,219,714 1,515,848 1,055,387 - - -
Land use rights 24 4,720 4,917 14,949 - - -
Retention monies 18 4,118 2,712 960 - - -
Deferred tax assets 25 16,940 18,357 15,919 - - -
Investment in subsidiaries 26 - - - 2,349,890 716,009 448,413
Interest in joint ventures 27 661,128 657,192 131,485 506,029 517,638 -
Interest in associates 28 557,703 414,525 14,534 - - -
Goodwill on consolidation 29 457,241 9,550 9,550 - - -
Amounts due from associate 19 19,5643 - - - - -
Total non-current assets 10,238,057 6,209,064 4,114,640 2,868,838 1,233,867 448,814
Total assets 12,244,818 8,166,621 6,655,251 5,037,386 3,488,378 2,676,046

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

31 December 2015

Group Company
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
Note 2015 2014 2014 2015 2014 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 30 1,017,417 749,098 601,841 17,380 14,141 27,857
Bills payable to banks 31 12,376 79,320 17,063 - - -
Tax payable 32,125 31,563 19,694 - - -
Amounts due to customers
for contract work 18 20,934 24,551 15,939 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries 19 - - - 133,193 4,270 4,020
Bank and other borrowings 32 1,937,976 922,958 1,408,462 10,469 10,709 -
Finance lease 33 16,667 33,333 34,330 - - -
Other liability 34 - 86,348 114,640 - 86,348 114,640
Total current liabilities 3,037,495 1,927,171 2,211,969 161,042 115,468 146,517
Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings 32 1,768,875 1,702,850 980,546 118,415 126,726 -
Finance lease 33 - 16,667 50,000 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 25 791,837 270,122 185,488 - - -
Other non-current liabilities 35 67,162 59,200 52,772 - - -
Total non-current liabilities 2,627,874 2,048,839 1,268,806 113,415 126,726 -
Capital, reserves and non-
controlling interests
Share capital 36 4,861,138 3,278,603 2,512,500 4,861,138 3,278,603 2,512,500
Treasury shares 37 (96) (96) (96) (96) (96) (96)
Retained earnings 797,571 491,519 225,549 107,746 109,251 55,229
Other reserves 38 (147,051) (165,747) (123,016) (205,859) (141,574) (38,104)
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 5,511,562 3,604,279 2,614,937 4,762,929 3,246,184 2,529,529
Non-controlling interests 1,067,887 586,332 559,539 - - -
Total equity 6,579,449 4,190,611 3,174,476 4,762,929 3,246,184 2,629,529
Total liabilities and equity 12,244,818 8,166,621 6,655,251 5,037,386 3,488,378 2,676,046

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2015
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Statements of Changes
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Statements of Changes in Equi

Year ended 31 December 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax 523,996 437,943
Adjustments:
Allowance (Reversal of) doubtful receivables, net (trade) 144 (2,594)
Reversal of doubtful receivables, net (non-trade) (9,003) (1,278)
Bad debts written off (trade) - 48
Allowance for inventories 1,046 -
Reversal of provision for foreseeable loss - (558)
Amortisation of intangible assets 105,291 65,620
Amortisation of land use rights 197 406
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11,162 10,578
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (999) 1,950
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiaries, net - (5,227)
Property, plant and equipment written off 126 -
Finance income (10,441) (48,847)
Finance expenses 169,853 151,295
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in a subsidiary - (4,469)
Share of results of joint ventures (566,207) (52,732)
Share of results of associates (22,038) (7,655)
Foreign exchange gain (8,570) (4,215)
Fair value changes of other liability 5,190 (28,292)
Fair value gain from held-for-trading investment (278) -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 709,469 511,973
(Increase) Decrease in:
Inventories (722) (3,116)
Amounts due from to customers for contract work, net (2,576) 8,066
Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments (Note B and C) (118,778) (147,655)
Bills receivables 2,040 (2,138)
Receivables under service concession arrangements (609,495) (66,445)
Amounts due from associate (20,243) 89
Amounts due from joint venture (150) (1,437)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (inclusive of non-current liabilities) (Note A) 100,116 (81,530)
Bills payable (66,944) 62,257
Cash (used in) generated from operations (7,283) 280,064
Interest received 8,729 48,846
Income tax paid (65,112) (44,561)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities (63,666) 284,349

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,257) (17,884)
Purchase of intangible assets and land use rights (41,230) (134,533)
Proceeds from grants 7,300 50,023
(Decrease) Increase in prepayment for property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets (3,620) 11,921
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 16,375 941
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) (598,542) (228,542)
Prepayment for investment in a subsidiary (288,188) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a joint venture - (530,000)
Investment in available-for-sale financial instruments (12,567) (122,255)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of an associate - (405,000)
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (Note A) - 12,303
Investment in held-for-trading financial instrument (18,476) -
Dividend received from joint ventures 36,454 38,771
Net cash used in investing activities (923,751) (1,324,255)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 1,485,525 747,787
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (631,792) (903,375)
Repayment under finance leaseback arrangement (83,333) (34,330)
Interest paid (174,732) (153,718)
Settlement of dividend payables due to former shareholder - (43,163)
Advanced contribution from non-controlling interests for future
additional capital injection of a subsidiary 46,000 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (107,634) (6,900)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (Note D) (18,591) (15,254)
Proceeds from share placement, net of share issue costs - 750,516
Decrease in pledged bank deposits (9,364) (86,703)
Net cash from financing activities 656,079 304,860
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (331,338) (735,046)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,119,272 1,878,834
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,294 (24,516)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 795,228 1,119,272

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015

Non-cash transactions
Note A:

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed its subsidiary, Kunming Nanfang Water
Co., Ltd. (“Kunming Nanfang”) for proceeds of RMB14,503,000 (Note 41) to its non-controlling shareholder, of
which the entire amount was offset against trade and other payables.

Note B:

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed certain intangible assets for proceeds
of RMB26,402,000, of which the entire amount was not received as at 31 December 2014 and recorded under
other receivables. The entire amount had been received during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Note C:
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed its investment property for proceeds of
RMB4,409,000 (Note 23), of which the entire amount was not received as at 31 December 2014 and recorded

under other receivables. The entire amount had been received during the financial year ended 31 December
2015.

Note D:

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s subsidiaries had declared RMB15,254,000 of
dividend to non-controlling interests, of which RMB10,354,000 had been paid and remaining RMB4,900,000 has
been paid during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s subsidiaries have declared RMB19,191,000 of

dividend to non-controlling interests, of which RMB13,691,000 has been paid and remaining RMB5,500,000 is
unsettled as at year end.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

2.1

GENERAL

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company, incorporated and domiciled
in the Republic of Singapore and is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the
“SGX-ST”). The Group’s immediate and ultimate holding companies are S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited
(“SI”) incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.
(“SIIC”) incorporated in Hong Kong respectively. The registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192. Related
companies in these financial statements refer to members of the ultimate holding company’s group of
companies.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in Notes 26, 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is Renminbi (‘RMB”) as the Group’s operations are
substantially based in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of FRS 102 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in FRS 2 Inventories
or value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Adoption of new and revised standards

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRSs
and Interpretation of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are effective and are relevant to its operations.

The adoption of these new or revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the Group’s and
Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior
years.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new/revised FRSs, INT FRSs and
amendments to FRS that are relevant to the Group and the Company were issued but not effective
include:

o FRS 109 Financial Instruments?

o FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

o Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative'
° Improvements to Financial Reporting Standards (November 2014) '

! Applies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1 2016, with early application permitted.

2 Applies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1 2018, with early application permitted.

Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new/revised
standards.

FRS 109 Financial Instruments

FRS 109 was issued in December 2014 to replace FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and introduced new requirements for (i) the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities (i) general hedge accounting (iii) impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of FRS 109:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of FRS 39 are now required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at FVTPL at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under FRS 109, entities
may make an irrevocable election, at initial recognition, to measure an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) at FVTOCI, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With some exceptions, financial liabilities are generally subsequently measured at amortised cost. With
regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, FRS 109 requires that the
amount of change in fair value of such financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk be
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch to profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to the financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Adoption of new and revised standards (cont’d)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, FRS 109 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under FRS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in FRS 39. Under FRS 109, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In November 2014, FRS 115 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to
use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. FRS 115 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including FRS 18 Revenue, FRS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of FRS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contracts with a customer.

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under FRS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in FRS 115 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by FRS 115.

Management anticipates that the initial application of the new FRS 109 and FRS 115 will result in changes
to the accounting policies. Additional disclosures will also be required, including any significant judgement
and estimation made. It is currently impracticable to disclose any further information on the known
or reasonably estimable impact to the entity’s financial statements in the period of initial application as
management has yet to complete its detailed assessment.

Other than the above, management has considered and is of the view that the adoption of the
amendments and improvements to FRSs that are issued as at date of authorisation of these financial
statements but effective only in future periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements in
the period of their initial adoption.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the

amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries (cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly
to retained earnings as specified/ permitted by applicable FRSs) in the same manner as would be required
if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, interest in associates and interest in
joint ventures are carried at cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in
profit or loss.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with FRS 12 Income Taxes and FRS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment awards transactions with share-based payment
awards transactions of the acquirer in accordance with the method in FRS 102 Share-based
Payment (see the accounting policy in respect of “Employee benefits” below) at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the
business combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is
recognised as “Gain from bargain purchase” in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another FRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Business combinations (cont’d)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred in business combination.
Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted retrospectively against the cost of acquisition where
they qualify as measurement period adjustments. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about the facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with FRS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in the acquired
entity are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains control) and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquired
entity prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed
of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities under common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are excluded from FRS 103
Business Combinations, and are accounted for in the following manner:

° recording of assets and liabilities at previous carrying values; and

° recognition of the difference between purchase consideration and net assets transferred as an
adjustment to equity via merger reserve.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements items of the combining entities
or business in which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes the results of each of the combining entities or
business from the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as if the entities or

business had been combined at the end of previous reporting period or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the cash-generating unit (“*CGU”), or
groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing
the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributed amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or a joint venture is described
below.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have rights to the net
assets, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for under FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. The financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interest in associates and joint ventures (cont’d)

The requirements of FRS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with FRS
36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less cost to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
FRS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with FRS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from the disposal of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain and loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts of all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets and liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from the equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a Group entity transacts with its associate or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Service concession arrangements

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the
grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the Group
for the right to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an unconditional
right to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified or determinable
amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of the public service and
specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the Group ensuring that the
infrastructure meets specified quality of efficiency requirements. The financial asset (receivable under
service concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial
instruments” below.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

2.8

29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Service concession arrangements (cont’d)

Consideration given by the grantor (cont’d)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group receives a right to
charge users of the public service. The intangible assets (operating concession) are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss and are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible
asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognised initially at
the fair value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue and costs relating to construction phase of a concession arrangement is accounted for in
accordance to FRS 11 Construction Contracts. The Group recognised the construction revenue with
reference to the fair value of the construction service delivered in the construction phase. The fair value of
such service is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to the prevailing market rate of gross margin
and borrowing rates. Consequently, the Group recognised a profit margin on the construction work by
reference to the stage of completion and in accordance with the policy for “Construction contracts” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue
recognition (operating and maintenance income)” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfil as a condition of its licence for operating
concessions, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability and/or (b) to
restore the infrastructure to a specified condition before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of
the service concession arrangement, these contractual obligations to maintain or restore the infrastructure
are recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions” below.

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract including construction or upgrade services of the
infrastructure under a service concession arrangement, can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the
amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are

recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and
o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Construction revenue

Income from construction contracts is recognised as set out in the accounting policy for “Construction
contracts” and “Service concession arrangements” above.

Operating and maintenance income/ Service income

Operating and maintenance income relates to the income derived from managing and operating of
infrastructure under service concession arrangements. All other income derived from the managing and
operating of infrastructure under non-service concession arrangements is classified as service income.

Both operating and maintenance income and service income are recognised when services are rendered.
Other revenue
Other revenue is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the service period as services are rendered.

Revenue from the installation of water meters is recognised to the extent of the expenses recognised that
are recoverable or when the service is completed.

Financial income

Financial income from service concession arrangement is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Financial
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, including properties
under construction for such purpose. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent expenditures (including refurbishment and decoration)
incurred for investment property is capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment property.

The Group has adopted the cost model which is to measure investment property at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. Investment property has a useful life of 30 years.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life. The carrying values of
investment property is reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment property (cont’d)

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. When significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value over their estimated useful
lives. Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as these
assets are not available for use.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Plants and machinery

Furniture, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles

Leasehold buildings and improvement

5 to 25 years
4 to 8 years

510 10 years
5 to 35 years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit
derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB as the Group’s operations are
substantially based in the PRC. The functional currency of the Company is S$. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under “translation
reserve” in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies (cont’d)
Consolidated financial statements

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations (including comparatives) are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
(including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the header of “translation reserve”.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously
been attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
venture that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
(including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the header of
“translation reserve”. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Government grants (cont’d)

Specially, government grants whose condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised taken to the grants received in advance in the first instance.
Subsequently, the government grant is recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position when assets are available for use and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss as government subsidies in the period in which they become receivable.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted in countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, interest in associates and interest in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax (cont’d)

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively), or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business
combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating
goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.

Intangible assets (except for Goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately excluding operating concessions

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each financial year end, with the effects of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy in respect of “Impairment
of non-financial assets” below).

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation:

Patent and licensing rights - 10 years
Computer software - 3 to 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of “Impairment of non-financial assets” below).

Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent (i) the rights to charge users of the public service for the water supply
contracts, which fall within the scope of INT FRS 112 Service Concession Arrangements; (i) the rights
under the service concession arrangements for the wastewater treatment allows the Group to receive
and treat wastewater above the minimum amount of guaranteed volume, at a predetermined tariff rate
during the concessionary period acquired in a business combination; and (iii) rights to operate and manage
wastewater treatment plants acquired in a business combination.

The operating concessions are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss. The operating concessions acquired in a business combination are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Amortisation is provided on straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the operating concessions granted to the Group of 7 to 50 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Intangible assets (except for Goodwill) (cont’d)

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities (where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised) is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation. They are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms of 20
to 50 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and conditions are accounted for using the weighted average cost
basis.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the
carrying values of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the inventories, less all estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discount estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income and expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
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Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial Assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three categories, including loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the
trade date. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
(see accounting policy on “Impairment of financial assets” below). Interest is recognised by applying the
effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest is immaterial.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

The Group classifies the following financial assets as loans and receivables:
o Cash and cash equivalents

U Pledged bank deposits

° Trade and other receivables, including retention monies

° Amounts due from customers for contract work

° Bills receivables

° Receivables under service concession arrangements

° Amounts due from subsidiaries, joint venture and associate

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVTPL. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

Available-for-sale equity investments that are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
° It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

° On initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

o The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and FRS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 20.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the investment have been impacted.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
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Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When a trade and other receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value after an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
° It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

° It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

o On initial recognition, the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and FRS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015 97



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

2.22

2.23

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (cont’d)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and subsequently
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 34.

Other financial liabilities

The Group measures the following other financial liabilities initially at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

° Trade and other payables (excluding provision and customer advances)

° Bills payable to banks

o Amounts due to subsidiaries

° Bank and other borrowings

e Finance lease

° Other non-current liabilities (excluding provision and government grant received in advance)

In particular, for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over
the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
below).

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured at their fair value and, if not designated as a FVTPL,
subsequently at the higher of the amount of obligation under the contract recognised as a provision in
accordance with FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation in accordance with FRS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when the Group’s obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Treasury shares

When shares are reacquired by the Company, the amount of consideration paid is recognised directly in
equity. Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares and presented as a deduction from total equity.
Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullified for the Company and no dividends are allocated to
them respectively.

Where the treasury shares are cancelled, a reduction by the total amount of the purchase price paid by
the Company for the treasury shares cancelled will be made to the “share capital” or “retained earnings” of
the Company where the treasury shares, depending if the treasury shares are purchased out of “capital” or
“profits” respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Treasury shares (cont’d)

When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to equity compensation plans, the cost
of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury share account and the realised gain or loss on sale or
reissue, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs, is recognised in the capital reserve.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
e made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provisions, including those arising from the contractual obligation specified in
the service concession arrangement to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed over to the
grantor, are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. At the end of the subsequent reporting periods, contingent liabilities are remeasured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it
has operations.

In particular, Singapore companies make contributions to the Central Provident Fund in Singapore, a
defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to pension schemes are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related service is performed.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries outside Singapore make contributions to their respective countries’
pension schemes. Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
service is performed.

Benefits to ex-employees

The benefits are payable to certain categories of ex-employees up till their retirement age or death as
provided for in the financial statements based on the requirement under the PRC regulations. The
obligation is calculated using the staff entitlements at point of termination and is discounted to its present
value.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Employees (including Directors) of the Group and employees (including Directors) of the ultimate holding
company who have contributed to the success and development of the Company and/or the Group are
entitled to receive remuneration in the form of share options as consideration for services rendered. The
cost of these equity-settled transactions with option holders is measured by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and
non-vesting conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (cont’d)

This cost is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve, over the
vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of options
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for options that do not ultimately vest, except for options where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vested irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied. In the case where the option does not vest as the result of a failure to meet a
non-vesting condition that is within the control of the Group or the option holder, it is accounted for as a
cancellation. In such case, the amount of the compensation cost that otherwise would be recognised over
the remainder of the vesting period is recognised immediately in profit or loss upon cancellation. The share
option reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the share options. When the options are
exercised, the share option reserve is transferred to share capital if new shares are issued, or to treasury
shares if the options are satisfied by the reissuance of treasury shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated.

Any impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss through the “Other
expenses” line item.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment loss may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset
is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such
a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Critical judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Judgement made by management in the application of FRSs that has a significant effect on the financial
statements and in arriving at estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial
year is discussed below.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with certain governmental
authorities or their agencies (“grantor”) in the PRC on a Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”), Transfer-
Operate-Transfer (“TOT”), Build-Operate-Own (“BOQ”) or Transfer-Operate-Own (“TOQO”) basis in respect
of its businesses. The Group concluded that these BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO arrangements are service
concession arrangements under INT FRS 112, because (i) the grantors control and regulate the services
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to whom the Group must provide the services and at a
pre-determined service charge; and (ii) the grantor controls significant residual interest in the infrastructure
at the end of the term of the arrangements. Generally, in respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon
expiry of service concession arrangements, the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
authorities or their agencies at no or minimal consideration. Infrastructure in respect of BOO and TOO
arrangements is expected to be used for its entire or substantially entire useful life.

As explained in Note 2.8 to the financial statements, the Group recognises the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as a financial asset and/or an intangible asset under
public-to-private concession arrangement. However, if the Group is paid for the construction services
partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately for each
component of the operator’s consideration. The consideration received or receivable for both components
shall be recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable (see below).

Determination of functional currency of the entities in the Group

FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires the Company and the entities in
the Group to determine its functional currency to prepare the financial statements. When determining
its functional currency, the Company and the entities in the Group consider the primary economic
environment in which it operates, i.e. the one in which it primarily generates and expends cash. The
Company and the entities in the Group may also consider the funding sources. Management applied its
judgement and determined that the functional currency of the Company and subsidiary incorporated in
Singapore is Singapore dollars.

Determination of material entities (subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates) and non-wholly
owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest

For purposes of meeting the requirements under FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, the
Group has assessed all subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which the Group has an interest based
on (i) quantitative factors (i.e. their individual contribution to the Group’s net profit and/or statement of
financial position); and (ii) qualitative factors. Management applied its judgement in determining the
material subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates; and non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interest. During the year, management had reassessed the disclosure requirements of non-
wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest. The re-assessment resulted in such
disclosure to be made at a sub-group level instead of individual entity level which will further enhance the
disclosure. Information as required under FRS 112 are disclosed under Notes 26, 27 and 28.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of each reporting period, when the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably.
The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.

Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contract
costs incurred, the estimated total revenue and estimated total contract cost, as well as the recoverability
of the contract costs incurred. Total contract revenue may include an estimation of the variation works
recoverable from the customers. In making these estimates, management has relied on past experience
and knowledge of project engineers.

The stage of completion of each construction contract is assessed on a cumulative basis in each
accounting year. Changes in estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a change in
the estimate of the outcome of a contract could impact the amount of revenue and expense recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which the change is made and in subsequent years. Such impact could
potentially be significant.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising from construction contracts at the end of each
reporting period are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

The Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB523,373,000 (2014: RMB441,604,000) from
construction contracts, of which RMB472,734,000 (2014: RMB231,900,000) relates to revenue
recognised for the third party constructed infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangements.
The overall gross profit margin for construction contracts is at 12.5% (2014: 4.2%), of which the gross
profit margin recognised for third party constructed infrastructure in relation to service concession
arrangements is 12% (2014: 12%).

Service concession arrangements

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession arrangements, the consideration
for the services provided under the concession arrangements is allocated to the components by reference
to their relative fair values.

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the receivables under service concession
arrangements as well as impairment of the receivables under service concession arrangements and
intangible assets subsequent to initial recognition. Discount rates (reflecting the grantor’s incremental
borrowing rates), estimates of future cash flows and other factors are used in the determination of the
amortised cost of financial asset and corresponding finance income. The Group has considered the
relevant sources of the discount rate and due to limited publicly available information on the borrowing
rates across the various municipalities and cities in PRC, the Group assessed that the use of the People’s
Bank of China basic lending rate for loans greater than five years as the discount rate reflects the long-
term borrowing cost in PRC which is a reasonable proxy of the grantor’s incremental borrowing rate for the
Group as a whole.

The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value estimates. The carrying
amount of the Group’s financial receivables and intangible assets arising from service concession
arrangements at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Notes 17 and 24 to the financial
statements respectively.

During the financial year, the Group has also recognised operating and maintenance revenue from service
concession arrangements amounting to RMB751,172,000 (2014: RMB697,008,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain the
waste water and water treatment plants to a specified level of serviceability and/or to restore the plants
to a specified condition before they are handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession
periods. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water treatment plants,
except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance with FRS 37 Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these
maintenance and restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2015, the provision for major overhauls amounted to RMB12,601,000
(2014: RMB12,405,000) (Note 35).

Impairment of loans and receivables

During the financial year, the Group has written back allowance for doubtful receivables
(net of allowance during the year) amounting to RMB8,859,000 (2014: Net write-back of RMB3,872,000).

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors
such as probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, management makes an assessment as to whether any
impairment loss should be recorded. In determining this, management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between the estimated loss and actual loss experience. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of loans and receivables.

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan and receivables at the end of each reporting period is disclosed
in Notes 12, 13, 14, 17, 18 and 19 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets and available-for-sale financial instruments

The Group assesses whether there is any indicator of impairment for all available-for-sale financial
instruments and non-financial assets including investment in subsidiaries, interest in joint ventures and
associates, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, land use rights and goodwill, at each
reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and at other times when such indicators
exist. Other non-financial assets and available-for-sale financial instruments are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets and available-for-sale financial instruments (cont’d)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to
sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the
asset or cash generating unit for 5 years or for the remaining concession period, whichever applicable, and
do not include restructuring activities that the Group has yet to commit or significant future investments that
will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable assumptions and projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow
model, the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Further details
of the key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill, are given in Note 29 to the
financial statements. The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial instruments and non-financial
assets are disclosed in Notes 21, 22, 24, 26, 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences can be utilised, including taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or there is future taxable profit available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. This involves judgement regarding the future
performance and tax laws. The carrying amounts of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in
Note 25.

Income tax

The Group is subjected to income taxes in Singapore and PRC. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact
the income tax provision in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of the
Group’s income tax payable at 31 December 2015 is RMB32,125,000 (2014: RMB31,563,000).

Purchase price allocation

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) is recorded as goodwill.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Purchase price allocation (cont’d)

The determination of the identifiable assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) fair value is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash
inflows.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date is disclosed in Note 40 to the
financial statements.

4. REVENUE
Group

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Construction revenue 523,373 441,604

Operating and maintenance income from service
concession arrangements 751,172 697,008
Financial income from service concession arrangements 336,171 216,656
Service income 117,986 116,568
Others 75,094 32,598

1,803,796 1,604,434

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Installation of water meters 17,716 12,965
Foreign exchange gain 220 16,283
Others 13,891 7,030

31,827 36,278
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6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

This is determined after charging (crediting) the following items:

Group
Note 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Allowance for doubtful receivables (trade) 13 906 545
Reversal of allowance for doubtful receivables (trade) 13 (762) (8,139)
Allowance for doubtful receivables (non-trade) 13 92 3,510
Reversal of allowance for doubtful receivables
(non-trade) 13 (9,095) (4,788)
Bad debts written off (trade) - 48
Reversal of provision for foreseeable loss - (558)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 22 11,162 10,578
Amortisation of intangible assets 24 105,291 65,620
Amortisation of land use rights 24 197 406
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (999) 1,950
Allowance for inventories 1,046 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 126 -
Fair value gain from held-for-trading investment (278) -
Fair value loss (gain) of other liability 34 5,190 (28,292)
Gain from bargain purchase of investment
in a subsidiary 40 - (4,469)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 41 - (5,227)
Operating lease expense 5,571 5,563
Foreign exchange gain, net (220) (16,283)
Research costs 2,350 1,739
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 102,741 121,229
Transaction costs incurred in acquisitions © 6,008 7,247
Audit fees:
- paid to auditors of the Company 1,610 1,756
- paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company 2,652 2,067
- paid to other auditors (inclusive of internal audit fee) 1,837 4,343
Total audit fees 6,099 8,166
Non-audit fees:
- paid to auditors of the Company 226 379
- paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company 329 264
- paid to other auditors 60 61
Total non-audit fees () 615 704
@) This amount includes fees of RMB1,432,000 (2014: RMB3,061,000) paid to member firm of the auditors of the
Company.
* Total non-audit fees include agreed-upon services and review of selected financial information. The amount excludes

transaction costs incurred in acquisition of subsidiaries as indicated in the note (*) above.
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7. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wages, salaries and bonuses 185,924 138,133
Defined contribution plans 39,183 29,144
Others 20,157 16,335
245,264 183,612

This includes amounts shown as compensation of Directors and key management personnel in
Note 45.

8. FINANCE INCOME (EXPENSES)

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Finance income
Interest income from bank balances 8,728 8,911
Interest income from late settlement of certain trade receivables @ - 37,850
Others 1,713 2,086
10,441 48,847
Finance expenses
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borrowings (166,826) (144,572)
Financial expense on amortisation of retention monies - (686)
Financial expense on amortisation of benefits to ex-employees (1,662) (1,262)
Others (1,365) (4,775)
(169,853) (151,295)
(@) During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group received interest income from a customer relating to

overdue payment on certain trade receivables of a waste water treatment plant, at interest rate ranging from 6.86% to
8.57% per annum.
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OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Other income
Government subsidies 54,471 12,725
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiaries, net (Note 41) - 5,227
Reversal of accrual 12,903 -
Fair value changes on other liability (Note 34) - 28,292
Others 521 -
67,895 46,244
Other expenses
Fair value changes on other liabilty (Note 34) (5,190) -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Current tax
- Current year 67,294 58,735
- Under (Over) provision in respect of prior years 1,604 91)
Deferred tax
- Current year 32,827 23,614
- Overprovision in respect of prior years (2,141) (6,310)
99,584 75,948

The corporate income tax applicable to the Singapore companies of the Group is 17% (2014: 17%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards. In accordance with the “Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Foreign Enterprises”, certain subsidiaries, engaging in public infrastructure projects, are
entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first three years and a 50% reduction in EIT for the next three
years from the first year of generating operating income. In addition, a subsidiary has obtained approval
from local tax authority, under West Area Development Scheme and is entitled a 50% reduction in EIT for

eight years starting from year of approval.
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

statement of profit or loss as follows:

before tax per the consolidated

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Profit before tax 523,996 437,943
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to in the countries
where the Group operates @ 118,416 92,921
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses 8,467 17,045
Income not subject to tax (1,076) (15,094)
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses (10,746) (943)
Overprovision in respect of prior years (5637) (6,401)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures (19,795) (15,097)
Deferred tax asset not recognised 6,675 5,213
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets (1,827) (4,878)
Deferred tax recognised in current year arising from temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of PRC entities - 3,224
Others 7 (42)
99,584 75,948
(a) The reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national jurisdiction.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) attributable to owners of the Company

is based on the following data:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Earnings figures are calculated as follows:
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS
(profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company) 360,390 290,708
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D)

2015 2014
No. of No. of
shares shares
000 ’000
(Restated)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic EPS 2,136,918 1,835,317
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
- Contingent “earn-out” consideration in relation to the acquisition
of Nanfang Water Group (Note 34) - 2,970
Weighted average number of ordinary share for the purpose of
diluted EPS 2,136,918 1,838,287

The audited statutory financial targets in relation to the contingent “earn-out” for the financial year ended
31 December 2012 (“FY2012”) and 31 December 2013 (“FY2013”) have been met as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2014 respectively. Accordingly, the total earn-out shares of 23,760,362 for both
FY2012 and FY2013 have been included in the basic EPS computation for FY2014, notwithstanding
that the shares have not been issued as at 31 December 2014. Based on the management accounts
of Nanfang Water Group, the contingent condition for FY2014 has been met as at 31 December 2014
even though the earn-out shares have not been issued as at 31 December 2014. Accordingly the impact
of FY2014 earn-out shares (2,970,045 shares) has been included in the diluted EPS computation. The
Company has issued the 26,730,407 shares during the current financial year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/ PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash and bank balances 871,996 1,182,676 69,565 156,022
Pledged bank deposits (Note 44) (76,768) (63,404) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 795,228 1,119,272 69,565 156,022

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the Group included short-term deposits of
RMB3 million (2014: RMB Nil) with annual interest rate of 3.8%, which involved guaranteed principal
placed with banks for earning short-term interest. Cash and cash equivalents have maturity period of less
than three months and carry interest at market rate, ranging from 0.01% to 1.27% (2014: 0.01% to 1%)
per annum.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted by these banks and
use of certain operating concessions. The pledged bank deposits have maturity period of less than one
year (2014 less than one year) and carry interest at fixed interest rates ranging from 2.05% to 3.25%
(2014: 2.30% to 3.0%) per annum and floating interest rates of 0.35% (2014: 0.35% to 2.75%) per annum.

RMB714 million (2014: RMB935 million) of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held with PRC

banks and are subject to certain restrictions based on rules and regulations issued by State Administration
of Foreign Exchange in PRC.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables [inclusive of
retention monies (Note 18)] 538,727 423,233 - 272
Less: Allowance for doubtful
receivables (22,491) (11,458) - (272)
516,236 411,775 - -
Other receivables 360,665 173,407 7,228 650
Less: Allowance for doubtful
receivables (12,707) (13,564) - -
347,958 159,843 7,228 650
Total trade and other receivables 864,194 571,618 7,228 650

0] Trade receivables exclusive of retention monies are non-interest bearing with credit periods generally
ranging from 0 to 180 (2014: O to 180) days.

(ii) Trade receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.

(iii) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful receivables,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within 30 days 124,162 99,353
Within 31 to 60 days 63,085 83,088
Within 61 to 90 days 41,709 36,056
Within 91 to 180 days 79,807 58,600
Within 181 to 365 days 139,830 76,024
Over 365 days 67,643 58,654
516,236 411,775
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V)

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB307,486,000 (2014: RMB291,765,000) that

are past due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired. The Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful receivables because management is of the opinion that the amounts will be

fully recoverable as there has not been a significant deterioration in credit quality of the debtors. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these receivables and the analysis of their aging (based on

invoice date) at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within 30 days 31,398 42,347
Within 31 to 60 days 24,288 65,694
Within 61 to 90 days 20,524 23,749
Within 91 to 180 days 69,680 50,541
Within 181 to 365 days 120,254 69,750
Over 365 days 41,342 39,684
307,486 291,765

Trade receivables past due and impaired

The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting
period and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables 71,035 32,873 - 272
Less: Allowance for doubtful
receivables (22,491) (11,458) - (272)
48,544 21,415 - -
Movements in the allowance of doubtful receivables (trade)
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At beginning of the year 11,458 14,971 272 -
Allowance made during
the year (Note 6) 906 545 - 272
Reversal of allowance during
the year (Note 6) (762) (3,139) - -
Written of allowance during
the year (272) - (272) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary 11,161 163 - -
Disposal of a subsidiary - (1,072) - -
Exchange difference - (10) - -
At end of the year 22,491 11,458 - 272
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

14.

(v)

Trade receivables past due and impaired (cont’d

)

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting
period relate to debtors that are slow in making payments or are in significant financial
difficulties and have defaulted on payments.

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB160,206,000 (2014: RMB98,595,000)
that are not past due and not impaired at the end of the reporting period.

Other receivables

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair values. These amounts are
non-trade and unsecured.

As at 31 December 2015, other receivables mainly comprise (i) refundable deposits of
RMB100 million; (i) advance to a related company of RMB52,300,000 which is repayable on
demand, interest-free and unsecured; (iiij) non-interest-bearing amount due from third parties
of RMB91,854,000 which are repayable on demand and (iv) government grant receivables of
RMB36,970,000.

As at 31 December 2014, other receivables mainly comprise () refundable deposits of
RMB19,909,000; (i) government grant receivables of RMB36,970,000; and (i) non-interest
bearing amount due from third parties of RMB60,000,000, which are repayable on demand.

Included in other receivables is allowance for doubtful receivables (non-trade) as follows:

Movements in the allowance of doubtful receivables (hon-trade):

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
At beginning of the year 13,564 14,839
Allowance made during the year (Note 6) 92 3,510
Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 6) (9,095) (4,788)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 8,146 3
At end of the year 12,707 13,564
BILLS RECEIVABLES
Bills receivables are non-interest bearing with credit periods generally ranging from 90 to 180

(2014: 90 to 180) days.
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15. PREPAYMENTS

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Prepayments to suppliers 9,276 10,372 - -
Others 5,497 4,972 1,535 3,048
Total prepayment, current 14,773 15,344 1,635 3,048
Prepayment for assets relating to
service concession arrangements @ 47,802 118,095 - -
Prepayment for intangible assets 99 450 - -
Prepayments for property, plant
and equipment 274 - - -
Prepayment for investment
in subsidiary © 288,188 - - -
Total prepayment, non-current 336,363 118,545 - -
() Relates mainly to prepayment made for certain infrastructure relating to BOT and TOT service concession

arrangements entered during the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

(b) A prepayment was made for purchase consideration for acquisition of 90% equity interest in Yiyang City Tap Water
Co., Ltd.

16. INVENTORIES

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Inventories 20,768 20,887

Inventories comprise consumable supplies held for internal use.
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17.

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group through its subsidiaries engages in the businesses of waste water treatment, water supply
and waste incineration in the PRC (the “operator”) and has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC on a BOT, TOT, BOO
or TOO basis in respect of its businesses. These service concession arrangements generally involve the
Group as an operator to (i) construct waste water treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants
for those arrangements on a BOT and BOO basis; (i) pay a specific amount for those arrangements on
a TOT and TOO basis; or (i) operate and maintain the waste water treatment, water supply and waste
incineration plants at a specified level of serviceability on behalf of the relevant governmental authorities
for periods ranging from 20 to 33 years (the “service concession periods”), and the Group will be paid for
its services over the relevant periods of the service concession arrangements at prices stipulated through
pricing mechanism. The plants will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the service
concession periods for BOT and TOT.

The Group is generally entitled to operate all the property, plant and equipment of the waste water
treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants, however, the relevant governmental authorities as
grantors control and regulate the scope of services the Group provides to the waste water treatment,
water supply and waste incineration plants, and retain the beneficial entitlement to any residual interest
in the waste water treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants at the end of the service
concession periods. Each of these service concession arrangements is governed by a contract and, where
applicable, supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the relevant governmental
authorities or their agencies in the PRC that set out, inter alia, performance standards, mechanisms for
adjusting prices for the services rendered by the Group, specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the waste water treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants to a specified level of serviceability
at the end of the service concession periods, and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 42 (2014: 34) service concession arrangements on waste
water treatment, 4 (2014: 4) service concession arrangement on water treatment and distribution and
1 (2014: 1) service concession arrangement on waste incineration. A summary of the major terms of the
principal service concession arrangements with a contracted design capacity of 100,000 tons/day or more
entered into by the Group’s subsidiaries is set out below:
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
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Name of subsidiary Project name | Location in Name of Type of Contracted |Service
as operator PRC grantor service daily design | concession
concession | capacity period
arrangement | (tons/day)
Wuhan Hanxi I PET57K | Dongxihu, KM AR  |BOT 600,000 @ 30 years
Wastewater Treatment | AbFEI H — Hubei Province | BURF (Financial from 2004 @
Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan W& g assets)
Hanxi”) s
Weifang City Tap Water | #idi i F1 k7K | Weifang, Hebii AR BOT 320,000 25 years
Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Tap | fft/K 5 H Shandong BURF (Intangible from 2007
Water”) Province assets)
Shenzhen City Nanfang | 3T 5 — | Shenzhen, HINTKS S |BOT 200,000 © 22 years
Water Co., Ltd. Ay5 KA Guangdong (Financial from 2009
(“Shenzhen Nanfang”) | Bl H Province assets)
Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi | B s 5[X | Huang-Pi, T ERE X | BOT 260,000 30 years
Water Services Co., Atk H Hubei BURF (Intangible from 2008
Ltd. (“Wuhan Huang- Province assets)
PP”)
Huizhou City Nanfang | E/H i #51/K | Huizhou, HUNTH MRS | BOT and TOT | 300,000 © 25 years
Water Co., Ltd. AEPRTH — Guangdong (Financial from 2005
(“Huizhou Nanfang”) W= & =8 |Province assets)
TjiH
Weifang Shanghai IR TS | Weifang, HebiT AR BOT 200,000 30 years
Environment JKALEE]3EY | Shandong BURF (Financial from year of
Wastewater Treatment | 2235 H Province assets) commencement
Co., Ltd. of operation @
Tianmen Kaidi Water | RI T3 X 4 | Tianmen, Hubei | K Tilid#Z |BOT and TOT | 150,000 25 years
Services Co., Ltd. JKIH Province AR (Intangible from 2005
assets)
Huangshi Kaidi Water | # 4 i féi#i5 | Huangshi, HWATHEA | BOT (Financial | 125,000 27 years
Services Co., Ltd. K Ab 3815 Hubei Province | /& assets) from 2008
Chenzhou Nanfang MM 75K 4L | Chenzhou, MO TR TR | BOT 120,000 25 years
Wastewater Treatment | BRI F Hunan Province | HiJ5) (Financial from 2003
Co., Ltd. assets)
Shanghai Qingpu FE 57K | Qingpu, Li#TERX | BOO and 120,000 30 years
Second Wastewater AEFRTH Shanghai K55 J TOO from 2008
Treatment (Financial
Co., Limited. assets)
SIIC Environment e TG KAL | Weifang, HWyiTAR | TOT 100,000 20 years
Holdings (Weifang) Co., | #£1i H Shandong B (Financial from 2004 ©
Ltd. (“SIIC Weifang”) Province assets)
SIIC Environment TEMITHGKAL | Dezhou, HEMNTEEE | TOT 100,000 20 years
Holdings (Dezhou) Co., | #E1i H Shandong e (Financial from 2006
Ltd. Province assets)
Dongguan City Dalang | 42£ 1 KEi5 | Dongguan, HREET KW | BOT 100,000 25 years
Shui Kou Xing Bao KA H Guangdong N REBUM (Financial from 2009
Water Treatment Co., Province assets)
Ltd. (“Dongguan Da
Lang”)
SIIC Environment FRITIEZEF5 | Yinchuan, I AR | BOT and TOT | 100,000 ® 30 years
(Yinchuan) Water KA EE T H Ningxia Hui (Financial from 2014 0
treatment Co., Ltd. Autonomous assets)
Region
Yuyao Xiaocaoe City | &x@kti (/N | Yuyao, AR |BOT 150,000 22 years
Wastewater Treatment | @) J5/K4b# | Zhejiang B (Financial from 2014
Co., Ltd. BOT Province assets)
Fengxian West RS | Fengxian, gk R | BOT 150,000 25 years
Wastewater Treatment |757K4b#E BOT | Shanghai (Financial from 2007
Co., Ltd. — 3 3 assets)
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(@

The existing plant of 400,000 tons/day design capacity is in operation. Phase 2 is currently under
construction and is expected to be completed in 2016, and is included under service concession
period in the above table.

The amount relates to contracted design capacity under service concession arrangement. The
total contracted design capacity of the project is 280,000 tons/day. The remaining 80,000 tons/day
relates to contracted design capacity under operation and management arrangement.

The existing plant of 200,000 tons/day design capacity is in operation. Phase 3 is currently under
construction and is expected to be completed in 2017 and is included under service concession
period in the above table.

The service concession arrangement agreement was signed in 2013. The plant is currently under
construction and is expected to be completed in 2016. The plant is expected to commence
operation in 2016.

The plant will cease operation after the plant under “IL &ML Hiy5 KALFR T Y @ W H” has
commenced operation.

The existing plant of 50,000 tons/day design capacity is in operation. Construction of phase 2 has
yet to commence, and is included under service concession period in the above table.

Receivables under service concession arrangements

As described in the accounting policy for “Service concession arrangements” set out in Note 2.8,
consideration given by the grantor for a service concession arrangement is accounted for as an intangible
asset (operating concessions) or a financial asset (receivables under service concession arrangements)
or a combination of both, as appropriate. The intangible asset component is detailed in Note 24, and the
financial asset component is as follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Receivables under service concession arrangements 4,787,646 3,325,717
LLess: Current portion classified as current assets (123,816) (92,899)
Non-current portion 4,663,830 3,232,818

During the current financial year, the Group recognised financial income of RMB336,171,000 (2014
RMB216,656,000) (Note 4) and construction revenue of RMB493,682,000 (2014: RMB350,802,000) as
revenue from service concession arrangements. The effective interest applied ranges from 5.40% to 7.83%
(2014 5.76% to 7.83%) per annum.

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.
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18.
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain the
waste water treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants to a specified level of serviceability and/
or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are handed over to the grantors at the end
of the service concession periods. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water
treatment, water supply and waste incineration plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with FRS 37, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these
maintenance and restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

Movements in provision for major overhauls are as follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
At beginning of the year 12,405 7,026
Provision made during the year 196 5,379
At end of the year (Note 35) 12,601 12,405

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK/
RETENTION MONIES

Group

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses 405,829 409,876
Less: Progress billings (357,983) (8364,410)
47,846 45,466

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Amounts due from customers for contract work 68,780 70,017
Amounts due to customers for contract work (20,934) (24,551)
47,846 45,466

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to RMB105,826,000 are classified under
other payables (2014: RMB87,982,000).

At 31 December 2015, net amount due from (to) customers for contract work of RMB47,486,000 have
been classified as current because they are expected to be realised in the normal operating cycle of the
construction projects.

Amounts due from customers for contract work included provision for foreseeable losses of RMB36,000
(2014: RMB36,000) as at year end.
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19.

20.

21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (l'_I'O) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK/
RETENTION MONIES (CONT’D)

The gross retentions held by customers for contract works are as follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current (included in trade receivables) @ 1,425 3,207

Non-current (as retention monies) © 4,118 2,712
5,543 5,919

(@) As at 31 December 2015, the allowance for doubtful retention monies amounted to RMB1,425,000 (2014:

RMB1,525,000).

(b) The non-current portion of retention sums are carried at amortised cost using a weighted average effective interest
rate of 4.90% (2014: 6.15%) per annum.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (RESTATED)

The amounts are non-trade, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand except for amount
due from associate amounting to RMB19,543,000 (2014: RMB Nil) which are not expected to be repaid
within the next 12 months from the end of reporting period.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENT

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Quoted equity shares, at fair value 19,222 -

The investments above include investments in quoted equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity
for return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The
fair values of these securities are based on closing quoted market prices on the last market day of the
financial year.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Listed equity securities © 176,376 124,354 - -
Unlisted equity securities ® 15,460 2,394 12,567 -
191,836 126,748 12,567 -
(@) The investment relates to a 3.3% equity interest in Canvest Environmental Protection Group Company Limited. At the

end of the reporting period, the investment is stated at fair value which is determined by reference to bid prices quoted
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) These investments represent ordinary and preference share in private companies. Management is of the view that the
fair value of unquoted shares cannot be measured reliably as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be assessed. Accordingly, the investment is stated at cost.
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Group
Leasehold
Furniture, buildings
Plant and fittings and Motor and Construction
machinery equipment vehicles improvement in-progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 51,658 9,892 22,682 48,982 - 133,214
Additions 555 1,166 5,116 249 11,220 18,306
Disposals (760) (116) (4,384) (554) - (5,814)
Disposal of (11) (187) (510) (55) - (763)
subsidiaries
(Note 41)
Acquisition of - 4,500 565 - 7,337 12,402
subsidiaries
(Note 40)
Government grant (4,500) - - - - (4,500)
utilised
Reclassification/ 6,228 267 1,231 2,119 (7,227) 2,618
Transfers
Exchange differences - 5) - (20) - (25)
At 31 December 2014 53,170 15,517 24,700 50,721 11,330 155,438
Additions 480 1,200 4,584 - 14,343 20,607
Disposals (16,097) (526) (1,021) (6,7006) (70)  (24,420)
Acquisition of 12 13 538 2,570 - 3,133
subsidiaries
(Note 40)
Reclassification/ 5,888 107 - 16,520 (22,515) -
Transfers
Exchange differences - 4) - (20) - (24)
At 31 December 2015 43,453 16,307 28,801 63,085 3,088 154,734

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Group
Leasehold
Furniture, buildings
Plant and fittings and Motor and Construction
machinery equipment vehicles improvement in-progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2014 8,431 6,147 9,559 13,394 - 37,531
Depreciation charge for the

year 3,604 1,427 2,583 2,964 - 10,578
Disposals (225) (75) (2,495) (70) - (2,865)
Disposals of subsidiaries (6) (72) (153) (23) - (254)
Transfers 1,060 267 1,231 60 - 2,618
Exchange differences - 3 - (19) - (22)
At 31 December 2014 12,864 7,691 10,725 16,306 - 47,586
Depreciation charge for the

year 3,128 1,654 2,989 3,491 - 11,162
Disposals (5,501) (433) (773) (2,211) - (8,918
Exchange differences - 3) - (14) - (17)
At 31 December 2015 10,491 8,809 12,941 17,572 - 49,813
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 32,962 7,498 15,860 45,513 3,088 104,921
At 31 December 2014 40,306 7,826 13,975 34,415 11,330 107,852

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

There were no borrowing costs capitalised during the financial year. Borrowing costs of RMB3,470,000
were capitalised at a borrowing rate ranging from 6.15% to 6.55% per annum during the financial year

ended 31 December 2014.

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.
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Company
Furniture,
fittings and Leasehold
equipment improvement Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost
At 1 January 2014 159 888 1,047
Additions 31 - 31
Exchange difference 5) (20) (25)
At 31 December 2014 185 868 1,053
Additions 335 - 335
Written off (27) - 27)
Exchange difference 4) (20) (24)
At 31 December 2015 489 848 1,337
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 98 548 646
Depreciation charge for the year 29 180 209
Exchange difference 3) (19) (22)
At 31 December 2014 124 709 833
Depreciation charge for the year 33 153 186
Written off (17) - (17)
Exchange difference 3) (14) (17)
At 31 December 2015 137 848 985
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 352 - 352
At 31 December 2014 61 159 220
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23. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January - 4,928
Disposals - (4,928)
At 31 December - -
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January - 519
Depreciation charge for the year - -
Disposals - (519
At 31 December - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December - -
(i) The Group’s investment property was situated in the PRC. The Group had no restriction on the

realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

(ii) During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, there was no property rental income earned by
the Group from its investment property. The direct operating expense was negligible.

(iii) During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of the investment property,
for a consideration of RMB4,409,000.
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Group
Patent & Total Land
Operating licensing Computer intangible use
concessions rights software assets rights
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 1,188,917 4,781 5260 1,198,958 16,507
Additions 162,878 - 32 162,910 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 40) 453,574 - 6 453,580 -
Government grant utilised (45,523) - - (45,523) -
Reclassification 1,157 - (1,157) - -
Disposals (23,174) - (115) (23,289) (10,471)
Disposals of subsidiaries (29,887) - (269) (30,156) -
At 31 December 2014 1,707,942 4,781 3,757 1,716,480 6,036
Additions 35,431 - 270 35,701 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 40) 1,773,456 - - 1,773,456 -
At 31 December 2015 3,516,829 4,781 4,027 3,525,637 6,036

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2014 112,729 3,737 3,105 119,571 1,558
Amortisation for the year 64,681 735 204 65,620 406
Disposals (6,489) - (27) (6,516) (845)
Disposals of subsidiaries (1,978) - (65) (2,043) -
Reclassification 213 - (213) - -
At 31 December 2014 169,156 4,472 3,004 176,632 1,119
Amortisation for the year 104,779 309 203 105,291 197
Reclassification 213 - (213) - -
At 31 December 2015 274,148 4,781 2,994 281,923 1,316

Accumulated impairment loss

At 1 January 2014,

31 December 2014 and

31 December 2015 24,000 - - 24,000 -

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 3,218,681 - 1,033 3,219,714 4,720

At 31 December 2014 1,614,786 309 7563 1,615,848 4,917

The relevant assets pledged by the Group including those under finance leaseback arrangements, are
disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.

Land use rights
The Group has land use rights over state-owned land in the PRC where the subsidiaries’ operations
reside. The land use rights are not transferable.
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25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS/LAND USE RIGHTS (CONT’D)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

There were no borrowing costs capitalised during the financial year. Borrowing costs of RMB322,000 were
capitalised at a borrowing rate ranging from 7.07% to 7.21% per annum during the financial year ended
31 December 2014.

Amortisation expense

The amortisation of intangible assets and land use rights relating to operating concessions is mainly
included in the “Cost of sales”, the amortisation of other intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales”,
“Selling and distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Impairment testing

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that there is no further
impairment on any intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group and movement thereon
during the current and prior years:

Arising
from Fair value
service Undistributed adjustments
concession earnings of on business Tax
arrangements PRC entities combinations  losses Others Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2014 94,662 15,999 77,329 (3,448) (14,973) 169,569
Charged (Credited)
to profit or loss 26,306 792 (4,353) 1,738 (7,179) 17,304
Acquisition of
subsidiaries
(Note 40) 30,672 - 40,525 - - 71,197
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (6,977) - 668 (6,309)
Exchange difference - 4 - - - 4
At 31 December 2014 151,640 16,795 106,524 (1,710)  (21,484) 251,765
Charged (Credited)
to profit or loss 40,768 - (14,157) (2,661) 6,736 30,686
Acquisition of
subsidiaries
(Note 40) 38,768 - 456,468 - (2,790) 492,446
At 31 December 2015 231,176 16,795 548,835 (4,371) (17,588) 774,897
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DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

For the purpose of presentation in the statements of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
pUrposes:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Deferred tax liabilities 791,837 270,122
Deferred tax assets (16,940) (18,357)
774,897 251,765

At the end of the reporting period, the Group have unused tax losses of approximately RMB69,191,000
(2014: RMB64,166,000) available for offset against future assessable profits.

As at 31 December 2015, certain subsidiaries have unused tax losses of approximately RMB6,553,000,
RMB1,174,000, RMB5,780,000, RMB23,118,000 and RMB32,566,000 (2014: RMB4,203,000,
RMB14,743,000, RMB7,512,000, RMB21,821,000 and RMB15,887,000) expiring 2016, 2017, 2018,
2019 and 2020 (2014: 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019) respectively.

A deferred tax asset amounting to approximately RMB4,371,000 (2014: RMB1,710,000) in respect of
tax losses amounting to approximately RMB17,484,000 (2014: RMB6,840,000) has been recognised for
the Group. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of the Group of
RMB51,707,000 (2014: RMB57,326,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the tax authorities and compliance with
certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the companies operate. The
use of PRC tax losses will expire within the next five years.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at end of the reporting period, the Group has
recognised deferred tax liability of RMB16,795,000 (2014: RMB16,795,000) in respect of undistributed
profits retained by PRC entities in the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Unquoted equity shares, at cost 2,375,841 783,929
Effects of exchange rate changes (25,951) (67,920)
2,349,890 716,009

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of view that there is no impairment loss
required.

Particulars of the Group’s significant subsidiaries as at 31 December are as follows:

Percentage of
effective equity
interest and

Place of voting power
incorporation held by the Group
and 2015 2014

Name of subsidiaries operation Principal Activities % %
Huizhou Nanfang PRC Waste water treatment 91.2 76.4
Shenzhen Nanfang PRC Waste water treatment 91.2 76.4
SIIC Weifang PRC Investment holding, 75.5 75.5

waste water treatment and
reclaimed water treatment

Weifang Tap Water PRC Treatment and supply 51.3 51.3
of potable water

Wuhan Hanxi PRC Waste water treatment 80.0 80.0

Wuhan Huang-Pi PRC Treatment and supply of 100.0 100.0
potable water

Fudan Water Engineering and PRC Provision of management 92.15 -
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fudan and consultancy services
Water”)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other subsidiaries that are not significant to the Group.

The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China
for consolidation purposes.

All the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company or jointly by the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Number of
Place of wholly-owned
incorporation subsidiaries
Principal activity and operation 2015 2014
Investment holding Singapore 1 1
Hong Kong 9 8
BVI 9 8
PRC 1 1
Seychelles 1 1
Waste water treatment PRC 9 8
Water supply PRC 3 3
Waste incineration PRC 1 1
Others PRC 2 2
36 33
Place of Number of non-wholly
incorporation owned subsidiaries
Principal activity and operation 2015 2014
Investment holding PRC 1 1
Waste water treatment PRC 38 30
Water supply PRC 3 3
Others PRC 6 4
48 38

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015:

Proportion of
effective equity
interest and voting Profit allocated to
rights held by non- non-controlling Accumulated non-

Place of controlling interests interests controlling interests
Name of incorporation and 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
subsidiary operation % % RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SIIC Weifang and its
subsidiaries PRC 24.5 24.5 34,258 38,837 375,409 344,841
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 29,764 32,450 692,478 241,491

64,022 71,287 1,067,887 586,332
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Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

SIIC Weifang and its
subsidiaries
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current assets 492,012 566,645
Non-current assets 1,652,409 1,555,896
Current liabilities (651,543) (5630,036)
Non-current liabilities (302,406) (519,935)
Equity attributable to owners of the subsidiary 1,081,353 965,679
Non-controlling interests 109,119 106,891

Revenue 575,220 525,198
Profit for the year 121,592 129,169
Profit attributable to owners of the subsidiary 115,674 119,645
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 5,918 9,524
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive income for the year 121,692 129,169
Dividends declared to non-controlling interests 3,690 1,280
Net cash inflow from operating activities 14,360 76,811

Net cash outflow from investing activities (32,429) (133,293)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities (162,481) 75,213
Net cash (outflow) inflow (180,550) 18,731

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

The following schedule shows the effects of change in the Group’s ownership interests in the following
subsidiaries without a change in control, on the equity attributable to owners of the Company.

2015 2014
Nanfang SliCc
Water Dalian
RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts paid on changes in
ownership interest in subsidiary (107,635) (6,900)
Non-controlling interest acquired 103,343 7,389
Difference recognised in equity (4,292) 489
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries (cont’d)

2015

Nanfang Water

The Group acquired additional 14.78% effective interest in Nanfang Water from its non-controlling interests
for total consideration of RMB107,635,000, increasing its effective interest from 76.42% to 91.20% as at
31 December 2015.

2014

SIIC Dalian

The Group’s 75.5% subsidiary, SIIC Weifang, acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in SIIC
Environment (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC Dalian”) for total consideration of RMB6,900,000, increasing its
effective interest from 70% to 92.6% as at 31 December 2014.

Deregistration of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2015, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Yunnan Nanfang Management
Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Chenzhou City Haijiya Drink Co.,
Ltd. was deregistered.

Financial support

The Company has agreed to provide adequate funds to enable several of its wholly-owned subsidiaries
to meet in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due for a period of twelve months from their
issuance of their financial statements. These subsidiaries are investment holding entities with minimal
income and expenses. The Company deemed minimal risk in, and is not contractually obliged to provide
the financial support.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost of unlisted investment in

joint ventures 657,840 657,840 530,000 530,000

Share of post-acquisition reserves,
net of dividend received 31,884 14,876 - -
Foreign exchange difference (28,596) (15,524) (23,971) (12,362)
661,128 657,192 506,029 517,638

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

27.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

Name of joint venture

Percentage of
effective equity
interest and
voting power

Shanghai Pucheng Thermal
Power Energy Co., Ltd @
(“Shanghai Pucheng”)

Wenling Hanyang Resources
Power Co., Ltd @

Place of held by the Group
incorporation Principal 2015 2014

and operations activities % %
PRC Waste incineration 50 50 ©

power generation

PRC Waste incineration 50 50

power generation

() Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for consolidation purposes.

(b) Change in the Group’s ownership interest in joint venture

In January 2014, the Company acquired 50% equity interest in Shanghai Pucheng for purchase consideration of
RMB530 million. The purchase price allocation of acquisition of Shanghai Pucheng was completed and finalised in
2014. The fair value of net identifiable assets (as determined by independent valuation valuer) of Shanghai Pucheng at
date of completion approximated to the purchase consideration. Accordingly, no goodwill was recognised.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material interest in joint venture, namely
Shanghai Pucheng, is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS.

Shanghai Pucheng
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-controlling interests

636,249 617,888
527,990 521,178
(49,259) (54,983)
(83,916) (77,722)
(5,334) (4,559)
1,025,730 1,001,802
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Shanghai Pucheng
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents 595,346 578,354
Current financial liabilities

(exclude trade and other payables and provisions) (137) (137)
Revenue 288,984 257,884
Profit for the year 82,303 75,787
Total comprehensive income for the year 82,303 75,787
Dividends paid during the year 55,840 65,048

The above profit for the year includes the following:

Depreciation and amortisation (17,708) (17,638)
Interest income (19,703) (19,438)
Income tax expenses (24,464) (25,312)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Shanghai Pucheng

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Equity attributable to owners of the joint venture 1,025,730 1,001,802

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 50% 50%

512,865 500,901

Purchase price allocation adjustments 30,323 31,944

Other adjustments - (650)

543,188 532,195

Foreign exchange difference (23,970) (12,362)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest

in the joint venture 519,218 519,833
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually material

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
The Group’s share of profit 17,943 17,363
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income 17,943 17,363
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture 141,910 137,359
28. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost of unlisted investment in associates 563,786 418,905
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend received 15,378 8,284
Foreign exchange difference (21,461) (12,664)
557,703 414,525

Based on contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group does not hold
power over the associates via voting rights from majority of the board of directors, where the relevant
activities of the entities are determined by the board of directors based on majority votes. Therefore,
management of the Group concluded that the Group has no control over the associates, and thus, all
associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:-

Percentage of
effective equity
interest and
voting power

Place of held by the Group

incorporation Principal 2015 2014
Name of associate and operations activities % %
Longjiang Environmental PRC Waste water 25.3 25.30
Protection Group Co., Ltd treatment
(“Longjiang Group”) @ and water supply
Linwu County Nanfang PRC Waste water 18.20 15.3
Water Co., Ltd (“Linwu Nanfang) @ treatment
Sichuan SIIC Environment PRC Investment Holding 30 30
Investment Development Co., Ltd @
Dongguan Changan Jinxia Sanzhou PRC Waste water 35.5 -
Water Purification Co., Ltd (“Changan treatment
Sanzhou”) @ @
Dongguan Changan Xinmin Water PRC Waste water 30.4 -
Purification Co., Ltd (“Changan treatment
Xinmin”) @ @
Yiliuging (Shanghai) Environment PRC Supply of waste 23.0 -
Technology Co., Ltd (“Yiliuging”) @ @ water treatment

equipment

(@)
(b)

Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for consolidation purposes.

In June and November 2014, the Group’s wholly-own subsidiary Thrive Far Limited had acquired 13.1% and 12.2%
of equity interest in Longjiang Group for purchase consideration of RMB210 million and RMB195 million respectively.
The Group exercises significant influence over Longjiang Group by virtue of its contractual right to appoint two out of
nine directors to the board of that company. The purchase price allocation to determine the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of Longjiang Group as at date of completion has completed in 2015. The fair value of net identifiable
assets (as determined by independent valuation valuer) of Longjiang Group at date of completion approximates to the
purchase consideration. Accordingly, no goodwill is recognised.

Nanfang Water held 20% equity interest in Linwu Nanfang. During the year, the Group’s effective equity interest in
Nanfang Water increased by 14.78%, from 76.42% to 91.20% (Note 26). Consequently, the effective equity interest
held by the Group in Linwu Nanfang increased from 15.3% to 18.2%.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Linwu Nanfang, the Group exercises
significant influence via direct controlling interest in its immediate holding company, Nanfang Water.
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

©)

Fudan Water owns 38.51% equity interest in Changan Sanzhou. During the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group completed the acquisition of 92.15% equity interest in Fudan Water (Note 26). Upon the acquisition,
Changan Sanzhou becomes an associate of the Group and the effective equity interest held by the Group is 35.5%.

Fudan Water owns 33% equity interest in Changan Xinmin. During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group completed the acquisition of 92.15% equity interest in Fudan Water (Note 26). Upon the acquisition, Changan
Xinmin becomes an associate of the Group and the effective equity interest held by the Group is 30.4%.

Fudan Water owns 25% equity interest in Yiliuging. During the financial year ended
31 December 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 92.15% equity interest in Fudan Water (Note 26). Upon
the acquisition, Yiliuging becomes an associate of the Group and the effective equity interest held by the Group is

23.0%.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material interest in associate, namely Longjiang
Group, is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the

associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS.

Longjiang Group

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

Current assets 1,161,589 907,995
Non-current assets 4,246,514 3,792,288
Current liabilities (2,622,752) (2,004,154)
Non-current liabilities (1,695,055) (1,727,255)
Non-controlling interests (5,730) (5,226)
1,084,566 963,648

Revenue 1,098,093 251,938
Profit for the year 121,422 36,638
Total comprehensive income for the year 121,422 36,638

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the

associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Longjiang Group

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

Equity attributable to owners of the associate 1,084,566 963,648
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 25.3125% 25.3125%
274,531 243,923

Purchase price allocation adjustments 217,705 223,482
Others - (39,663)
Foreign exchange difference (21,461) (27,664)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associate 470,775 400,078

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the purchase price allocation to determine the fair value of the
assets and liabilities of Longjiang Group has been finalised. Accordingly, adjustments were made to the
purchase price allocation (“PPA”) on the acquisition of Longjiang as if the adjustments had been on the
effective date of acquisition of November 2014. The 2014 comparative figures of the Group were restated

as shown above.
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
The Group’s share of loss (2,792) (87)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive loss (2,792) (87)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these associates 86,928 14,447
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At beginning and end of the year 45,908 45,908
Acquisition of 92.15% interest in Fudan Water (Note 40) 447,691 -
At end of the year 493,599 45,908
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning of the year and at end of the year 36,358 36,358
Carrying amount 457,241 9,550

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generation units
(CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of the goodwill

had been allocated as follows:

Carrying amount
of goodwill before
recognition of
impairment loss

Carrying amount
of goodwill after
recognition of
impairment loss

2015 2014 2015 2014
Name of subsidiaries CGU RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SIIC Environment Holdings
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd. @ Municipal EPC 36,358 36,358 - -
Waste incineration
Lap Yin International Limited ®  power generation 6,692 6,692 6,692 6,692
Taizhou Kaidi Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd. © Waste water treatment 2,858 2,858 2,858 2,858
Fudan Water © Waste water treatment 447,691 - 447,691 -
493,599 459008 457,241 9,550
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GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (CONT’D)

() The recoverable amounts of the CGU, which is classified under Construction segment, has been determined based
on value in use calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Management has considered and determined the factors applied in the financial budgeted gross
margins and average growth rates. The budgeted gross margins are based on past performances and its expectation
of market developments for the segment.

(b) Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of waste
water treatment plant/ waste incineration power generation plant over the service concession period ranging from 20
to 25 years, using a discount rate of 10.5% (2014: 9%). Management believes that this forecast period is justifiable
due to the long term nature of the projects. Any reasonably possible change to the key assumptions applied is not
likely to cause the recoverable amount to be below the carrying amounts of the CGU.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade payables 366,031 241,930 - -
Deferred consideration (Note 40) 70,000 80,000 - -
Others 581,386 427,168 17,380 14,141
1,017,417 749,098 17,380 14,141

(i) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end

of the reporting period:
Group

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within 30 days 151,550 28,940
Within 31 to 60 days 15,449 15,259
Within 61 to 90 days 24,639 13,795
Within 91 to 180 days 40,812 35,708
Within 181 to 365 days 45,121 55,162
Over 365 days 88,460 93,066
366,031 241,930

(i) Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2015 were () customer advances of

RMB122,033,000 (2014: RMB102,930,000); (i) amount due to non-controlling shareholders of
RMB92,000,000 (2014: RMB4,900,000); (iiij amount due to associates of RMB7,080,000 (2014:
RMB Nil); and (iv) sundry payables of RMB210,057,000 (2014: RMB176,393,000), mainly due to
monies received on behalf by third parties (including government).
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BILLS PAYABLE TO BANKS

Bills payable to banks are interest-free and secured by certain bank deposits pledged with the issuing

banks.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bank loans @ 2,417,333 2,054,062 123,884 137,435
Other borrowings © 1,245,743 513,511 - -
Government loans 43,775 58,235 - -
3,706,851 2,625,808 123,884 137,435
Analysed as:
Current 1,987,976 922,958 10,469 10,709
Non-current 1,768,875 1,702,850 113,415 126,726
3,706,851 2,625,808 123,884 137,435
(@) The Group’s bank loans include related party loans in the Group’s subsidiaries entered into through intermediary banks

of RMB972 million (2014: RMB360 million).

(b) Other borrowings relate to amount due to SIl and SIHL Finance Limited (“SIHLFL”) of RMB217,440,000 and
RMB1,028,303,000 respectively (2014: RMB217,440,000 and RMB296,071,000 respectively). Both Sl and SIHLFL
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company’s intermediate holding company, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited.

Details of collateral

Certain bank and other borrowings are secured/guaranteed on certain concessionary arrangements,
trade receivables (relating to concessionary arrangements) collection rights, guarantees by subsidiaries,
guarantees by third party company, guarantees by third party individual and/or corporate guarantee by
the Company (2014: certain concessionary arrangements, trade receivables (relating to concessionary
arrangements) collection rights, guarantees by subsidiaries, guarantees by third party company,
guarantees by third party individual and/or corporate guarantee by the Company). Relevant assets pledged

by the Group are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Secured/guaranteed 2,551,794 1,881,456 - -
Unsecured/unguaranteed 1,155,057 744 352 123,884 137,435
3,706,851 2,625,808 123,884 137,435
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Details on interest rates

The table below summarises the interest rate categories of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at
the end of the reporting period:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Interest-free borrowings 2,975 3,122 - -
Fixed-rate borrowings 2,131,568 1,032,760 - -
Variable-rate borrowings 1,572,308 1,589,926 123,884 137,435
3,706,851 2,625,808 123,884 137,435

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s and
the Company’s borrowings are as follows:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

Fixed-rate borrowings (per annum)  1.20% to 7.38% 4.35% to 7.20% - -
Variable-rate borrowings (per annum) 1.80% to 7.80% 2.55% to 8.16% 4.03% 3.31%

For the variable-rate borrowings, majority of the contracted interest rates are based on floating market
rates at a discount of 10% to a markup of 20%, repriced at intervals ranging from monthly to annually.

Details on contractual maturity dates

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the end
of the reporting period:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Carrying amount repayable:
Within one year 1,937,976 922,958 10,469 10,709
More than one year but not
more than five years 1,617,618 1,333,513 113,415 126,726
Over five years 251,257 369,337 - -
3,706,851 2,625,808 123,884 137,435
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FINANCE LEASE

The effective interest rate for the finance lease is at 5.75% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: 6.15%). The contractual interest rate is variable based on PRC’s prime lending interest rate
and the net carrying amounts approximate the fair value as the interest rate approximates the market rate.

Group
Present value Present value
Minimum  of minimum Minimum  of minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2015 2015 2014 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 17,026 16,667 35,640 33,333
In the second to fifth years inclusive - - 17,052 16,667
Total minimum lease payment 17,026 16,667 52,692 50,000
Less: Future finance charges (359) (2,692)
Present value of lease obligations 16,667 50,000
Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months (shown under current
liabilities) (16,667) (33,333)
Amount due for settlement after 12
months - 16,667

The relevant assets pledged under the finance lease comprise certain intangible assets, disclosed under
Note 44 to the financial statements.

OTHER LIABILITY

On 23 July 2012, the Group acquired 100% interest in Rise Wealth Investment Ltd (“Rise Wealth”, together
with its subsidiaries and associates, collectively the “Rise Wealth Group”). In addition to the purchase
consideration, the vendor will also be entitled to receive an additional earn-out amount, by way of issuance
and allotment of up to 133,652,038 ™ new shares subject to certain conditions being met (“contingent
consideration”).

Rise Wealth indirectly owns 69.378% equity interest in Nanfang Water, together with its subsidiaries and
an associate (collectively the “Nanfang Water Group”). Nanfang Water Group is engaged principally in the
business of environmental protection, including waste water treatment, tap water treatment, reclaimed
water treatment, project investment, operation and management of water treatment facilities in the PRC.

The conditions of the contingent consideration are as follow:

a) 59,400,905 ordinary shares to be issued " if the Nanfang Water Group generates profit after tax for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012 of RMB40 million,

b) 59,400,905 ordinary shares to be issued ", if the Nanfang Water Group generates profit after tax for
the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of RMB40 million,

b) 14,850,228 ordinary shares to be issued ", if the Nanfang Water Group generates profit after tax for
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB50 million.

(1) Before the share consolidation on 25 September 2015. After the share consolidation, the adjusted number of shares

are 11,880,181, 11,880,181 and 2,970,045 for the financial years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively totalling 26,730,407 shares.
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OTHER LIABILITY (CONT’D)

As at the acquisition date, the Group has concluded that the earn-out targets are distinguished and not
interdependent. Accordingly, the Group has recognised the fair value of the earn-out amounts for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB24,465,000 under capital reserve.

During the year, the Group has reassessed and concluded that the earn-out targets for the three financial
years are interdependent and not mutually exclusive. As such, the contingent consideration should be
accounted for as a financial liability. Accordingly, the Group has re-measured the contingent consideration
at fair value at each reporting date and accounted for any changes in fair value in profit or loss. The fair
value of the contingent consideration was calculated using the probability-weighted pay-out approach and
applying a probability of 95% of achieving the earn-out targets. The fair value adjustment of contingent
consideration is recognised in the “Other expenses” and “Other income” line item in the Group’s profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
has settled its obligation of the contingent consideration by the issuance of 26,730,407 ordinary shares.

The summarised effects are as follows:

Group Company
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Contingent consideration
arising from earn-out shares - 86,348 114,640 - 86,348 114,640
Fair value changes of
contingent consideration (5,190) 28,292 (90,175) - - -

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Accruals for benefits due to ex-employees 38,866 38,924
Provision for major overhauls (Note 17) 12,601 12,405
Grant received in advance 7,300 5,082
Others 8,395 2,789
67,162 59,200
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SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company

Number of Amount
ordinary shares RMB’000

Issued and paid up share capital
At 1 January 2014 8,589,574,132 2,512,500
Share placement (net of issue costs) 1,000,000,000 766,103
At 31 December 2014 9,5689,574,132 3,278,603
Share consolidation (7,671,659,413) -
Settlement of acquisition consideration (Note 40) 312,000,000 1,490,446
Settlement of contingent consideration (Note 34) 26,730,407 92,089
At 31 December 2015 2,256,645,126 4,861,138

On 25 September 2015, the Company consolidated every five existing issued ordinary shares into one

ordinary share in the capital of the Company.

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The ordinary

shares have no par value.

TREASURY SHARES

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, there were 56,400 (2014: 56,400) treasury shares held. The total amount paid
to purchase the shares was RMB96,000 and this was presented as a component within equity attributable

to owners of the Company.

OTHER RESERVES

Group Company
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
General reserve 152,213 97,875 73,137 - -
Investment revaluation
reserve 56,862 2,099 - - -
Translation reserve (125,638) (39,525) 30,532 (205,859) (141,574)
Effects of changes in
ownership interests in
subsidiaries where there
is no change in control (80,173) (25,881) (26,370) - -
Merger reserve (200,315) (200,315) (200,315) - -
(147,051) (165,747) (123,016) (205,859) (141,574)
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38. OTHER RESERVES (CONT’D)

39.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC, companies in PRC are required to
set aside a general reserve fund by way of appropriation from their statutory net profit reported
in PRC statutory financial statements at a rate of 10% for each year. Subject to approval from
PRC authorities, the fund may be used to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered
capital of the subsidiary. The appropriation is required until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
subsidiary’s registered capital. This statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to the
shareholders.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.
Where a revalued financial asset is sold, the portion of the reserve that relates to that financial asset,
and is effectively realised, is recognised in profit or loss. When a revalued financial asset is impaired,
the portion of the reserve that relates to that financial asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group
and Company’s presentation currency.

Effects of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries where there is no change in
control

This represents the effects of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries when there is no
change in control.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between consideration and equity acquired in a business
combination involving entities under common control using pooling-of-interest method.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 and SIIC Environment
Share Award Scheme on 27 April 2012. The ESOS 2012 shall continue in force at the discretion of the
remuneration committee, subject to a maximum period of ten years commencing 27 April 2012.

(a)

SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ESOS 2012”)/ SIIC Environment Share
Award Scheme (the “ESAS”)

The ESOS 2012 is a share incentive scheme. The ESOS 2012 is proposed on the basis that it
is important to retain and to give recognition to the Group full time employees, Group Executive
Directors and employees of the ultimate holding company and the holding company of the
Company and their subsidiaries (“Parent Group”), and to give recognition to Group Non-Executive
Directors and Parent Group Non-Executive Directors who have contributed to the success
and development of the Company and/or the Group. The ESOS 2012 will give such persons an
opportunity to have a real and personal direct interest in the Company and to align the interests of
such persons with those of the shareholders of the Company.

The ESAS is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part of the Group’s
incentive compensation program. The purpose of the ESAS is to provide an opportunity for the
Group full time employees, Parent Group Employees and Directors of the Group and Parent Group,
who have met performance targets to be remunerated not just through cash bonuses but also an
equity stake in the Company. The ESAS is also extended to the Group Non-Executive Directors and
Parent Group Non-Executive Directors.

For purpose of ESOS 2012 and ESAS, Non-Executive Director refers to a Director other than an
Executive Director, including an Independent Director.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(a)

SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ESOS 2012”)/ SIIC Environment Share
Award Scheme (the “ESAS”) (cont’d)

The aggregate number of shares comprised in options granted to controlling shareholders or their
associate(s) under the ESOS 2012 shall not exceed 25% of the total number of shares (comprised
in options and ESAS Awards) which may be granted under the ESOS 2012 and ESAS. The
aggregate number of shares comprised in options granted to each controlling shareholder or their
associate(s) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares (comprised in options and ESAS
Awards) which may be granted under the ESOS 2012 and ESAS.

The total number of new Shares which may be issued pursuant to the awards granted under the
ESAS (“ESAS Awards”) granted on any date, when aggregated to the number of new Shares issued
and/or issuable in respect of all ESAS Awards and any other share-based incentive schemes of
the Company, shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the issued share capital of the Company
(excluding treasury shares) from time to time.

The validity period of options that are granted under the ESOS 2012 (“ESOS 2012 Options”) is
five years from the date of offer of such options. Under the ESOS 2012, the subscription prices of
ESOS 2012 Options granted by the Company will be at the Market Price of a Share at the time of
grant, as determined by reference to the daily official list or any other publication published by the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of such option. ESOS 2012 Options will not be granted at a discount to
the Market Price.

During the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no ESOS 2012 Options or ESAS
Awards were granted.

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS

144

2015

(a)

Acquisition of 92.15% equity interest in Fudan Water, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Fudan Group”

On 22 May 2015, the Group acquired 100% interest in Global Envirotech Investment Ltd. (“Global
Envirotech”) and Global Envirotech indirectly owns 92.15% equity interest of Fudan Group for a
purchase consideration of RMB2,116,508,000, for the expansion of its business. Fudan Group is
engaged principally in the business of waste water treatment, construction, design, supervision and
operation of water treatment projects and operation of waste water treatment plants in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB4,691,000 and RMB2,308,000 have
been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively.

From the date of acquisition, Fudan Group contributed RMB121,815,000 and RMB33,087,000
to the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax respectively. If the combination had taken place at
the beginning of the financial year, the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax would have been
RMB1,912,424,000 and RMB464,890,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future result.
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS (CONT’D)

Fudan Group

RMB’000
Consideration transferred:
Cash 626,062
Consideration shares* 1,490,446
2,116,508

* The consideration shares were valued based on the share price when the consideration shares had been alloted to the seller.

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed (as determined by independent valuation

reports) recognised at the date of acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment 3,133
Intangible assets 1,773,456
Interest in associates 90,217
Available-for-sale financial instruments 500
Inventories 12
Receivables under service concession arrangements 828,775
Trade and other receivables 182,356
Prepayments 890
Cash and cash equivalents 27,520
Pledged bank deposits 4,000
Trade and other payables (141,094)
Bank and other borrowings (67,000)
Tax payable (1,435)
Deferred tax liabilities (492,446)
Non-controlling interests (540,067)

1,668,817

The receivables under service concession arrangements acquired with a fair value of
RMB828,775,000 had gross contractual amounts of RMB1,338,027,000.

The non-controlling interest in Fudan Group recognised at the acquisition date was measured by
reference to the fair value of the non-controlling interest and amounted to RMB540,067,000. This
fair value was estimated by applying the discounted cash flow model using a discount rate of 11%
on the expected future cash inflows.

Goodwill arising from acquisition:

Consideration transferred 2,116,508
Less: Net assets required (1,668,817)

447,691

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition:

Cash consideration paid 626,062
Less: bank balances and cash acquired (27,520)

598,642

The consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected cash flows generated from future service concession agreements. This benefit is not
recognised separately from goodwill because it does not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS (CONT’D)

146

2014

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Gold Wisdom Holdings Limited (“Gold Wisdom”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Gold Wisdom Group™)

On 11 February 2014, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Thrive Bloom Limited,
acquired 100% equity interest Gold Wisdom for a purchase consideration of RMB119,000,000, for
the expansion of its business. Gold Wisdom owns 100% equity interest of Hong Kong Nany New
Energy (Dazhou) Limited, which in turn owns 100% equity interest of Dazhou Jiajing Environment
Renewable Resource Co., Ltd (“Dazhou Jiajing”), which is engaged in the business of refuse
disposal and waste incineration power generation in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB641,000 and RMB139,000 had been
recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2014 respectively.

From the date of acquisition, Gold Wisdom Group contributed revenue of RMB37,399,000 and
net loss of RMB383,000 to the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the
financial year, the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax would have been RMB1,505,375,000 and
RMB359,137,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Shanghai Qingpu Second Waste Water Treatment
Plant Co., Limited. (“Shanghai Qingpu”)

On 18 February 2014, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary, S.I. United Water Holdings
Limited, acquired 100% equity interest in Shanghai Qingpu for a purchase consideration of
RMB180,070,000, for the expansion of its business. Shanghai Qingpu is principally engaged in
waste water treatment in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB988,000 and RMB94,000 have been
recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2014 respectively.

From the date of acquisition, Shanghai Qingpu contributed RMB19,605,000 and RMB13,228,000
to the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax respectively. If the combination had taken place at
the beginning of the financial year, the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax would have been
RMB1,585,723,000 and RMB361,978,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS (CONT’D)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dongguan Fenggang Yantian Fangzhong Water
Services Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Fenggang”)

On 10 September 2014, the Group, through its 75.5% owned subsidiary, SIIC Weifang, acquired
100% equity interest in Dongguan Fenggang for a purchase consideration of RMB78,570,000, for
expansion of business. Dongguan Fenggang is principally engaged in waste water treatment in the
PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB288,000 have been recognised
in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2014.

From the date of acquisition, Dongguan Fenggang contributed RMB3,434,000 and RMB960,000
to the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax respectively. If the combination had taken place at
the beginning of the financial year, the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax would have been
RMB1,511,302,000 and RMB363,915,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dongguan Shijie Shayao Water Purification Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Shijie”)

On 10 September 2014, the Group, through its 75.5% owned subsidiary, SIIC Weifang acquired
100% equity interest in Dongguan Shijie for a purchase consideration of RMB87,985,000.
Dongguan Shijie is principally engaged in waste water treatment in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB287,000 have been recognised
in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2014.

From the date of acquisition, Dongguan Shijie contributed RMB5,426,000 and RMB4,017,000
to the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax respectively. If the combination had taken place at
the beginning of the financial year, the Group’s revenue and profit net of tax would have been
RMB1,515,280,000 and RMB370,029,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS (CONT’D)

Gold Wisdom Shanghai Dongguan Dongguan

Group Qingpu Fenggang Shijie Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Consideration transferred:
Cash 109,000 54,021 42,644 53,911 259,576
Deferred cash
settlement 10,000 - 35,926 34,074 80,000
Cash prepaid in
previous
financial year - 126,049 - - 126,049
119,000 180,070 78,570 87,985 465,625

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed (as determined by independent valuation reports)
recognised at the respective dates of acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and

equipment 740 11,549 98 15 12,402
Intangible assets 273,196 24,656 78,472 77,256 453,580
Retention monies - - 520 532 1,052
Inventories 447 111 30 61 649

Receivables under
service concession

arrangements 132,910 275,749 46,260 65,416 520,335
Trade and other

receivables 10,161 3,207 39,832 41,775 94,975
Prepayments 248 - 23 43 314
Cash and cash

equivalents 4,307 24,991 851 885 31,034
Pledged bank

deposits 6,053 - - - 6,053
Trade and other

payables (88,333) (16,360) (33,825) (55,561) (194,079)
Bank and other

borrowings (216,658) (111,550) (32,000) (20,000) (380,208)
Tax payable - - (103) (213) (316)
Deferred tax

liabilities (4,071) (23,314) (21,588) (22,224) (71,197)
Non-current

liabilities - (4,500) - - (4,500)

119,000 184,539 78,570 87,985 470,094
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ BUSINESS (CONT’D)

41.

Gold Wisdom Shanghai Dongguan Dongguan
Group Qingpu Fenggang Shijie Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Gain from bargain purchase
arising from acquisitions:
Consideration
transferred 119,000 180,070 78,570 87,985 465,625
Less: Net assets
required (119,000) (184,539) (78,570) (87,985) (470,094)
- (4,469) - - (4,469)
Net cash outflow arising
from acquisition:
Cash consideration
paid 109,000 54,021 42,644 53,911 259,576
Less: Bank balances
and cash acquired (4,307) (24,991) (851) (885) (31,034)
104,693 29,030 41,793 53,026 228,542

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

2014

In March 2014, the Group completed the disposal of its entire 52% equity interest in Kunming Nanfang
for considerations of RMB14,503,000 to its non-controlling shareholder. Kunming Nanfang is principally
engaged in the business of waste water treatment in the PRC.

In August 2014, the Group completed the disposal of its 100% equity interest in Wuhan Kaidi Water
Services Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan Kaidi”) for considerations of RMB16,782,000. Wuhan Kaidi is principally
engaged in the business of Engineering, Procurement & Commissioning of water purification and treatment

systems and facilities in the PRC.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

Annual Report 2015

149



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Further details of the consideration, and assets and liabilities disposed of in respect of the disposed
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out below:

Kunming Wuhan
Nanfang Kaidi Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost

Property, plant and equipment 281 228 509
Intangible assets 3 201 204
Deferred tax assets - 668 668
Inventories 65 560 625
Amounts due from customers for contract works - 8,571 8,571
Trade and other receivables 18,547 43,786 62,333
Prepayments - 1,215 1,215
Cash and cash equivalents 368 4111 4,479
Pledged bank deposits - 3,333 3,333
Trade and other payables (20) (51,069) (51,089)
Amount due to customer for contract works - (3,870) (3,870)
19,244 7,734 26,978
Gain (Loss) on disposal
Consideration 14,503 16,782 31,285
Less: Net assets disposed of (19,244) (7,734) (26,978)
Less: Non-controlling interests 9,237 - 9,237
Less: Reversal of purchase price allocation
adjustments following the disposal (8,317) - (8,317)
(3,821) 9,048 5,227
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal
Cash consideration received - 16,782 16,782
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of (368) (4,111) (4,479)
(368) 12,671 12,303

The subsidiaries disposed of during both years did not have significant contribution to the results and cash
flows of the Group during the period prior to the disposals.
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42. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 6 years and rentals are fixed for a period for 1 to 30 years
(2014: 1 to 30 years). Most leases contain renewable options. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:
Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 6,301 5,159
In the second to fifth year inclusive 17,548 14,194
After five years 37,750 41,028

61,599 60,381

The Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its office premises (2014: commercial property
leases on its office premises). At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within one year 1,993 1,577
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,204 4,396
After five years 3,401 1,473
7,598 7,446
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
- Additions in construction-in-progress
relating to service concession
arrangement 580,946 119,682
- Capital injection into an associate 48,000 48,000
- Additional investment in available- for-sale
financial instrument 13,064 -
Capital expenditure authorised but
not contracted for in respect of
additions in construction-in-progress
relating to service concession
arrangement - 81,435
642,010 249,117
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44. PLEDGE ON ASSETS

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking facilities granted by these
banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain operating concession assets are as follows:

Group

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Pledged bank deposits 76,768 63,404
Property, plant and equipment 18,675 -
Intangible assets 82,554 317,882
Land use right 1,486 -
Trade receivables 129,588 153,717
Receivables under service concession arrangements 1,683,710 1,725,742
1,992,781 2,260,745

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following significant related party transactions which were carried out in the normal course of business
as agreed between the parties during the financial year:

Group
Related party Nature of transactions 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wholly-owned Interest paid for borrowings:
subsidiaries - Sl (9,480) (9.600)
of the Company’s - SIHLFL (30,460) (16,751)
intermediate holding - Shanghai Lu Qiao Development Co., Ltd. (11,062) -
company - SIIC Management (Shanghai) Ltd. - (168)
- Shanghai Shen-Yu Development
Co., Ltd. (9,977) (2,952)
- Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway

(Shanghai Section) Co., Ltd (9,998) (1,366)

Compensation of Directors and key management personnel

Group

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wages, salaries and bonus 16,421 16,713
Defined benefit contributions 1,087 996
Others 152 235
17,660 17,944

Purchase of legal and corporate secretarial services from firms related to a Director

The Company engages certain professional firms for legal and corporate secretarial services. One of the
Company’s Directors holds and/or has held senior managerial position in these firms.

Total amount of fees in relation to legal and corporate secretarial services provided for the year ended
31 December 2015 was approximately RMB1,163,000 (2014: RMB1,453,000). An amount of RMB7,000
(2014: RMB Nil) was outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
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46.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based on their products and
services, and has three reportable segments as follows:

(i) Construction:

Principal activities include design, assembly, construction, installation and commissioning of water
supply or waste water treatment systems/plants for industrials and municipals. Exclude construction
margin recognised in relation to construction of the Group’s service concession arrangements
related assets by external parties.

(ii) Water Treatment and Water Supply:

Principal activities include construct, manage and operate of water related infrastructure under
service concession arrangements and manage and operate of water related infrastructure
under non-service concession arrangements and financial income under service concession
arrangements.

(i) Waste incineration:

Principal activities include construct, manage and operate of waste incineration related infrastructure
under service concession arrangements.

Other operations include design and consultancy on the projects and installation of water meters. None of
these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments in 2015 or
2014.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on operating profit or loss.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Group’s financing and income taxes are managed on a
Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Unallocated assets/liabilities mainly comprise of
corporate assets and liabilities, tax assets and liabilities and interest income and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on agreed-term basis in a manner similar to transactions
with third parties.
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46. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Business segments (cont’d)

(i) Revenue under Water Treatment and Water Supply for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 include construction revenue arising from the construction of the Group’s service concession
arrangements related assets of RMB472.7 million (2014: RMB231.9 million).

(ii) The segment non-cash items consist of the follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Segment non-cash income

Write-back of allowances of doubtful receivables 9,857 7,927
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in a subsidiary - 4,469
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 9,048
Fair value changes from held-for-trading investment 278 -
Fair value changes on other liability - 28,292

10,135 49,736

Segment non-cash expenses

Allowance for doubtful receivables 998 4,055
Bad debts written off - 48
Allowance for inventories 1,046 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 3,821
Fair value changes on other liability 5,190 -

7,234 7,924

(iii) The nature of unallocated segment assets is as follows:

Group

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts due from joint venture 1,437 1,437
Property, plant and equipment 1,319 220
Trade and other receivables 95,894 748
Prepayments 1,561 3,099
Cash and cash equivalents 136,960 200,847
Total unallocated assets 237,171 206,351

156 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015

46. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

47.

Business segments (cont’d)

V)

The nature of unallocated segment liabilities is as follows:

Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Bank and other borrowings 2,008,719 650,947
Trade and other payables 32,856 118,622
Total unallocated liabilities 2,041,575 769,569

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue Non-current assets
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
PRC 1,803,796 1,504,434 10,237,705 6,208,844
Singapore - - 352 220

1,803,796 1,504,434 10,238,057 6,209,064

Information about major customers

Revenue from PRC government amounted to RMB1,093,458,000 (2014: RMB743,677,000) arising from
water treatment, water supply and waste incineration segment.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in relation to the nature of its industry in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes the borrowings disclosed in
Notes 32 and 33, net cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, treasury shares, retained profits and other reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure using gearing ratio regularly. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. As part of this
review, the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital are being considered.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, return capital
to shareholders or new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt. No major changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes during the financial
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Capital risk management (cont’d)

Group

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Total borrowings 3,723,518 2,675,808
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (795,228) (1,119,272)
Net debt 2,928,290 1,556,536
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5,511,562 3,604,279
Non-controlling interests 1,067,887 586,332
Total equity 6,579,449 4,190,611
Net debt/Equity attributable to owners of the Company 0.53 0.43
Net debt/Total equity 0.45 0.37

M Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and finance lease.
(b) Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
Financial assets

Loans and receivables 6,639,489 5,156,856 2,167,013 2,251,463

Available-for-sale financial
instruments 191,836 126,748 12,567 -
Held-for-trading investment 19,222 - - -

6,850,547 5,283,604 2,179,580 2,251,463

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost (4,678,325)  (3,442,794) (274,457) (155,846)
Other liability at fair value - (86,348) - (86,348)
(4,678,325)  (3,529,142) (274,457) (242,194)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the
use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include (i) foreign currency risk; (i) interest rate
risk, (i) liquidity risk; and (iv) credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and
procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by the Chief Financial Officer
and Management.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these
risks.

There has been no major change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of Group entities, primarily
RMB. The Group has no sales denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB whilst
none of the costs are denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB. Similarly, the
Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances at the end of the reporting period have
limited foreign currency exposures and bulk of the sales and purchases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of the Group entities which are mainly RMB. Currently,
the Group has not entered into any hedge due to the limited transactional foreign currency
exposure.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities which are significant at the reporting date that are denominated in currencies other
than the respective functional currency of the Group entities (“foreign currency”) are as

follows:
Group Company
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SGD (against RMB) 674,589 632,847 535,264 525,427 586,850 86,236 1,247 1,211
SGD (against USD) 17,014 8,567 - 16,914 1,403 - -
SGD (against HKD) 239,679 95,388 248,979 122,528 5,403 102,268 101,479 2,752
RMB (against USD) 681 8,263 14,301 14,193
HKD (against SGD) - - 9,068 16,566 - -
HKD (against USD) 513,457 5 718,522 10 - - - -
HKD (against RMB) 316,360 312,074 403,964 403,964 - - - -

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s and Company’s sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%)
increase and decrease in the respective functional currency of the Group’s entities, with
all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5%
(2014: 5%) increase in foreign currency rates. A (negative) positive number below indicates (a
decrease) an increase in profit before tax where the above foreign currency strengthens 5%
(2014: 5%) against the functional currency of Group’s entities.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

160

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Increase in (loss) profit before tax

SGD (against RMB) 6,966 5,371 29,280 4,251
SGD (against USD) 850 428 846 70
SGD (against HKD) (465) (1,357) (4,804) 4,976
RMB (against USD) (681) (297) - -
HKD (against SGD) (453) (828) - -
HKD (against USD) (10,255) - - -
HKD (against RMB) (4,380) (4,595) - -

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their
loans and borrowings. The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and
variable-rate debts.

Interest on financial instruments subject to variable interest rates is contractually repriced
regularly. Interest on financial instruments at fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the
instruments. The other financial instruments of the Group and the Company that are not
subjected to interest rate risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for its variable-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

At the end of the reporting period, a change of 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) basis
points higher/lower in interest rate with all other variables held constant, would result in the
Group’s profit net of tax to be RMB6,109,000 (2014: RMB6,643,000) lower/higher.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities and financial
support from the holding company. The Group’s and the Company’s liquidity position are
monitored closely by the Management.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments. The table
include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5 years cash flows year end
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2015
Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing 853,783 25,210 38,711 917,704 913,333
Fixed interest rate
instruments @ 1,774,383 441,013 42,404 2,257,800 2,176,017
Variable interest rate
instruments © 344,885 1,250,829 228,300 1,824,014 1,588,975
Total 2,973,051 1,717,052 309,415 4,999,518 4,678,325
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(i) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years S5years cash flows year end
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2014 (Restated)
Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing 814,744 24,904 35,787 875,435 856,456
Fixed interest rate
instruments @ 686,455 401,493 - 1,087,948 1,032,760
Variable interest rate
instruments © 397,720 1,200,765 420,805 2,019,290 1,639,926
Total 1,898,919 1,627,162 456,592 3,982,673 3,529,142
Company
2015

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 150,573 - - 150,573 150,673
Variable interest rate

instrument © 15,251 114,506 - 129,757 123,884
Total 165,824 114,506 - 280,330 274,457

2014 (Restated)

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 104,759 - - 104,759 104,759
Variable interest rate

instrument © 15,076 131,655 - 146,731 137,435
Total 119,835 131,655 - 251,490 242,194
(a) The effective interest rates ranged from 1.20% to 7.38% (2014: 4.35% to 7.20%) per annum.

(b) The effective interest rates ranged from 1.80% to 7.80% (2014: 2.55% to 8.16%) per annum.

(c) The effective interest rate ranged from 3.35% to 4.04% (2014: 3.31%) per annum.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(iv)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group and the Company minimise credit risk by
dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk

As at reporting period end, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit
risk is the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
statements of financial position. The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other
receivables, receivables under service concession arrangements, cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position
are net of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance for doubtful receivables is made
where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a
reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s and Company’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period is 100% concentrated in PRC (2014: 100%).

Receivables under service concession arrangements relate to consideration recoverable
from certain governing bodies and agencies of the government of the PRC in respect of
construction of water treatment plant/ waste incineration plant and are generally considered
as having low risk of default.

The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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48.

164

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Except as detailed in the following tables below, the directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities that are recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements to approximate their fair value, due to their short-term nature, that they
are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting
period, or the discount rate used to amortise the instruments approximates the prevailing market interest
rates.

(i) Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Fair value Significant
2015 2014 Fair value Value technique unobservable
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000 hierarchy and key inputs input

Available-for-
sale financial
investments
Quoted price in
Listed equity security 176,376 124,354 Level 1 an active market Not applicable

Held-for-trading

investments
Quoted price in
Listed equity security 19,222 - Level 1 an active market Not applicable
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured

at fair value on a recurring basis and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable
approximation of fair value

2015 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Financial assets
Receivables under service
concession arrangements © 4,787,646 5,314,144 3,325,717 3,482,865
Available-for-sale
financial instruments:
- Unlisted equity security @ 15,460 Not applicable 2,394 Not applicable

Financial liabilities
Bank and other borrowings:

- Fixed rate borrowings © (2,176,017) (2,171,797) (1,032,760) (1,026,919)
Other non-current liabilities © (40,812) (40,770) (41,713) (41,681)
(@) Fair value information has not been disclosed for the Group’s investments in equity instruments that are carried

at cost because fair value cannot be measured reliably (Note 21).

(b) The fair values of receivables under service concession arrangements, bank and other borrowings and other
non-current liabilities as disclosed in the table above are cclassified under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and
the fair values are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rate or borrowings
rate as at the end of the reporting period.
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49.

50.

51

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to end of the reporting period, the Group completed the acquisition of 90% equity interest
in Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. (“Yiyang”) from Yiyang City Housing Bureau in February 2016.
Consequently, Yiyang will become a subsidiary of the Group (Note 15). The purchase price allocation to
determine the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Yiyang as at date of completion has not commenced.

Yiyang is incorporated in PRC and undertakes a 28-year water supply concessionary project in Yiyang
City, with a total design capacity of 320,000 tons/day.

RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance comparability
with the current year’s financial statements to be consistent with current year’s financial statements. As a
result, certain line items have been amended on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the related notes to the financial statements. Comparative figures have been adjusted to reclassify
finance income arising from service concession arrangements from finance income to revenue to be
consistent with the principal activity of the Group.

The items were reclassified as follows:

Group
Previously After
reported reclassification
2014 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue 1,287,778 1,504,434
Finance income 265,503 48,847

RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The summarised effects of the restatement on the prior year’s financial statements arising from
adjustments detailed in Note 34 to the financial statements are as follows:

Group
Previously

reported Restated

RMB’000 RMB’000
2014
Statement of financial position
Other liability - 86,348
Retained earnings 553,402 491,519
Other reserves (141,282) (165,747)
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Other income 17,952 46,244
Profit for the year 333,703 361,995
Earnings per share
Basic (RMB cents per share)* 14.50 15.84
Diluted (RMB cents per share)* 14.30 15.81
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51 RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES (CONT’D)

Group
Previously
reported Restated
RMB’000 RMB’000
2013
Statement of financial position
Other liability - 114,640
Retained earnings 315,724 225,549
Other reserves (98,551) (123,016)
Company
Previously
reported Restated
RMB’000 RMB’000
2014
Statement of financial position
Amount due from subsidiaries 2,007,006 2,093,354
Other liability - 86,348
2013
Statement of financial position
Amount due from subsidiaries 822,960 937,600
Other liability - 114,640
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As at 28 March 2016

Number of issued shares
Number of shares (excluding treasury shares)
Number of treasury shares and percentage

Class of shares
Voting rights

Distribution of Shareholdings

2,256,645,126
2,256,588,726
56,400 (0.002%)

Ordinary shares
One vote per share

Range of Shareholdings Number of Number of
shareholders %* shares %*
1-99 41 3.16 765 0.00
100 - 1,000 212 16.32 114,213 0.01
1,001 - 10,000 651 50.12 3,356,776 0.15
10,001 - 1,000,000 373 28.71 18,981,988 0.84
1,000,001 and above 22 1.69 2,234,134,984 99.00
TOTAL 1,299 100.00 2,256,588,726  100.00
Twenty Largest Shareholders
No. Name Number of %*
Shares
1. Triumph Power Limited 636,929,551 28.23
2. HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 381,880,080 16.92
3. China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) 223,712,917 9.91
Investment Co., Limited
4. DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd 222,508,400 9.86
5. Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 178,919,401 7.93
0. S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited 165,418,475 7.33
7. Raffles Nominees (Pte) Limited 120,215,985 5.33
8. Tao Ran 91,780,000 4.07
9. DBS Nominees (Private) Limited 70,487,331 3.12
10. DBSN Services Pte Ltd 65,863,588 2.92
11. Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Securities Pte Ltd 23,882,224 1.06
12. Yang Changmin 11,083,694 0.49
13. DB Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 10,560,981 0.47
14, United Overseas Bank Nominees (Private) Limited 8,446,430 0.37
15. Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte Ltd 7,601,782 0.34
16. Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 3,951,319 0.18
17. Huang Hanguang 2,500,376 0.11
18. OCBC Securities Private Limited 2,451,100 0.11
19. BNP Paribas Securities Services Singapore Branch 1,860,020 0.08
20. Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd 1,854,670 0.08
TOTAL 2,231,908,324 98.91

*  Based on 2,256,588,726 ordinary shares issued as at 28 March 2016 (this is based on 2,256,645,126 shares issued, excluding the 56,400
treasury shares).
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As at 28 March 2016

Substantial Shareholders

(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Direct Deemed
Number of Number of
Shares %™ Shares %M

Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph”) 636,929,551 28.23 - -
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL”)@ - - 802,568,226 35.57
S.I Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") @ 165,418,475 7.33 636,929,551 28.23
China Energy Conservation & Environmental 223,712,917 9.91 - -

Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited

(“CECEPHK")
China Energy Conservation and Environmental - - 223,712,917 9.91

Protection Group (“CECEP”) ©
Value Partners Limited (“VPL”) @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (VPLHK”) - - 316,026,900 14.00
To Hau Yin @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
Value Partners Group Limited (“VPGL”") @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
Cheah Capital Management Limited (‘CCML”) @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
Cheah Cheng Hye @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
Cheah Company Limited (“CCL") @ - - 316,026,900 14.00
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd as trustee - - 316,026,900 14.00

of The C H Cheah Family Trust @
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited - - 316,026,900 14.00

(‘BNP Nominee”) @
Value Partners Classic Fund 204,923,480 9.08 - -

Notes:

(1) As a percentage of 2,256,588,726 shares issued, excluding treasury shares of 56,400 as at 28 March 2016.

@

Each of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, which is controlled by the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government
(through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital (B.V.l.) Limited, SIIC Treasury (B.V.l.)
Limited, SIIC Trading Company Limited, Billion More Investments Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, South
Pacific International Trading Limited and SIIC CM Development Limited, and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, holds more than 20%
of the issued and paid-up share capital of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, which owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of S.I.
Infrastructure Holdings Limited, which in turn owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of Triumph Power Limited. In addition, Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL Treasury Limited. As such, Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Holdings) Company Limited, Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and S.I. Infrastructure Holdings
Limited are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Triumph Power Limited and SIHL Treasury Limited (excluding S.I. Infrastructure
Holdings Limited). SIHL Treasury Limited holds 220,200 shares.

CECEP is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire issued share capital of CECEPHK.

VPL is a fund manager deemed to be interested in the share of the Company by reason of shares held directly by the funds under its
management. VPLHK is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company via its 100% ownership in VPL. To Hau Yin is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company in her capacity as the beneficiary of a discretionary trust with BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation
Limited (“BNP Trust”) as the trustee. VPGL is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company via its 100% ownership in VPLHK,
which in turn 100% owns VPL. CCML is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company via its 27.16% ownership in VPGL. Cheah
Cheng Hye is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in his capacity as the founder of a discretionary trust with BNP Trust
as the Trustee. CCL is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company via its 100% ownership in CCML. BNP Trust as trustee of the
C H Cheah Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company via its holdings in BNP Nominee. BNP Nominee holds the
shares in CCL as nominee for BNP Trust.

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD BY THE PUBLIC

Based on the information available to the Company as at 28 March 2016, 30.94% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company are held by the public and, therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST is
complied with.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the
“Company”) will be held at Pan Pacific Singapore, Ocean 6, Level 2, 7 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square,
Singapore 039595 on Wednesday, 27 April 2016 at 9.30 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Statement and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of $S$665,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2016
(2015: S$700,205).
(Resolution 2)

To re-elect the following Directors of the Company retiring pursuant to Regulation 91 of the Constitution of
the Company:

Mr. Feng Jun (Resolution 3)
Mr. Yang Changmin (Resolution 4)
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (Resolution 5)
Mr. Tan Chong Huat (Resolution 6)

[See Explanatory Note (i)]

To re-appoint Mr. Tan Gim Soo, a Director of the Company who is over 70 years of age, retiring pursuant
to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50. (Resolution 7)

[See Explanatory Note (ii)]

To re-appoint Messrs Deloitte & Touche LLP, as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration. (Resolution 8)

To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any
modifications:

7.

Authority to allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to Section 161 of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), the Directors of the Company be authorised
and empowered to:

(@) (i) issue shares in the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise; and/
or
(i) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would

require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as
adjustments to) options, warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares,
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at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as
the Directors of the Company may in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue
shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors of the Company while this
Resolution was in force,

(the “Share Issue Mandate”)

provided that:

(1)

the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in pursuance of the Instruments,
made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) and Instruments to be issued pursuant to this
Resolution shall not exceed fifty per centum (50%) of the total number of issued shares (excluding
treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph
(2) below), of which the aggregate number of shares and Instruments to be issued other than on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company shall not exceed twenty per centum (20%)
of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as
calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below);

(subject to such calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of determining
the aggregate number of shares and Instruments that may be issued under sub-paragraph (1)
above, the total number of issued shares and Instruments shall be based on the number of issued
shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this
Resolution, after adjusting for:

(@) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of the Instruments or any convertible
securities;

(b) new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or
subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution; and

(c) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

in exercising the Share Issue Mandate conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such
compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the Constitution of the Company; and

unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, the Share Issue Mandate shall
continue in force (i) until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date by which the
next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier or (i) in the case of
shares to be issued in pursuance of the Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution,
until the issuance of such shares in accordance with the terms of the Instruments.

[See Explanatory Note (iii)] (Resolution 9)

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. | Annual Report 2015



Notice of Annual General Meeting

10.

Renewal of Share Purchase Mandate

That for the purposes of Sections 76C and 76E of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Directors of the
Company be and are hereby authorised to make purchases or otherwise acquire issued shares in the
capital of the Company from time to time (whether by way of market purchases or off-market purchases
on an equal access scheme) of up to ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares
(excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as ascertained as at the date of the AGM of the
Company) at the price of up to but not exceeding the Maximum Price as defined in the Appendix to the
Notice of AGM dated 12 April 2016 (the “Appendix”), in accordance with the Authority and Limits of the
Share Purchase Mandate set out in the Appendix, and this mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or
the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.

[See Explanatory Note (iv)] (Resolution 10)

Authority to issue shares under the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “Share
Option Scheme”)

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Directors of the Company
be authorised and empowered to issue from time to time such number of shares in the capital of the
Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of share options granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme, whether granted during the subsistence of this authority or
otherwise, provided always that the aggregate number of additional ordinary shares to be issued pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed fifteen per centum (15%) of the total number of issued
shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company from time to time, or such applicable
limits so long as the Company remains a subsidiary of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL”), and
that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, continue in force
until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company
is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.

[See Explanatory Note (v)] (Resolution 11)

Authority to issue shares under the SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”)

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Directors of the Company
be authorised and empowered to issue from time to time such number of shares in the capital of the
Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the vesting of share awards under the Share Award
Scheme, whether granted during the subsistence of this authority or otherwise, provided always that the
aggregate number of additional ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed fifteen per centum (15%) of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in
the capital of the Company from time to time and that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or
the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.

[See Explanatory Note (vi)] (Resolution 12)

By Order of the Board

Shirley Tan Sey Liy
Company Secretary

Singapore, 12 April 2016
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Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as the member
of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee and will be considered
independent pursuant to Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Mr. Tan Chong Huat will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent
pursuant to Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Mr. Tan Gim Soo who is over the age of 70 was re-appointed as Director to hold office from the date of
the last Annual General Meeting held on 27 April 2015 until this AGM pursuant to Section 153(6) of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50. Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 was repealed when the
Companies (Amendment) Act 2014 came into effect on 3 January 2016. As his appointment lapses at
this AGM, Mr. Tan Gim Soo will have to be re-appointed to continue in office. Upon his re-appointment at
the conclusion of this AGM, going forward, Mr. Tan Gim Soo’s re-appointment will no longer be subject to
shareholders’ approval under Section 153(6) of the Act as repealed. Mr. Tan Gim Soo will then be subject
to retirement by rotation under the Company’s Constitution. Upon his re-appointment at the conclusion of
this AGM, Mr. Tan Gim Soo will remain as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and will be considered independent pursuant to Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of
the SGX-ST.

Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company from the date of this AGM until the
date of the next AGM of the Company, or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by
law to be held or such authority is varied or revoked by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is
the earlier, to issue shares, make or grant instruments convertible into shares and to issue shares pursuant
to such instruments, up to a number not exceeding, in total, fifty per centum (50%) of the total number of
issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company, of which up to twenty per centum
(20%) may be issued other than on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

For determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued, the percentage of issued shares
in the capital of the Company will be calculated based on the total number of issued shares (excluding
treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time this Resolution is passed after adjusting for new
shares arising from the conversion or exercise of the Instruments or any convertible securities, the exercise
of share options or the vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time when this Resolution
is passed and any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Resolution 10 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company from the date of this AGM
until the next AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required
by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, to repurchase ordinary shares of the Company by way of
market purchases or off-market purchases of up to ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued
shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the Maximum Price as defined in
the Appendix. The rationale for, the authority and limitation on, the sources of funds to be used for the
purchase or acquisition including the amount of financing and the financial effects of the purchase or
acquisition of ordinary shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on the audited
consolidated financial accounts of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
greater detail in the Appendix.
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(vi)

Resolution 11 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of this AGM
until the next AGM of the Company, or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law
to be held or such authority is varied or revoked by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is the
earlier, to issue shares in the Company pursuant to the exercise of share options granted or to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme provided that the aggregate additional shares to be issued pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme do not exceed in total (for the entire duration of the Share Option Scheme)
fifteen per centum (15%) of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of
the Company from time to time, or such applicable limits so long as the Company remains a subsidiary of
SIHL.

Where the Company is a subsidiary of SIHL,

(@) the total number of new shares which may be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share-based incentive scheme (but excluding the Share
Award Scheme), must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme will not be factored in for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit; however;

(b) notwithstanding (a) above, but subject to the abovementioned 15% limit, SIHL may seek the
approval of the SIHL shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options, together with the Share issued
and to be issued under other share-based incentive schemes (but excluding the Share Awards
Scheme), under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshing of the limit. Options previously granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Share Option Scheme or
exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed;

(c) SIHL may seek separate approval by its shareholders in a general meeting for granting options
beyond the 10% limit provided the options in excess of the limit are granted only to participants
specifically identified by SIHL before such approval is sought; provided always that; and

(d) the limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted, but yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share incentive
scheme (excluding the Share Award Scheme), must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded.

Resolution 12 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of this AGM
until the next AGM of the Company, or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by
law to be held or such authority is varied or revoked by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is
the earlier, to issue shares in the Company pursuant to the vesting of share awards under the Share Award
Scheme provided that the aggregate additional shares to be issued pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
do not exceed in total (for the entire duration of the Scheme) fifteen per centum (15%) of the total number
of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company from time to time.

Notes:

1.

A Member of the Company (other than a Relevant Intermediary®) entitled to attend and vote at the AGM
(the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A
proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A Relevant Intermediary may appoint more than two proxies, but each proxy must be appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by him (which number and class of shares
shall be specified.)

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at One
Temasek Avenue #37-02 Millenia Tower Singapore 039192 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time appointed for holding the Meeting.
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* A Relevant Intermediary is:

(@) a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act (Chapter 19) or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a
banking corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in
that capacity; or

(b) a person holding a capital markets services licence to provide custodial services for securities under the
Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) and who holds shares in that capacity; or

(©) the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act (Chapter 36), in respect
of shares purchased under the subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of
investments from the contributions and interest standing to the credit of members of the Central Provident
Fund, if the Board holds those shares in the capacity of an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with
that subsidiary legislation.

Personal Data Privacy

Where a member of the Company submits an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s)
to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the
Company () consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or
its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and
representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation
and compilation of the attendance lists, proxy lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any
applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (i) warrants that where
the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company
(or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the
collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or
representative(s) for the Purposes, and (i) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any
penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.  [meortanr:

(Company Reglstratlon No. 200210042R 1. An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme

(“CPF Investor”) and/or the Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”) (as
(Inoorporated In the RepUb“C of Slngapore) may be applicable) may attend and cast his vote(s) at the Meeting in person. CPF and
SRS Investors who are unable to attend the Meeting but would like to vote, may inform
their CPF and/or SRS Approved Nominees to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting to

PROXY FORM act as their proxy, in which case, the CPF and SRS Investors shall be precluded from

attending the Meeting.

AN N UAL GENERAL MEETI NG 2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF and SRS Investors and shall be ineffective
(P/ease see notes OVer/eaf before com,o/el‘/ng thlS FOI’m) for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

I/We, (Name) (NRIC/Passport No.)
of (address)

being a member/members of SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. (the “Company”), hereby appoint:

Name NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

as my/our proxy/proxies* to vote for me/us* on my/our” behalf at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the
Company to be held at Pan Pacific Singapore, Ocean 6, Level 2, 7 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039595
on Wednesday, 27 April 2016 at 9.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof. I/We* direct my/our proxy/proxies* to vote for
or against the Resolutions proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given or in
the event of any other matter arising at the Meeting and at any adjournment thereof, the proxy/proxies” will vote or abstain
from voting at his/her* discretion.

No. |[Resolutions relating to: No. of votes | No. of votes
‘For’* ‘Against’™

Ordinary Business

1 Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015

2 Approval of Directors’ fees amounting to S$665,000 for the financial year ending

31 December 2016

Re-election of Mr. Feng Jun as a Director

Re-election of Mr. Yang Changmin as a Director

Re-election of Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang as a Director

Re-election of Mr. Tan Chong Huat as a Director

Re-appointment of Mr. Tan Gim Soo as a Director pursuant to Section 153(6)
of the Companies Act, Chapter 50

8 Re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Auditors and to authorise the
Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration

Special Business

9 Authority to allot and issue shares

10 Renewal of Share Purchase Mandate

11 Authority to issue shares under the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012
12 Authority to issue shares under the SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme

N[O |O MW

*If you wish to exercise all your votes ‘For’ or ‘Against’, please tick (+) within the box provided. Alternatively, please indicate
the number of votes as appropriate.

Total number of Shares in: No. of Shares

(@) CDP Register

Dated this day of 2016

(b) Register of Members

Signature of Shareholder(s)
or, Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder

*Delete where inapplicable



Notes :

1. Please insert the total number of Shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register (as defined in Section 81SF of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of
Singapore), you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name in the
Register of Members, you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares entered against your
name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you
should insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and
registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a
proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company (other than a Relevant Intermediary®) entitled to attend and vote at a meeting
of the Company is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Where a member (other than a Relevant Intermediary*) appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be
invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the
whole) to be represented by each proxy.

4. A Relevant Intermediary may appoint more than two proxies, but each proxy must be appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by him (which number or class of shares
shall be specified).

5. Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member from attending
and voting at the Meeting. Any appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a
member attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to
admit any person or persons appointed under the instrument of proxy to the Meeting.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
One Temasek Avenue #37-02 Millenia Tower Singapore 039192 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before
the time appointed for the Meeting.

7. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his
attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by
a corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly
authorised. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by an attorney on behalf of
the appointor, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must be lodged with the
instrument.

8. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such
person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

9. An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme (“CPF Investor”) and/
or the Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”) (as may be applicable) may attend and cast
his vote(s) at the Meeting in person. CPF and SRS Investors who are unable to attend the Meeting but
would like to vote, may inform their CPF and/or SRS Approved Nominees to appoint the Chairman of the
Meeting to act as their proxy, in which case, the CPF and SRS Investors shall be precluded from attending
the Meeting.

* A Relevant Intermediary is:

(@) a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act (Cap. 19) or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a
banking corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in
that capacity; or

(b) a person holding a capital markets services licence to provide custodial services for securities under the
Securities and Futures Act (Cap. 289) and who holds shares in that capacity; or

(c) the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act (Cap. 36), in respect
of shares purchased under the subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of
investments from the contributions and interest standing to the credit of members of the Central Provident
Fund, if the Board holds those shares in the capacity of an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with
that subsidiary legislation.

General:

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly
completed or illegible, or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions
of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of Shares
entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged
if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository
Register as at seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The
Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

Personal Data Privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to
the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 12 April 2016.
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